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Short-term Debt $31,574 $17,000
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Islands
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Class B Units

This Form C (including the cover page and al exhibits attached hereto, the "Form C") is
being fumished by Because Coffee Ten, LLC , a Ddaware Limited Liability Company (the
"Company," as well as references to "we" "us," or "our"), to prospective investors for the sole
purpose of providing certain information about a potential investment in Class C Units of the

Company (the “Securities”).

Investors in Securities are sometimes refared to herein as "Purchasers.” The Company
intends to raise at least $25,000.00 and up to $1,200,000.00 from Investors in the offering of
Securities described in this Form C (this "Offering”). The minimum amount of Securities that can
be purchased is $1,000.00 per Investor (which may be waived by the Company, in its sole and
absolute discretion). The offer made hereby is subject to modification, prior to sale and withdrawal
atany time

The rights and obligati ons of the holders of Securities of the Company are set forth below
in the section entitled " The Offering and the Securities--The Securities'. |n order to purchase
Securiies, a prospective investor must complete the subscripion process through the
Intermediary’s platform, which may be accepted or rejected by the Company, in its sole and
absolute discretion. The Company has the right to canced or rescind its offer to sdl the Securities
at any time and for any reason.

The Offering is being mede through ] umpstart Micro, Inc. d/b/a Issuance Express (the
"Intermediary”). The Intermediary will be entitied to receive a cash-based success fee of 6% of the
dollar amount raised in the Offering after each successful closing, including any intermediary

dosings.



Priceto Investors Servia? F_ees L Net Proceeds
Commissions (1)
Minimum
Individual Purchase $1,000.00 $0 $1,000.00
Amount
Aggregate Minimum
Offering A : $25,000.00 $1,500.00 $23,500.00
Aggregate
Maximum Offering $1,200,000.00 $72,000.00 $1,128,000.00
Amount
(1) This excludes fees to the Company’s advisors, such as attorneys and accountants.

A aowdfunding investiment involves risk. Y ou should not invest any funds in this Offering
unless you can afford to lose your entire investment. I|n making an investiment decision,
investors must rely on their own examination of the issuer and the terms of the Offering
induding the merits and risks involved. These Securities have not been recommended or
approved by any fedaal or state securiies commission or regulatory authority.
Furthermore, these authorities have not passed upon the accuracy or adequacy of this
document. The U.S. Seaurities and Exchange Commission does not pass upon the merits of
any Securities offered or the terms of the Offering nor does it pass upon the accuracy or
completeness of any Offering document or other materials. These Securities are offered
under an exemption from regisiration; however, neither the U.S. Securities and Exchange
Commission nor any state securities authority has made an independent determination that
these Securities are exempt from regisiration. The Company filing this Form C for an
offeringin rdiance on Section 4(a)(6) of the Securities Act and pursuant to Regulation CF (§
227.100 et seq}.) must file a report with the Commission annually and post the report on its
website at because.coffee no later than 120 days after the end of the Company’s fiscal year.
The Company may terminateits reporting obligations in the futurein accordance with Rule
202(b) of Regulation CF (§ 227.202(b)) by 1) being required to file reports under Section
13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, 2) filing at least one annual
report pursuant to Regulation CF and having fewer than 300 holders of record, 3) filing
annual reports for three years pursuant to Regulation CF and having assets eqqual toor less
than $10,000,000, 4) therepurchase of all the Securities sold in this Offering by the Company
or ancther party, or 5) theliquidation or dissolution of the Company.

Thedate of this Form C is December 13, 2023.

The Company has ceatified that all of the following statements are TRUE for the Company in
connection with this Offering:

1) Isorganized under, and subject to, the laws of a State or territory of the United States or
the District of Columbia;

2) s not subject to the requirement to file reports pursuant to section 13 or section 15(d) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78mor 780(d));



3) s not an investment company, as defined in section 3 of the | nvestiment Conmpany Act of
1940 (15 U.5.C. 80a-3), or excluded fromthe definition of investment company by section
3(b) or section 3(c) of that Act (15 U.S.C. 80a-3(b) or 80a-3(c));

4) |snotindigibleto offerorsell securities in rdiance on section 4(a)(6) of the Securities Act
(15U.S.C. 77d(a)(6)) as aresult of a disqualification as specified in § 227.503(a);

5) Has filed with the Commission and provided to investors, to the extent required, any
onhgoing annual reports required by law during the two years immediately preceding the
filing of this Form C; and

6) Has a specific business plan, which is not to engage in a marger or acquisition with an
unidentified company or companies.

THERE ARE SIGNIFICANT RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES ASSOCIATED WITH AN
INVESTMENT IN THE COMPANY AND THE SECURITIES. THE SECURITIES OFFERED
HEREBY ARE NOT PUBLICLY-TRADED AND ARE SUBJECT TO TRANSFER
RESTRICTIONS. THERE ISNO PUBLIC MARKET FOR THE SECURITIES AND ONE MAY
NEVER DEVELOP. AN INVESTMENT IN THE COMPANY IS HIGHLY SPECULATIVE.
THE SECURITIES SHOULD NOT BE PURCHASED BY ANYONE WHO CANNOT BEAR
THE FINANCIAL RISK OF THIS INVESTMENT FOR AN INDEFINITE PERIOD OF TIME
AND WHO CANNOT AFFORD THE LOSS OF THEIR ENTIRE INVESTMENT. SEE THE
SECTION OF THIS FORM C ENTITLED "RISK FACTORS."

THESE SECURITIES INVOLVE A HIGH DEGREE OF RISK THAT MAY NOT BE
APPROPRIATE FOR ALL INVESTORS.

THIS FORM C DOES NOT CONSTITUTE AN OFFER IN ANY JURISDICTION IN
WHICH AN OFFER IS NOT PERMITTED.

PRIOR TO CONSUMMATION OF THE PURCHASE AND SALE OF ANY SECURITY
THE COMPANY WILL AFFORD PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS AN OPPORTUNITY TOASK
QUESTIONS OF AND RECEIVE ANSWERS FROM THE COMPANY, AND ITS
MANAGEMENT CONCERNING THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THIS OFFERING
AND THE COMPANY. NO SOURCE OTHER THAN THE INTERMEDIARY HAS BEEN
AUTHORIZED TO GIVE ANY INFORMATION OR MAKE ANY REPRESENTATIONS
OTHER THAN THOSE CONTAINED IN THIS FORM C, AND IF GIVEN OR MADE BY ANY
OTHER SUCH PERSON OR ENTITY, SUCH INFORMATION MUST NOT BE RELIED ON
ASHAVING BEEN AUTHORIZED BY THE COMPANY .

PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS ARE NOT TO CONSTRUE THE CONTENTS OF THIS
FORM C AS LEGAL, ACCOUNTING OR TAX ADVICE OR AS INFORMATION
NECESSARILY APPLICABLE TO EACH PROSPECTIVE INVESTOR’S PARTICULAR
FINANCIAL SITUATION. EACH INVESTOR SHOULD CONSULT HIS OR HER OWN
FINANCIAL ADVISER, COUNSEL AND ACCOUNTANT AS TO LEGAL, TAX AND
RELATED MATTERS CONCERNING HIS OR HER INVESTMENT.

THE SECURITIES OFFERED HEREBY WILL HAVE TRANSFER RESTRICTIONS.
NO SECURITIES MAY BE PLEDGED, TRANSFERRED, RESOLD OR OTHERWISE
DISPOSED OF BY ANY INVESTOR EXCEPT PURSUANT TO RULE 501 OF REGULATION
CF. INVESTORS SHOULD BE AWARE THAT THEY WILL BE REQUIRED TO BEAR THE
FINANCIAL RISKS OF THIS INVESTMENT FOR AN INDEFINITE PERIOD OF TIME.



NASAA UNIFORM LEGEND

IN MAKING AN INVESTMENT DECISION INVESTORS MUST RELY ON THEIR
OWN EXAMINATION OF THE PERSON OR ENTITY ISSUING THE SECURITIES AND
THE TERMS OF THE OFFERING, INCLUDING THE MERITS AND RISKS INVOLVED.

THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN RECOMMENDED BY ANY FEDERAL OR
STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION OR REGULATORY AUTHORITY. FURTHERMORE,
THE FOREGOING AUTHORITIES HAVE NOT CONFIRMED THE ACCURACY OR
DETERMINED THE ADEQUACY OF THISDOCUMENT.ANY REPRESENTATION TOTHE
CONTRARY IS A CRIMINAL OFFENSE.

SPECIAL NOTICE TO FOREIGN INVESTORS

IF THE INVESTOR LIVES OUTSIDE THE UNITED STATES, IT IS THE INVESTOR’S
RESPONSIBILITY TO FULLY OBSERVE THE LAWS OF ANY RELEVANT TERRITORY
OR JURISDICTION OUTSIDE THE UNITED STATES IN CONNECTION WITH ANY
PURCHASE OF THE SECURITIES, [INCLUDING OBTAINING REQUIRED
GOVERNMENTAL OR OTHER CONSENTS OR OBSERVING ANY OTHER REQUIRED
LEGAL OR OTHER FORMALITIES. THE COMPANY RESERVES THE RIGHT TO DENY
THE PURCHASE OF THE SECURITIES BY ANY FOREIGN INVESTOR.

SPECIAL NOTICE TO CANADIAN INVESTORS

IF THE INVESTOR LIVES WITHIN CANADA, IT IS THE INVESTOR'S
RESPONSIBILITY TO FULLY OBSERVE THE LAWS OF A CANADA, SPECIFICALLY
WITH REGARD TO THE TRANSFER AND RESALE OF ANY SECURITIES ACQUIRED IN
THIS OFFERING.

NOTICE REGARDING ESCROW FACILITATOR

NORTH CAPITAL PRIVATE SECURITIES CORPORATION, THE ESCROW
FACILITATOR SERVICING THE OFFERING, HAS NOT INVESTIGATED THE
DESIRABILITY OR ADVISABILITY OF AN INVESTMENT IN THIS OFFERING OR THE
SECURITIES OFFERED HEREIN.  THE ESCROW FACILITATOR MAKES NO
REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, ENDORSEMENTS, OR JUDGEMENT ON THE
MERITS OF THE OFFERING OR THE SECURITIES OFFERED HEREIN. THE ESCROW
FACILITATOR’S CONNECTION TO THE OFFERING IS SOLELY FOR THE LIMITED
PURPOSES OF ACTING AS A SERVICE PROVIDER.

Forvard Looking Staterment Disdasure

This Form C and any docurments incorporated by reference herein or theren contain
forward-looking statements and are subject to risks and uncertainties. All statarents other than
staterents of historical fact or réating to present facts or current conditions included in this Form
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C are forward-looking staterents. ForwardHooking statements give the Company’s current
reasonable expectations and projections réating to its financial condition, results of operations,
plans, objectives, future performance and business. You can identify forward-looking staterrents
by the fact that they do not rdate strictly to historical or current facts. These statearents may
include words such as "anticipate " "estinete " "expect,” "project” “plan, " “intend" "bdieve "
"may," "should " "can have " "likdly" and other words and terns of sirmilar meaning in connection
with any discussion of the timing or nature of future operating or financial performance or other
events.

Theforwara-looking statements contained in this FormC and any docurments incorporated
by reference herein or theraein are based on reasonable assunptions the Conpany has naae in
light of its inalustry experience perceptions of historical trends, current conditions, expected future
developments and other factors it bdieves are appropriate under the circunstances. As you read
and consider this Form C, you should understand that these staterrents are not guarantees of
paformance or results. They involve risks, uncetainties (many of which are beyond the
Company'’s control) and assumptions. Although the Company believes that these forward-looking
staterrents are based on reasonable assunptions, you should be aware that many factors could
affect its actual operating and financial performance and cause its performance to differ
materially from the performance anticipated in the forward-looking staterents. Should one or
nmoreoftheserisks or uncertainties materialize or should any of these assurptions proveincorrect
or change, the Company’s actual operating and financial performance may vary in material

respects fromthe performance projected in these forward-looking statermrents.

Any forward-looking statarment nade by the Corrpany in this Form C or any docurrents
incorporated by refarence heran or thara@n spaaks only as of the date of this FormC. Factors or
events that could cause our actual operating and financial performanceto differ may erergefrom
timetotime anditis not possiblefor the Conpany to predict all of them The Conpany undertakes
no obligation to update any forward-looking staterrent, whether as a result of new inforrration,
future developments or otherwise except as may be required by law.
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ONGOING REPORTING

The Company will file a report dectronicaly with the Securities & Exchange Commission
anmually and post the report on its website, no later than 120 days after the end of the Company’s
fiscal year.

Once posted, the annual report may be found on the Company’s website at: because.coffee

The Company must continue to comply with the ongoing reporting requirements until:
1) the Company is required to file reports under Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the
Exchange Act;
2) the Company has filed at |east three annual reports pursuant to Regulation CF and has total
assets that do not exceed $10,000,000;
3) the Company has filed at least one annual report pursuant to Regulation CF and has fewer
than 300 holders of record;



4) the Company or another party repurchases all of the Securitiesissued in rdianceon Section
4(a)(6) of the Securities Act, including any payment in full of debt securities or any
compl ete redemption of redeemable securities; or

5) the Company liquidates or dissolves its business in accordance with state law.

About thisForm C

Y ou should rdly only on theinformation contained inthis Form C. We have not authorized anyone
to provide you with informeation different from that contained in this Form C. We are offering to
sdl, and seeking offers to buy the Securities only in jurisdictions where offers and sales are
permitted. Y ou should assume that the information contained in this Form C is accurate only as of
thedate of this FormC, regardless of thetime of ddivery of this FormC or of any saleof Securities.
Our business, financial condition, results of operations, and prospects may have changed sincethat
date.

Statements contained herein as to the content of any agreaments or other document are summaries
and, therefore, are necessarily sdective and incomplete and are quaified in their entirety by the
actual agresments or other documents. The Company will provide the opportunity to ask questions
of and receive answers from the Company’s management concerning the terms and conditions of
the Offering, the Company or any other rel evant mettters and any additiona reasonableinformation
to any prospective | nvestor prior to the consummati on of the sale of the Securities.

This FormC does not purport to contain al of theinformnation that may be requiired to evaluate the
Offering and any reci pient hereof should conduct its own independent analysis. T he staterments of
the Company contained herein are based on information believed to be rdiable. No warranty can
be mede as to the accuracy of such information or that drcumstances have not changed since the
date of this Form C. The Company does not expect to update or otherwise revise this Form C or
other materials supplied herewith. The ddivery of this FormC at any time does not imply that the
information contai ned herein is correct as of any time subsequent to the date of this Form C. This
Form C is submitted in connection with the Offering described herein and may not be reproduced
or used for any other purpose.

SUMMARY

The following summary is quaified in its entirety by more detailed information that may appear
dsewherein this Form C and the Exhibits hereto. Each prospective |nvestor is urged to read this
Form C and the Exhibits hereto in their entirety.

Because Coffee Ten, LLC (the "Company") is aDdaware Limited Liability Company, fornmed on
June 16, 2023.

The Company is located at 240 Dawson Village Way, Suite 100, Dawsonville, GA 30534.
The Company’s website is because.coffee.

The information available on or through our website is not a part of this Form C. In nmeking an
investment decision with respect to our Securities, you should only consider the information
contained inthis Form C.
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TheBusiness

Because Coffee Ten, LLC (the “Company”) is a growing company whose core business is focused
on roasting spedialty-grade coffee and operating its café. The history of the company started in
2019, when Eddie Wilson and Doug Cole along with some small investors opened their first store
in the summer of 2019 in Dawsonville, GA. In the summer of 2022, Because Coffee LLC created
Because Coffee Holdings Group LLC (BCHG) and transferred 100% of the ownership of Because
CoffeeLLC to BCHG. Theownershipteamof BCHG consisted of thesameindividuals of Because
Coffee LLC with roughly the same ownership percentages. In late summer 2022, the team added
anew Café named Myth & Legend LLC with BCHG becorming 100% owner.

With the success of the two operating Cafes, the team decided to execute an expansion plan which
includes this RegCF capital raise and a simultaneous Reg D 506(B) with the same terms. InJune
2023, Because Coffee Ten, LLC was formed as a new entity. In November 2023, Because Coffee
LLC and Myth and Legend LLC were dissolved as LLC’s and the current two stores and all
upcoming stores now operate under Because Coffee Ten LLC and BCHG will manage roasting
the coffeee, handle online sales and e-commerce for the Because Coffee brand.

Our current location are:

Because Coffee
240 Dawson Village Way N #100, Dawsonville, GA 30534

Myth & Legend
431 Vision Dr Suite F101A, Cumming, GA 30040

The Company expansion plan is to begin adding more cafes in sdect target markets in the
Southeast portion of the U.S. Because Coffee offers a unique experience with thetop 4-10% of the
world’s best coffee as the focus.* Quality and a personalized experience have been the hallmark
of this brand since its inception. The business modd for this company was inspired by both the
mission and success of both Starbucks, as well as Chick-Fil-A. Wethink its important to give back
to the communities we serve and allocate a portion of the profits for each location to support a
variety of community-based and nonprofit causes.

*Source https://sprudge. comfwhat-is-specidty-coffes-
180293. htrnl # ~text=l n%20more%20concrete, reaches%20spedi al ty%20grade

TheOffering
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Minimum amount of Class B Units being > 000
offered '
Total Class B Units outstanding after 212960
Offering (if minimum amount reached) '
Maximum amount of Class B Units being
fered 96,000
Total Class B Units outstanding after 306.960
Offering (if maxdmum amount reached) '
Purchase price per Security $12.50
Minimum invesiment amount per investor $1,000.00
Offering deadline June 1, 2024
See the description of the use of proceeds on
Useof proceeds page 28 hereof.
. . See the description of the voting rights on
Vating Rights page 38 hereof,

Concurrently with this Offering, the Company is conducting a private placement offering under
Rule 506(b) of Regulation D to raise up to $5,000,000 on the same terms as this Offering (the “Reg
D Offering”). The Class B Units above do not reflect the total humber of Class B Units being
offered inthe Reg D Offering.

As of the date of this Form C, the Company has raised $2,637,000.00 in the Reg D Offering.

The price of the Securities has been determined by the Company and does not necessarily bear any
rel ationship to the assets, book va ue, or potential eamings of the Company or any other recognized
criteriaor value,

RISK FACTORS

Risks Related to the Company’s Business and Industry

We have no gperating history upon which you can evaluate our perfarrmance, and accordingly;
our praspects must be considered in light of the risks that any new canmpany encountars.

We were incorporated under the |laws of Ddaware on June 16, 2023. Accordingly, we have no
history upon which an evauation of our prospects and future performance can be made. Our
proposed operdions are subject to al business risks associated with a new enterprise. The
likelihood of our cregtion of a viable business must be considered in light of the problems,
expenses, difficulties, complications, and delays frequently encountered in connection with the
inception of a business, operation in a competitive industry, and the continued devel opment of
advertising, promotions, and a corresponding client base. We anticipate that our operating
expenses will increase for the near future. There can be no assurances that we will ever operate
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profitably. You should consider the Company’s business, operations and prospects in light of the

risks, expenses and challenges faced as an early-stage company.

The davdgament and cammerdalization of our producds/senices is highly conpditive.

We face competition with respect to any products that we may seek to develop or commercidize
in the future. Our competitors include major companies worldwide. Many of our competitors have
significantly greater financia, technical and human resources than we have and superior expertise
in research and development and marketing approved products/services and thus may be better
equi pped than us to deve op and commercialize products/services. These competitors also conpete
with usin recruiting and retaining qualified personnd and acquiring technologies. Sraller or early
stage companies may also prove to be significant competitors, particularly through collaborative
arangements with large and established companies. Accordingly, our competitors may
commercialize products more rapidly or effectively than we are able to, which would adversdy
affect our compditive position, thelikeihood that our products/services will achieveinitial market
acceptance and our ability to generate meaningful additiona revenues from our products.

We rely on othar conpanies to provide raw neterials nmajor conponents, basic ingredients
subsystens for our products.

We depend on these suppliers and subcontractors to meet our contractual obligations to our
customers and conduct our operations. Our ability to meet our obligations to our customers may
be adversdy affected if suppliers or subcontractors do not provide the agreed-upon supplies or
perform the agreed-upon services in compliance with customer requirements and in atimely and
cost-effective manner. Likewise the quality of our products may be adversdy impacted if
companies to whom we delegate manufacture of magjor components or subsystems for our
products, or from whom we acquire such items, do not provide raw materials, major components,
basic ingredients subsystems which meet required specifications and perform to our and our
customers’ expectations. Our suppliers may be less likely than us to be able to quickly recover
fromnatural disasters and other evenis beyond their control and may be subject to additional risks
such as financial problems that limit their ability to conduct their operations. The risk of these
adverse effects may be gregter in circumstances where we rely on only one or two subcontractors
or suppliers for a particular raw material, component, basic ingredient subsystem

The Company’s success depends on the experience and skill of the board of directors, ifs
exeautive officers and key enployess.

In particular, the Company is dependent on Eddie Wilson and Doug Cole who are CEO and
President of the Company. The Company has or intends to enter i nto employment agreements with
Eddie Wilson and Doug Cole although there can be no assurance that it will do so or that they will
continue to be empl oyed by the Company for a particular period of time. Theloss of Eddie Wilson
and Doug Cole or any member of the board of directors or executive officer could ham the
Company’s business, financial condition, cash flow and results of operations.

We rdy an various intdlectual property rights, induding tradermarks in arder to gperate our

business.

Such intdlectual property rights, however, may not be sufficiently broad or otherwise may not

provide us a significant conmpetitive advantage. In addition, the steps that we have taken to

meintain and protect our intdlectual property may not prevent it from being challenged,
13



invalidated, circunmvented or designed-around, particulany in countries whereintdlectual property
rights are not highly deveoped or protected. In some circunmstances, enforcement may not be
available to us because an infringer has a dominant intelectual property position or for other
busi ness reasons, or countries may require compulsory licensing of our intellectual property. Our
falure to obtain or maintain intelectual property rights that convey competitive advantage,
adequately protect our intelectual property or detect or prevent circurmvention or unauthorized use
of such property, could adversely impact our competitive position and results of operations. We
aso rely on nondiscl osure and noncompetition agreements with employees, consultants and other
parties to protect, in part, trade secrets and other proprietary rights. There can be no assurance that
these agreements will adequatdy protect our trade secrets and other proprietary rights and will not
be breached, that we will have adequate remedies for any breach, that others will notindependently
develop substantially equivalent proprietary infonmation or that third parties will not otherwise
gain access to our trade secrets or other proprietary rights.

As we expand our business, protecting our intelectual property will become increasingly
important. The protective steps we have taken may be inadeguate to deter our competitors from
using our proprietary information. |n order to protect or enforce our patent rights, we may be
required to initiate litigation against third parties, such as infringement lawsuits. Also, these third
parties may assert claims against us with or without provocation. These lawsuits could be
expensive, take significant time and could divert management’s attention from other business
concerms. The law relating to the scope and validity of dains in the technology field in which we
operate is still evolving and, consequently, intellectual property positions in our industry are
generdly uncartain. We cannot assure you that we will prevail in any of these potential suits or
that the dameges or other remedies awarded, if any, would be commercialy valuable.

Fromtimeto time third parties may daimthat ane or more of our products or senices infringe
thair intellectual property rights.

Any dispute or litigation regarding patents or other intellectual property could be costly and time-
consuming due to the complexity of our technology and the uncertainty of intellectual property
litigation and could divert our management and key pearsonne from our business operations. A

claimof intellectual property infringement could force us to enter into a costly or restrictive license
agreement, which might not be available under acceptable terms or at all, could require us to
redesign our products, which would be costly and time-consuming, and/or could subject us to an
injunction against development and sale of certain of our products or services. We may have to
pay substantial dameges, including damages for past infringement if it is ultimatdy determined
that our products infringe on a third party’s proprietary rights. Even if these claims are without

merit, defending a lawsuit takes significant time, may be expensive and may divert management’s

atention from other business concamns. Any public announcements related to litigation or
interference proceedings initiated or threatened agai nst us could cause our business to be harmed.

Our intellectual property portfolio may not be useful in asserting a counterclaim, or negotiating a
license, in response to a daim of intdlectual property infringement. In certain of our businesses
we rdy on third party intelectua property licenses and we cannot ensure that these licenses will

be available to us in the future on favorable terms or at all.

Although dependeant on cartain key personnd, the Canpany does not have any key man life
insurance palicies on any such people.

The Company is dependent on Eddie Wilson and Doug Colein order to conduct its operations and
execute its business plan, however, the Company has hot purchased any insurance policies with
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respect to those individuals in the event of their death or disability. Therefore, if any of Eddie
Wilson and Doug Cole die or become disabled, the Company will not receive any compensation
to assist with such person’s absence. The loss of such person could negatively affect the Company
and its operations.

We have not prepared any audited finandal staterments.

Therefore, you have no audited financial information regarding the Company’s capitalization or
assets or liabilities on which to make your investment decision. If you fed the informetion
provided is insufficient, you should not invest in the Company.

Ve are sulject to income taxes as wall as nan-income basad taxes, such as payradll, sales use
value-adkied] net worth, property and goods and senices taxes in both the U.S. and various
foreign jurisdiclions.

Significant judgment is required in determining our provision for income taxes and other tax
liabilities. In the ordinary course of our business, there are many transactions and calculations
where the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. Although we believe that our tax estimetes are
reasonable: (i) there is no assurance that the fina determination of tax audits or tax disputes will
not be different from what is reflected in our income tax provisions, expense anmounts for non-
income based taxes and accruals and (ii) any material differences could have an adverse effect on
our financia position and results of operations in the period or periods for which determinationis
mede.

Wearenotsulyect to Sarbanes-Oxley regulations and ladk the finandial contrals and safeguards
required of public conpanies.

We do not have the intema infrastructure necessary, and are not required, to complete an
altestation about our financia controls that would be required under Section 404 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002. There can be no assurance that there are no significant deficiencies or material
weaknesses in the quality of our financial controls. We expect to incur additional expenses and
diversion of management’s time if and when it becomes necessary to perform the system and
process evaluation, testing and remediation required in order to comply with the management
certification and auditor attestation requirements.

Changes in enployment laws or regulation could harmour parfarmance

Various federa and state labor laws govan our rdationship with our employees and affect
operating costs. Theselaws include minimumwage requi rements, overtime pay, healthcare reform
and the implementation of the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act, unemployment tax
rates, workers’ compensation rates, citizenship requirements, union membership and sales taxes.
A number of factors could adversdy affect our operating results, including additiona govermnment-
imposed increases in minimum wages, overtime pay, paid leaves of absence and mandated health
benefits, mandated training for employees, increased tax reporting and tax payment requi rements
for employees who receive tips, a reduction in the number of states that allow tips to be credited
toward minimum wage requirements, changing regulations from the National Labor Redations
Board and increased employeelitigation including daims reating to the Fair Labor Standards Act.
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The Company’s business operations may be materially adversely affected by a pandemic such
as the Caronavirus (COVID-19) outlreak

In December 2019, a novd strain of coronavirus was reported to have surfaced in Wuhan, Ching,
which spread throughout other parts of the world, including the United States. On | anuary 30,
2020, the World Health Organization declared the outbreak of the coronavirus disease (COVID-
19) a “Public Health Emergency of International Concern.” On January 31, 2020, U.S. Health and
Humen Services Secretary Alex M. Azar |l declared a public heath emergency for the United
States to aid the U.S. healthcare community in responding to COVID-19, and on March 11, 2020
the World Health Organization characterized the outbreak as a “pandemic.” COVID-19 resulted
in a widespread hedlth crisis that adversdy affected the economies and financia markets
worldwide. The Company’s business could be materially and adversdy affected. The extent to
which COVID-19 impacts the Company’s business will depend on future developments, which
are highly uncertain and cannot be predicted, including new information which may emerge
concermning the severity of COVID-19 and the actions to contain COVID-19 or treat its impact,
among others. If the disruptions posed by COVID-19 or other matters of global concern continue
for an extended period of time, the Company’s operations may be materially adversey affected.

Wefacerisks rdated o health epidarmics and other outlreaks, which could significantly disrupt
the Company’s operations and could have a material adverse impact on us.

The outbreak of pandemics and epidemics could materially and adversely affect the Company’s

business, financia condition, and results of operations. I a pandemic occurs in areas in which we
have material operations or sales, the Company’s business activities originating from affected
aress, incdluding saes, materials, and supply chain raated activities, could be adversdy affected.

Disruptive activities could include the temporary closure of facilities used in the Company’s

supply chain processes, restrictions on the export or shipment of products necessary to run the
Company’s business, business closures in impacted areas, and restrictions on the Company’s

employees’ or consultants’ ability to travel and to meet with customers, vendors or other business

relationships. The extent to which a pandemic or other health outbreak impacts the Company’s

results will depend on future devel opments, which are highly uncertain and cannot be predicted,

including new informetion which may emerge conceming the severity of a virus and the actions
to contain it or treat its inmpact, among others. Pandemics can aso result in sodial, economic, and

labor instability which may adversely impact the Company’s business.

If the Company’s employees or employees of any of the Company’s vendors, suppliers or
customers becomeill or are quarantined and in either or both events are therefore unable to work,
the Company’s operations could be subject to disruption. The extent to which a pandemic affects
the Company’s results will depend on future developments that are highly uncertain and cannot be

predicted.

Wefacerisks rdating to public health conditians such as the COVI D-19 pandeamic, which could
adversely affect the Company’s customers, business, and results of operations.

Our business and prospects could be materially adversdy affected by the COVID-19 pandemic or
recurrences of that or any other such disease in the future. Materia adverse effects from COVID-

19 and similar occurrences could result in numerous known and currently unknown walys including
from quarantines and lockdowns which impair the Company’s business including: marketing and

saes efforts, supply chain, etc. If the Company purchases materias from suppliers in affected

aress, the Company may not be able to procure such products in atimay manner. The effects of a

pandemic can place travel restrictions on key personnd which could have a meterial impact onthe
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business. In addition, a significant outhreak of contagious diseases in the human population could
resultin awidespread health crisis that could adversaly affect the economies and financial markets
of many countries, resulting in an economic downtum that could reduce the demand for the
Company’s products and impair the Company’s business prospects including as a result of being
unable to raise additional capital on acceptable terms to us, if atall.

Growth rates higher than planned ar the introduction of new products requiring spedal
ingredients could areate higher damand far ingredients greatar than we can source

Although we bdlieve that there are altermati ve sources available for our key ingredients, there can
be no assurance that we would be able to acquire such ingredients from substitute sources on a
timdy or cost effective basis in the event that current suppliers could not adequately fulfill orders,
which would adversdly affect our business and results of operations.

We source certain padkaging materials, such as bottles, cans six-padk carmiers;, labds, caps and
other shipping materials fram a number of third-party suppiers and in some cases single-
sourcesupias

Although we bdlieve that dternative suppliers are available, the loss of any of our packaging
meteria suppliers could adversdy affect our results of operations and financia condition. Our
inability to preserve the current economics of these agreements could expose us to significant cost
increases in future years.

The lass of our third-party distributors could impair our gperations and substantially rediice
our finandal results.

We continualy seek to expand distribution of our products by entering into distribution
arangements with regional bottlers or other direct store delivery distributors having established
sdes, marketing and distribution organizations. Many distributors are affiliated with and
menufacture and/or distribute other beverage products. In many cases, such products compete
directly with our products. The marketing efforts of our distributors are important for our success.
If our brands prove to be less attractive to our existing distributors and/or if we fail to attract
additional distributors and/or our distributors do not market and pronote our products above the
products of our competitors, our business, financial condition and results of operations could be
adversdy affected.

Our business is substantially dependient upon avareness and narket acceplance of our products
and brands.

Our business depends on acceptance by both our end consumers as wel as our independent
distributors of our brands as beverage brands that have the potential to provide incremental sales
growth rather than reduce distributors” existing beverage sales. We bdieve that the success of our
product name brands will aso be substantially dependent upon acceptance of our product name
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brands. Accordingly, any failure of our brands to maintain or increase acceptance or market
peneration would likely have a meteria adverse effect on our revenues and financial results.

Rediictions in sales of our products will have an adverse effect an our profitability and ability
o generate cash to fund our business plan.

The following factors, among others, could affect continued market acceptance and profitability
of our products:

» the introduction of competitive products;

* changes in consumer preferences among coffee beverages food products;

* changes in consumer eating and snacking habits, including trends away from certain categories,
including major alergen-free, gluten-free and non-GM O products;

* changes in awareness of the social effects of farming and food production;

* changes in consumer perception about trendy snack products;

« changes in consumer perception regarding the heal thfulness of our products;

+ the level and effectiveness of our sales and marketing efforts;

* any unfavorable publicity regarding coffee beverages products or similar products;

* any unfavorable publicity regarding our brand;

» litigation or threats of litigation with respect to our products;

+ the price of our products relative to other competing products;

* price increases resulting from rising commodity costs;

* any changes in government policies and practices related to our products, labeling and markets;
* regulatory developments affecting the manufacturing, labeling, marketing or use of our products;
* new science or research that disputes the healthfulness of our products; and

« adverse decisions or rulings limiting our ability to promote the benefits of popcorn products.
Adverse devel opments with respect to the sale of our products would significantly reduce our net

saes and profitability and have a material adverse effect on our ability to maintain profitability
and achieve our business plan.

We aurrently depend exdusively on a few third-party co-manufacturers with ane location to
manufacture all of our prodiucts.
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The loss of these co-menufacturers or the inability of these co-manufacturers to fulfill our orders
would adversdy affect our ability to meke timay ddiveries of our product and would have a
meteria adverse effect on our business.

As a foad production company; all of our products nust be conpdiant with regudations by the
Food and Drug Administration (FDA).

We must comply with various FDA rules and regulations, including those regarding product
nnenufacturing, food safety, required testing and appropriate |abaing of our products. Itis possible
that regulations by the FDA and its i nterpretation thereof may change over time. As such, thereis
a risk that our products could become non-compliant with the FDA’s regulations and any such
non-compliance could harm our busi ness.

Our prodkcts rely on independent certification that they are non-GMO, gluten-free ar Kasher.
We rdy on independent certification of our non-GMO, gluten-free and Kosher products and nust
comply with the requirements of independent organizations or certification authorities in order to
labd our products as such. Currently, the FDA does not directly regul ate the |abdling of K osher or
non-GMO products as such. The FDA has defined the term "gluten-free" and we must comply
with the FDA’s definition if we include this label on our products. Our products could lose their
non-GMO and gluten-free catifications if our raw nateia supplies lose their product
certifications for those specified claims. We could also lose our Kosher product certification if a
contract manufacturing plant is found to be in violation of required manufacturing or cleaning
processes. The loss of any of these independent certifications, including for reasons outside of our
control, could harm our business.

Ingredient and packaging costs are volatile and may rise significantly, which nay nexgtively
inpact the profitalility of our business.

We purchase |arge quantities of raw materials, induding ingredients such as[green coffee, cane
turbanado sugar, granulated sugar, sat, figs, vanilla beans, extracts, baking spices, milk. In
addition, we purchase and use significant quantities of paper cups, plastic cups, lids, straws,

napkins, plastic cutlery to package our products. |n recent periods, the prices of [coffee (which
impacts the price of coffee beverages) has been priced dightly above their respective averages and
we have realized some moderatel y negati ve effects from these slightly above average prices inthe
formof increases cost of goods sold and resulting lower gross profit margins. Costs of ingredients
and packaging are volatile and can fluctuate dueto conditions that aredifficult to predict, including
global competition for resources, weather conditions, natura or man-mede disasters, consumer
demand and changes in govemmental trade and agricultural programs. As such, any naterial

upward noverment in raw materials pricing could negatively impact our margins, if wearenot able
to pass these costs on to our customers, or saes if we are forced to increase our prices, which
would adversdaly affect our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Ceartain of our rawnmatenial contracts have nininum purchase conmmmitments that could reciire
us to continue to purchase raw materials even if our sales have daedlined

We are contractually obligated to purchase a certain amount of raw materials from our suppliers
even if we do not have the customer demand to sustain such purchases. The purchase of raw
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meterials, which we are not able to convert into finished products and sdll to our customers would
have a negative effect on our business and results of operations.

Our fullre business, resulis of gperations and finandal condition may be adlersdly affected by
reduced availability of our coreingredients.

Our ability to ensure a continuing supply of our core ingredients at competitive prices depends on
meny factors beyond our control, such as the number and size of farms that grow crops, poor
harvests, changes in national and world economic conditions and our ahility to forecast our
ingredient requirements. The coffee and other ingredients used in our products are vulnerable to
adverse westher conditions and natural disasters, such as floods, droughts, frosts, earthquakes,
hurricanes and pestilences. A dverse weather conditions and natural disasters can lower cropyields
and reduce crop size and quality, which in tum could reduce the available supply of our core
ingredients. |f supplies of our core ingredients are reduced or there is greater demand for such
ingredients, from us and others, we may not be abl e to obtai n sufficient supply on favorable tems,
or at all, which could impact our ability to supply products to distributors and retailers.

Failure by our transportation providars to ddliver our products on time ar at all could resultin
lost sales.

We currently rely upon third-party transportati on providers for a significant portion of our product
shipments. Our utilization of ddivery services for shipments is subject to risks, including increases
in fued prices, which would increase our shipping costs, and employee strikes and inclement
weather, which may impact the ability of providers to provide ddivery services that adequately
meet our shipping needs. We may, fromtime to time, change third-party transportation providers,
and we could therefore face logistica difficulties that could adversdy affect ddiveries. We may
not be able to obtain terms as favorable as those we receive from the third-party transportation
providers that we currently use or may incur additional costs, which in tum would increase our
costs and thereby adversdy affect our operating results.

If our brand or reputation is damaged, the atiractive characteristics that we offer relailers may
dminish, which could diminish the value of our business.

We are currently an attractive brand for our customers because our products are high quality and
generate a high level of retail saes at a premium margin reative to their shelf space. This is due
to both our premium price point and our sales velocity. If our brand or reputation is damaged for
any reason, consumers may no longer be willing to pay a premium price for our products and we
ey no longer be able to generate a high sales ve ocity at our then-current prices. If we no longer
offer these characteristics, retailers may decrease their orders of our products and downgrade the
in-store placement of our products, which could have an adverse effect on our business and results

of operations.

The Company has indicated that it has engaged in certain transactions with related persons.

Plesse see the section of this Memorandum entiied "Transactions with Related Parsons and
Conflicts of | nterest" for further details.
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Risks Rdated to the Securities

The Class B Units will not be fredy trachlle until one year from the initial purchase dcate
Although the Class B Units may be tradhble under fedaral securities law slate seaurities
regulations may aply and each Purchaser should consult with his or her

Y ou should be aware of the |ong-term nature of this investment. Thereis not now and likely will
not be a public market for the Class B Units. Because the Class B Units have not been registered
under the Securities Act or under the securities laws of any state or non-United States jurisdiction,
the Class B Units have transfer restrictions and cannot be resold in the United States except
pursuant to Rule 501 of Regulation CF and under the terms of the Company’s Operating
Agreement. [t is not currently contemplated that registration under the Securities Act or other
securities laws will be effected. Limitations on thetransfer of the Class B Units may also adversdy
affect the price that you might be able to obtain for the Class C Units in a private sale. Purchasers
should be aware of the long-term nature of their investment in the Company. Each Purchaser in
this Offering will be required to represent that it is purchasing the Securities for its own account,
for investment purposes and not with a view to resa e or distribution thereof.

Neathear the Offaiing nor the Securities have been registered under federal or siate seaurities
lavs, leading to an absence of cartain regulation apdlicable to the Conpaany.

No govemmental agency has reviewed or passed upon this Offering, the Company or any
Securities of the Company. The Company also has rdied on exemptions from securities
registraion requirements under applicable state securities laws. Investors in the Company,
therefore, will not receive any of the benefits that such registration would otherwise provide.
Prospectiveinvestors must theref ore assess the adequacy of discl osure and thefai mess of thetems
of this Offering on their own or in conjunction with their persona advisors.

No Guaraniee of Retuirn on I nvestrment

Thereis no assurance that a Purchaser will realize a return on its investment or that it will not lose
its entire investment. For this reason, each Purchaser should read the Form C and all Exhibits
carefully and should consult with its own attorney and business advisor prior to meking any
investment decision.

A nyjority of the Conpany is owned by a small number of owners.

Prior to the Offering the Company’s current owners of 20% or more beneficially own up to 100.0%
of the Company. Subject to any fiduciary duties owed to our other owners or investors under
Georgia law, these owners may be able to exerdse significant influence over metters requiring
owner approval, including the dection of directors or managers and approval of significant
Company transactions, and will have significant control over the Company’s management and
policies. Some of these persons may have interests that are different from yours. For exanple,
these owners may support proposals and actions with which you may disagree. The concentration
of ownership could delay or prevent a change in control of the Company or otherwise discourage
a potential acquirer from attempti ng to obtain control of the Company, which in tum could reduce
the price potential investors are willing to pay for the Company. In addition, these owners could
use their voting influence to maintain the Company’s existing management, delay or prevent
changes in control of the Company, or support or rgect other management and board proposals
that are subject to owner approval.

The Canpaany has the right to extend the Offering deadline
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The Company may extend the Offering deadline beyond whet is currently stated herein. This
means that your investiment may continue to be had in escrow while the Company attempts to
raise the Minimum Anmount even after the Offering deadline stated herein is reached. Y our
investment will not be accruing interest during this time and will simply be held until suchtimeas
the new Offering deadline is reached without the Company receiving the Minimum Amount, at
which time it will be retumed to you without interest or deduction, or the Company receives the
MinimumAmount, at whichtimeit will be re eased to the Company to be used as set forth herein.
Upon or shortly after redease of such funds to the Company, the Securities will be issued and
distributed to you.

The Canpany has the right to end the Offering early.

The Company may also end the Offering early. If the Offering reaches the Mininmum A mount after
30 calendar days but before the Offering deadline, the Company can end the Offering with five
business days’ notice. This means your failure to participate in the Offering in a timely manner,
ey prevent you from being able to partici pate— it also means the Company nay limit the amount
of capital it can raise during the Offering by ending it early.

Thereis no present market for the Securities and we have arbaitranily set the price.

We have arbitrarily set the price of the Securities with reference to the general status of the
securities market and other rdlevant factors. The Offering price for the Securities should not be
considered an indication of the actual vaue of the Securities and is not based on our net worth or
prior eamings. We cannot assure you that the Securities could be resold by you at the Offering
price or at any other price.

Your onnership of the Securities will be sulyect to dilution.

Owners of Securities do not have preamptive rights. If the Company conducts subsequent
Offerings or issuances of Securities, Purchasers in this Offering who do not participate in those
other Securities issuances will experience dilution in their percentage ownership of the Company’s
outstanding Securities. Furthermore, Purchasers may experience a dilution in the value of their
interests depending on the tems and pricing of any future Securities issuances (including the
Securities being sold in this Offering) and the value of the Company’s assets at the time of
issuance.

The Securities will be equily interests in the Canpany and will not constituite indebliechess.
Assuch, theSecurities will rank junior to al existing and future indebtedness and other non-equity
claims onthe Company with respect to assets availabl e to satisfy dainms on the Company, including
inaliquidation of the Company. Additionally, unlikeindebtedness, for which principal and interest
would custormarily be payable on specified due dates, there will be no specified payments with
respect to the Securities and distributions are payable only if, when and as determined by the
Company and depend on, among other matters, the Company’s historical and projected results of
operations, liquidity, cash flows, capital levels, financial

Insuffident Distributions for Tax Purposes

If the Company is taxed as a partnership, income and gains will be passed through to the Conmpany
members on the basis of their alocable interests and should also be reported on each Company
member’s tax return. Thus, Company members will be taxed on their allocable share of Company
income and gain, regardless of the amount, if any, of cash that is distributed to the Company
membars.  Although the Company expects that the Company will meke distributions to the
Company members from time to time, there can be no assurance that the amount distributed will
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be sufficient to cover the income taxes to be paid by a Company member on the Company

member’s share of Company income.

Limitation of Manager’s Liability

The Company’s Limited Liability Company Operating Agreement provides that the Manager and
the Company’s agents, attorneys, affiliates and employees will be indemnified against costs and
expenses incurred in connection with, and will not be liable to the Company or a Purchaser for,
any action taken, or failureto act, on behalf of the Company in connection with the busi ness of the
Company, determined by the Manager to be taken in good faith and in a manner they reasonably
believed to be in or not opposed to the best interest of the Company. Therefore, a Purchaser may
have a more limited right of action against the Manager than would be available if these provisions
were not contained in the Company’s Operating Agreement.

Purchasers Will Not Partidpatein

Our Manager has full responsibility for managing our Company. The Purchasers will not be
entiied to participate in the management or operation of the Company or in the conduct of its
business. The Purchasers may not vote their Securities in the dection of the Company’s Manager
or for any other reason, except in limited circumstances as allowed under Delaware law. Please
consult the Company’s Operating Agreement.

There can be no assurance that we will ever provide liquidity to Purchasers through ather a
sale of the Campany ar a registration of the Securities.

There can be no assurance that any formof merger, cormbination, or sale of the Company will take
place, or that any merger, combination, or sale would provide liquidity for Purchesers.
Furthermore, we may be unable to register the Securities for resde by Purchasas for legal,
commerdial, regulatory, market-related or other reasons. |n the event that we are unable to effect
a registration, Purchasers could be unable to sdl their Securities unless an exemption from
registration is available.

Incame Tax Risks

Each prospective Purchaser is urged to consult with its own representatives, including its own tax
and legal advisors, with respect to the federal (as well as state and local) income tax consequences
of this investment before purchasing any of the Securities. Certain prospective Purchasers, such
a5 organizations which are exempt from federal income taxes, may be subject to federal and state
laws, rules and regulaions which may prohibit or adversdy affect their investment in the
Company. We are not offering you any tax advice upon which you may rely.

Audit by Internal Revenue Seniice

Informnation tax retumns filed by the Company are subject to audit by the Intemal Revenue Service
An audit of the Company’s tax return may lead to adjustments to such return which would require
an adjustment to each Purchaser’s personal federal income taX rebum. Such adjustments can result
in reducing the taxable |oss or increasing the taxable income alocable to the Purchasers from the
amounts reported on the Company’s tax return. In addition, any such audit may lead to an audit
of a Purchaser’s individual income tax retum, which may lead to adjustments other than those
related to the investments in the Securities offered hereby.

The Securities in this Offering are Nan-Voling.
The Securities in this Offering are non-voting and have no protective provisions. As such, you will
not be afforded protection, by any provision of the Securities or as holder of the Securities, inthe
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event of a transaction that may adversdy affect you, including a reorganization, restructuring,
merger or other similar transaction involving the Company.

The Company has the right to conduct multiple “rolling” closings during The Offering.

If the Company meets certain tens and conditions an intenmedi ate cl ose of the Offering can occur,
which will allow the Company to draw down on the proceeds of the Offering committed and
captured during the rdevant period. The Company intends to engage in rolling closings after the
Minimum Offering Amount and other conditions are met. Investors should be mindful that this
means they can make multiple investment commitments in the Offering, which may be subject to
different cancellation rights. For example, if an intermediate close occurs and later a materia
change occurs as the Offering continues, |nvestors previously closed upon will not have the right
to re-confimmor withdraw their investment as it will be deemed completed. |n addition, ourinitial
dosings will cover the tranches of shares with lower purchase prices, so as we conduct rolling
closings, your ability to purchase shares at purchase pricewill be reduced and you may be required
to pay a higher price for the Securities you eect to purchase.

In addition to the risks listed above, businesses are often subject to risks not foreseen or fully
appreciated by the management. It is not possibleto foresee al risks that may affect us. Moreover,
the Company cannot predict whether the Company will successfully effectuate the Company’s
current business plan. Each prospective Purchaser is encouraged to carefully analyze the risks and
merits of an investment in the Securities and should take into consideration when making such
andysis, among other, the Risk Factors discussed above.

THE SECURITIES OFFERED INVOLVE A HIGH DEGREE OF RISK AND MAY RESULT
IN THE LOSS OF YOUR ENTIRE INVESTMENT. ANY PERSON CONSIDERING THE
PURCHASE OF THESE SECURITIES SHOULD BE AWARE OF THESE AND OTHER
FACTORS SET FORTH IN THIS FORM C AND SHOULD CONSULT WITH HIS OR HER
LEGAL, TAX AND FINANCIAL ADVISORS PRIOR TO MAKING AN INVESTMENT IN
THE SECURITIES. THE SECURITIES SHOULD ONLY BE PURCHASED BY PERSONS
WHO CAN AFFORD TO LOSE ALL OF THEIR INVESTMENT.

BUSINESS
Description of the Business

Coffee Ten, LLC (the “Company™) is a growing company whose core business is focused on
roasti ng specia ty-grade coffee and operating its café. The history of the company started in 2019,
when Floyd E. Wilson and Doug Cole along with some small investors opened their first storein
the summer of 2019 in Dawsonville, GA. In the summer of 2022, Because Coffee LLC crested
Because Coffee Holdings Group LLC (BCHG) and transferred 100% of the ownership of Because
CoffeeLLC to BCHG. Theownershipteamof BCHG consisted of the sameindividuals of Because
Coffee LLC with roughly the same ownership percentages. In late summer 2022, the team added
anew Café named Myth & Legend LLC with BCHG becorming 100% owner.

With the success of the two operating Cafes, the team deci ded to execute an expansion plan which
includes this RegCF capital raise and the concurrent Reg D Offering with the same terms. InJ une
2023, Because Coffee Ten, LLC was formed as a new entity. In Novermber 2023, Because Coffee
LLC and Myth and Legend LLC were dissolved as LLC’s and the current two stores and all
upcoming stores now operate under Because Coffee Ten LLC and BCHG will manage roasting
the coffee, handle online sales and e-commerce for the Because Coffee brand.
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Because Coffee
240 Dawson Village Way N #00, Dawsonville, GA 30534

Myth & Legend
431 Vision Dr Suite F101A, Cumming, GA 30040

The Conmpany expansion plan is to begin adding more cafes in sdect target markets in the
Southeast portion of theU.S. Because Coffee offers a uni que experience with thetop 4-10% of the
world’s best coffee as the focus.* Quality and a personalized experience have been the hallmark
of this brand since its inception. The business modd for this company was inspired by both the
mission and success of both Starbucks, as well as Chick-Fil-A. Wethink its important to give back
to the communities we serve and alocate a portion of the profits for each location to support a
variety of community-based and nonprofit causes.

*Source: hitps://sprudge.com/what-is-speciaty-coffes
180293.hitml # ~text= n%20more?4s20concrete, reachesYe20speci al ty%20grade

The superior leve coffee we craft is achieved through sourcing Speciaty Grade green coffee, our
unigue roasting techniques & utilizing roasting technology that produces consistent roast profiles.
Our coffee is consistently described by our customers as “the best coffee they have ever had”.

We plan to have 10 stores in operation by 2026. The Company is curating experiences through our
various retail brands including Because Coffee, Myth and Legend, and Moto Coffee. Projected
revenues for 2023 are $826,000 from our two existing locations. This represents a 68% revenue
increase from 2022. The Company plans to acquire distressed competitor assets, introduce new
retail brands, and expand mobile service capability. Through 2026, we project revenues of an
estimated $19,000,000 with a gross profit of over 50% based on projections by the management
team.

*Source: https://sprudge.comywhat-is-speci al ty-coffes-
180293, hirnl # ~text= n%20more%%20concrete, reaches¥e20speci a ty%20grade

History of the Business

The history of the company started in 2019, when Floyd E. Wilson and Doug Cole along with
some simall investors opened their first store in the summer of 2019 in Dawsorwville, GA. In the
summer of 2022, Because Coffee LLC created Because Coffee Holdings Group LLC (BCHG) and
transferred 100% of the ownership of Because Coffee LLC to BCHG. The ownership team of
BCHG consisted of the sameindividuals of Because Coffee LLC with roughly the same ownership
percentages. In late summer 2022, the team added a new Café named Myth & Legend LLC with
BCHG becoming 100% owner.

With the success of thetwo operating Cafes, the team deci ded to execute an expansion plan which
includes this RegCF capital raise and the concurrent Reg D Offering with the same terms. InJ une
2023, Because Coffee Ten, LLC was formed as a new entity. In Novermber 2023, Because Coffee
LLC and Myth and Legend LLC were dissolved as LLC’s and the current two stores and all
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upcoming stores now operate under Because Coffee Ten LLC and BCHG will manage roasting
the coffee, handle online sales and e-commerce for the Because Coffee brand.

The Company’s Products and/or Services

Product / Service Description Current Market

The superior leve coffee we
creft is achieved through
sourcing Specialty Grade

green coffee, our unigue Consumers of Specialty

Coffee cafe roasting techniques & Grade coffee.

utilizing roasti ng technology

that produces consistent: roast
profiles.

Because Coffee locationin
Dawsonville, GA opened in Consumers of Specialty

BecaseCoffeeCale | 5419 and s the flagship store Grade coffee

for the Because Coffee brand.

Myth & Legend is an offshoot
of the Because Coffee brand.
It openeditsfirst storein
Curmmings, GA inthe

summer of 2023, Ittargets a Consumers of Specialty
Myth & Legend Cafe younger, sophisticated, and Grade coffee
“hipper” consumer that cares
about the socia aspect of
drinking quality coffee with
friends and acquai ntances.

The Company will open additional cafes in select target markets in the Southeast portion of the
U.S. A new cafethat is opening soon will be owned by Because Coffee Ten.

We offer food and beverages through our retail location in Georgia.
The primary products sol d at each store are coffee, bags of coffee, small pastries and merchandise.
The pastries and merchandise meke up asmall percentage of revenue. Our stores offer 12 different

cold coffee drinks, 9 hot coffee drinks, 6 teas variations and 3 non coffeeftea drinks. Each store
typicaly sdls around 3,000 drinks per month.

Compstition

The Company’s primary competitors are Barista Coffee Co. Ltd., Brew Berrys Hospitality Pvt
Ltd., Caffe Nerp Group Ltd., Coffee Day Enterprises Ltd., and Coasta Ltd. In each new market we
enter we will have new loca competitors.

26



Supply Chain and Customer Base

Because Coffee Ten purchases its beans fromlocal vendorsin Georgia. The vendors get their beans
from Honduras.

Loca consumers to stores (Dawsonville, GA; Cumming, GA), online customers (because.coffee),
other coffee store owners, restaurants and businesses who purchase the roasted coffee and sdll
wholesae.

Intellectual Property

Trademarks*

Application
or Goods/
Registration Services
#

Mark FileDate | Re€Distration

Coffee;
Coffee beans;

Ground BECAUSE August 11,
coffee beans; COFFEE 2023

Roasted
coffee beans

98128630 USA

Coffee;
Coffee beans;
Ground
coffee bears;
Roasted
coffee beans

August 11,

98128642 5023

Design Mark USA

Coffee
Coffee beans;

Ground MY TH & August 11,
coffee bears; LEGEND 2023

Roasted
coffee beans

98128653 USA

*The above trademarks, and rdated intdlectual property, is owned by Because Coffee Holdings
Group, Inc., a member and the manager of the Company. Pursuant to the Company’s Operating
Agresment and a License Agresment, Because Coffee Holdings Group, Inc. has granted a non-
exclusive, non-transferable and royaty-freelicense to the Company to usethe intdlectual property
in connection with the ownership, promotion and operation of the Company’s business for as long

as Because Coffee Holdings Group, Inc. beneficially remains a member of the Company.
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Governmental/Regulatory Approval and Compliance

The coffee industry is subject to fedard, state and local govemnmental regulations. The failure to
obtain, renew, or retain licenses or pamits, or the business suffering from a citation or shut down
relating to an inspection or otherwise, would adversdy affect the operations of the business.
Furthermore, due to the COVID-19 pandemic, there are stricter health regulations and guidelines
and increased public concem over food safety standards and controls. Potential food safety
incidents, whether at our fadilities or involving our business partners, could lead to wide public
exposure, which could materially harm our business.

Litigation

There are no existing legal suits pending, or to the Company’s knowledge, threatened, against the
Company.

Other

The Company’s principal address is 240 Dawson Village Way, Suite 100, Dawsonville, GA 30534

The Company conducts business in Georgia.

Because this Form C focuses primerily on information conceming the Company rather than the
industry in which the Company operates, potential Purchasers may wish to conduct their own
separate investigation of the Company’s industry to obtain greater insight in assessing the
Company’s prospects.

USE OF PROCEEDS

The following table lists the use of proceeds of the Offering if the Minimum Anount and
Maximum Anount are raised.

% of Mininum Amount if % of Maxinum Amount if
Use of Proceads Proceeds Minimum Proceads Maximum
Raised Raised Raised Raised

ntenediary 6.00% $1,500 6.00% $72,000

ees

Ca‘j?ug””d 79.9% $19,975 79.9% $958,800
Marketing 4.7% $1,175 4.7% $56,400
Working Capita 9.4% $4,418 0.4% $112,800
Total 100.00% 425,000 100.00% 41,200,000
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The Use of Proceeds chart is not inclusive of fees paid for use of the Form C generation system,
payments to financial and lega service providers, and escrow rdated fees, all of which were
incurred in preparation of the campaign and are due in advance of the closing of the campaign.
The Company does have discretion to ater the use of proceeds as set forth above. The Company
ey alter the use of proceads under the following circunmstances: In the event the Company needs
to use funds for marketing, buying equipment or needing working capital.

The above Use of Proceeds does not include proceeds to be received fromthe Reg D Offering. We
may allocate such proceeds towards different catiegories of operating costs.
OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES

Directors

The officers of the Company are listed below along with all positions and offices held at the
Company and their principal occupation and employment responsibilities for the past three (3)
years and their educational background and qualifications.

Name
Floyd E. Wilson

All positions and offices hald with the Canpany and date such position(s) was hdd with start
and ending chates

Chief Executive Officer: Inception - Present

Prindipal occupation and enployment responsibilities during at least the last three (3) years
with start and ending cbilies

Chief Executive Officer: Collective Influence, | un 2022 - Present
Strategic planning

Corporate decisions

Allocating capital

Founder: Empire Operating Modd May 2021 - Present

Strategic planning

Corporate decisions

Allocating capital

Education
Emory University Business, Management, Marketing, and Related Support Services, 2002 - 2002

Studied Business Management and Marketing through the Co-Leamn Process Hyles-Anderson
College Master’s Degree, Practical Theology 2007-2008

Name
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Doug Cole

All positions and offices hdld with the Canyaany and dbte such position(s) was hdd with start
and ending dates

President: Inception - Present

Principal occupation and enployment responsitilities during at least the last three (3) years
with start and ending dbles

President, Owner, Because Coffee) uly 2018-Present
Daily operations

Store management

Personnd

Brewmester

Customer Service Representative-Alco-Chem, Inc. | an 2018 uly 2018
Customer care

Technical support

Education

B.S. degreein theology.

Manager of the Company

Themanager of the Company is Because Coffee Holdings Group, Inc., a Georgia corporation (the

“Manager™).

Indermification

Indemification is authorized by the Company to directors, officers or controlling persons acting
in their professional capacity pursuant to Georgia law. Indenmnification includes expenses such as
attorney’s fees and, in certain circumstances, judgments, fines and settlement amounts actually
paid or incurred in connection with actual or threatened actions, suits or proceedings involving
such person, except in certain circunstances where a person is adjudged to be guilty of gross
negligence or willful misconduct, unless a court of competent jurisdiction determines that such
indemnification is fair and reasonable under the circumstances.

Employess
The Company currently has 33 enployees in Georgia, USA.
CAPITALIZATION AND OWNERSHIP

Capitalization



The Company has issued the foll owing outstanding securities:

Typeof security Class A Units
Amount outstanding 600,000
Vating Rights Yes
Anti-Dilution Rights No

How this security may limit, diluteor
qualify the Securities issued pursuant to
Regulation CF

The Securities issued pursuant to Regulation
CF will bediluted if/when the Conpany
issues new Class A Units

Percentage ownership of the Company by
the holders of such securities (assuming

conversion prior to the Offering if 65.07%
convertible securities).
Typeof security Class B Units
Amount outstancing 210,960
Vating Rights No
Anti-Dilution Rights No

How this security may limit, diluteor
qualify the Securities issued pursuant to
Regulation CF

The Securities issued pursuant to Regulation
CF will be diluted if/when the Company
issues new Class B Units

Percentage ownership of the Company by
the holders of such Securities (assuming
conversion prior to the Offering if
convertible securities).

22.88%
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Class C Units

Typeof security
111,111 reserved for future issuance under an
slelitelemn e Equity Incentive Plan
Vating Rights No
No

Anti-Dilution Rights

How this security may limit, diluteor
qualify the Securities issued pursuant to
Regulation CF

The Securities issued pursuant to Regulation
CF will bediluted if/when the Company
issues new Class C Units

Percentage ownership of the Company by
the holders of such securities (assuming
conversion prior to the Offering if
convertible securities).

12.05%

In addition to as described above, differences between the Securities baing issued pursuant to

Regulation CF and each other class of securities of the Company are set forth in the Company’s

Operating Agreement.

The Company has the following debt outstanding:

Typeof debt EIDL Loan
Name of creditor US Smrell Business Adrmin
Amount outstanding $18,670
I nterest rate and payment schedule 3.75% and $84/month
Amortization schedule N/A
Describe any collateral or security None
Maturity date June 3, 2050
Other material terms N/A
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Typeof debt Loan
Name of areditor Wilson Group LLC
Amount outstanding $31,574
I nterest rate and payment schedule 0%, no payments
Amortization schedule N/A
Desaribe any collaberal or security None
Maturity date None
There are no payments nor interest accrual of
Other material terms theloan. Theloan can be paid off at the
discretion of the Company.

The Company has conducted the following prior Securities offerings in the pest three years:

Exemption
from
Security Number Money Useof Offering Registration
Type Sold Raised Proceeds Date Usad or
Public
Offering
M arketing/br
anding, build-
outs, vehicle,
working
Class B Units 210,960 $2,637,000 | capital, debt | June 20, 2023 | Rule 506(b)
reti rement,
admin/capital
raise/oversigh
t

Valuation

Based on the Offering price of the Securities, the pre-money value ascribed to the Company is
$7,500,000 (this does not account for any funds raised in the Reg D Offering).

Before making an investment deci sion, you should carefully consider this val uation and the factors
used to reach such valuation. Such valuation may not be accurate and you are encouraged to
determine your own i ndependent val ue of the Company prior to investing.

Ownership
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A magjority of the Company is owned by a few people/entities. Those people/entities are Because
Coffee Holding Group and Collective Equity, Inc.

Below the beneficial owners of 20% percent or more of the Company’s outstanding voting equity
securities, calculated on the basis of voting power, are listed aong with the amount they own.

Name Percentage Owned Prior to Offering
Because Coffee Holding Group, Inc. 21.69%%
Collective Equity, Inc 43.38%

The beneficial owners of 20% or more of Because Coffee Holding Group, Inc. are:

Name Percentage Owned
Floyd E. Wilson 49.26%
Doug Cole 23.41%

The beneficial owners of 20% or more of Collective Equity, Inc. are:

Name Percentage Owned
Floyd E. Wilson 33.333%
Andrew Cordle 33.333%
Dany Fleyshimen 33.333%

Following the Offering, the Purchasers will own 0.22% of the Company if the Mininmum A mount
is raised and 9.43% if the Maxinmum Amount is raised, on a fully diluted basis (which includes
Class C Units reserved for a future Equity Incentive Pool).

If the Maximum Amount of the Reg D Offering is reached, then the foregoing percentages dilute
10 0.18% and 7.95%, respectivdy.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Please see the finandal information listed on the cover page of this Form C and attached
hereto in addition to the falowing information. Finandal statements are attached hereto as
Exhibit A.

Operations



Prior to the cregtion of Because Coffee Ten LLC in 2023, Because Coffee operated as a stand
aoneLLC from2018-2022. In 2022 that entity was dissolved and Because Coffee Holding Group
absorbed al assats and oparations. The Company has successfully completed a 3-year product
development phase in which it brought to market a variety of products, such as its proprietary
roasted coffee brand with over 25 offerings, and a line of merchandise and cafe menu with
specialized drinks and syrup blends. The Company exceeded its revenue expectations during its
first year of post testing operations. In 2021 the Company had revenues of $305,178, with a profit
of $4,499.

The Company has expanded during the second half of 2023 with the opening of 1 additional store.
We plan to open 1 additional store and a food truck in Q1 of 2024. We plan to have 10 stores in
operation by 2026. Building on our Key Success Events and introducing our New Products to the
merket, Because Coffee will launch an aggressive growth plan over the next 5 years. The Company
expects an Accumul ative Revenue of $19,121,323, with an operating profit of $5,977,905 through
2026 based on management's projections and subject to the risk disclosures.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Offering proceeds are essential to our operations. We plan to use the proceeds as set forth
above under "use of proceeds"”, which is an indispensabl e e ement of our business strategy.

The Company does not have any additional sources of capital other than the proceeds from the
Offering.

Capital Expenditures and Other Obligations

$6,556.42 monthly lesse for Myth & Legend Coffee House to the Cumming Downtown
Deve opment Authority.

Material Changes and Other Information

Because Coffee LLC and Myth & Legend LLC will be consolidated into Because Coffee Ten,
LLC within the next month or so. These companies are currently owned by Because Coffee
Holdings Group, Inc.

Trends and Uncertainties

After reviewing the above discussion of the steps the Company intends to teke, potential
Purchasers should consider whether achievement of each step within the estimated time frame is
reglistic in their judgment. Potential Purchasers should also assess the consequences to the
Company of any ddays in taking these steps and whether the Company will need additiona
financing to accomplish them

The financia statements are an important part of this Form C and should be reviewed in their
entirely. Thefinancia statements of the Company are attached hereto as Exhibit A.

THE OFFERING AND THE SECURITIES
TheOffering
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The Company is offering up to 96,000 Class B Units for up to $1,200,000.00. The Company is
attermpting to raise a minimum amount of $25,000.00 in this Offering (the "Mininum Amount™).
The Company must recave commitments from investors in an amount totaling the Minimum
Anmount by June 1, 2024 (the "Offering Deadline") in order to receive any funds. If the sumof the
investment commitments does not equal or exceed the Minimum Anount by the Offering
Deadline, no Securities will be sold in the Offering, investment commitments will be cancded and
committed funds will be retumed to potential investors without interest or deductions. The
Company has the right to extend the Offering Deadline at its discretion. The Company will accept
investments in excess of the Minimum Amount up to $1,200,000.00 (the "Maximum Amount”)
and the additional Securities will be allocated on a pro-reta besis.

The price of the Securities does not necessarily bear any relati onship to the asset value, net worth,
revenues or other established criteria of value, and should not be considered indi cative of the actual
value of the Securities.

In order to purchase the Securities you must make a commitment to purchase by conpleting the
Subscription Agreement. Purchaser funds will be held in escrow with North Capital Private
Securities Corporation until the Minimum Anmount of investments is reached. Purchasars may
cance an investment commitrment until 48 hours prior to the Offering Deadline or the Closing,
whichever comes first using the cancdlaion mechanism provided by the Intermediary. The
Company will notify Purchasers when the Minimum Amount has been reached. If the Company
reaches the Minimum Amount prior to the Offering Deadline, it may close the Offering at least
five (5) days after reaching the Minimum Amount and providing notice to the Purchasars.

If any material change (other than reaching the Minimum Amount) occurs reated to the Offering
prior to the Offering Deadline, the Company will provide notice to Purchasers and receive
reconfirmations from Purchasers who have already made commitments. If a Purchaser does not
reconfirm his or her investment commitment after a material change is made to the terms of the
Offering, the Purchaser’s investment commitment will be canceled and the committed funds will
be returmed without interest or deductions. If a Purchaser does not cancd an investment
commitment before the Minimum Anount is reached, the funds will be rel eased to the Company
upon closing of the Offering and the Purchaser will receive the Securities in exchange for his or
her investment. Any Purchaser funds recaved after the initial closing will be rdeassed to the
Company upon a subsequent closing and the Purchaser will receive Securities via Electronic
Certificate/PDF in exchange for his or her investment as soon as practicable thereafter.

In the event that $25,000 in investments is committed and received by North Capital Private
Securities Corporation and more than thirty (30) days remain before the Offering Deadline, the
Company may conduct the first of multiple closings of the Offering (an “Intermediate Close™),
provided all investors receive notice that an Intermediate Close will occur and funds will be
released to the Company, at least five (5) business days prior to the Intermediate Close (absent a
meteria change that would reguire an extension of the offering and reconfimation of the
investment commitment). 1 nvestors who committed on or before such notice will have untl 48
hours before the | ntermedi ate Close to cancel their investment commitment.

Subscription Agreements are not binding on the Company until accepted by the Company, which
reserves the right to rgject, in wholeor in part, in its sole and absol ute discretion, any subscription.
If the Company regjects all or a portion of any subscription, the applicable prospective Purchaser’s
funds will be returned without i nterest or deduction.
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The price of the Securities was determined arbitrarily. The minimumanmount that a Purchaser may
invest in the Offering is $1,000.00.

The Offering is being made through Jumpstat Micro, Inc. dib/a Issuance Express, the
Intermediary. Thefollowing two fidds below set forth the compensation being paid in connection
with the Offering.

Commission/Fess
A cash-based success fee of 6.0% of the dollar amount raised in the Offering after each successful
dosing, including any intermediary cosings.

Stock, Warrants and Other Canpensation
N/A

Transfer Agent and Registrar
The Company will act as transfer agent and registrar for the Securities.

TheSeaurities
We request that you please review our organizationa documents in conjunction with thefollowing
summary informetion.

Capitalization

Attheinitial closing of this Offering (if the Minimum A mount is sold and assuming the maximum
amount of the Reg D Offering is reached), the Company will have 600,000 Class A Units and
402,000 Class B Units issued and outstanding, with 111,1111 Class C Units reserved for future
issuance under an Equity | ncentive Plan.

Distributions

After paying expenses and establishing appropriate reserves, the Company may meke distribution
of profits to the holders of the Securities or "Membership Units." The Company’s Manager
determines when and how distributions are made. Distributions are calculated by Depending on
the amount of cash flow and profitability each quarter. Distributions are apportioned to holders of
Membership Units on a pro-rata basis based on a member’s respective percentage ownership.
Distributions are required to be mede at the sol e discretion of the Manager. The Membership Units
are not entitied to a preferred retum.

Allocations

To determine how the economic gains and losses of the Company will be shared, the Operating
Agreement allocates net income or loss to each Member’s Capital Account. Net income or loss
includes all gains and losses, plus al other Company iters of income (such as interest) and less
al Company expenses. Generally, net income and net loss for each year will be alocated to the
Members in a manner consistent with the manner in which distributions will be mede to the
Members.

Capital Contributions
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The holders of Membership Units are not required to meke additional capital contributions
following the Offering to the Company.

Transfar

Holders of Mambership Units will not be able to transfer their Membership Units without the
approval of the Company. All transfers of Membership Units are subject to state and federa
securities |aws.

Withdraval

The Company is not required to meke payments to a holder of Membership Units upon such
holder’s withdrawal from the Company.

Vating and Contral
The Securities have the following voting rights: None

The Company has an Operating Agreement in place. Purchasers will be required to become a party
to the Operating Agreament by executing the Subscription Agreement.

Anti-Dilution Rights

The Securities do not have anti-dilution rights.

Restrictions on Transfer

Any Securities sold pursuant to Regulation CF being offered may not be transferred by any
Investor of such Securities during the one-year holding period begi nning when the Securities were
issued, unless such Securities weretransferred: 1) to the Company, 2) to an accredited investor, as
defined by Rule 501(d) of Regulation D of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, 3) as part of
an Offering registered with the SEC or 4) to a member of the family of the Investor or the
equivalent, to atrust controlled by the | nvestor, to atrust created for the benefit of afamily member
of the Investor or the equivalent, or in connection with the death or divorce of the | nvestor or other
similar circumstances. "Member of thefamily" as used herein means a child, stepchild, grandchild,
parent, stepparent,  grandparent, spouse  or  spousal equivalent, sibling,
nother/father/daughter/sorysi ster/brother-in-law, and includes adoptive reationships. Remember
that although you may legally be abl e to transfer the Securities, you may not be able to find another
party willing to purchase them. The Company’s Operating A greement contains additional transfer
restrictions.

Other Material Tams
The Company does not have the right to repurchase the Class B Units.

TAX MATTERS
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Thefollowing is a discussion of certain material aspects of the U.S. federa income taxation of the
Company and its Members that should be considered by a potential purchaser of an Interest in the
Company. A complete discussion of al tax aspects of an investment in the Company is beyond
the scope of thisForm C. Thefollowing discussion is only intended to identify and discuss certain
sdientissues. |n view of the complexities of U.S. federal and other income tax laws applicable
to limited liability companies, partnerships and securities transactions, a prospective investor is
urged to consult with and rely solely upon his tax advisers to understand fully the federal, state,
local and foreign tax consequences to that investor of such an investment based on that investor’s
particular facts and dircunmstances.

This discussion assumes that M embers hold their Units as capital assets within the meaning of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"). This discussion does not address all
aspects of U.S. federa taxation that may be rdevant to a particular Member in light of the
Member’s individual investment or tax circumstances. In addition, this discussion does not
address (i) state, local or non-U.S. tax consequences, (ii) any withholding taxes that may be
required to be withheld by the Company with respect to any particular Member or (iii) the special
tax rules that nmay apply to certain Members, including, without limitation:

. insurance companies;

tax-exempt organizations (except to the limited extent discussed in "Tax-Exempt
Members" below);

financial institutions or broker-dealers;

Non-U.S. holders (as defined below);
. U.S. expatriates;
. subchapter S corporations;
. U.S. holders whose functiona currency is not the U.S. dollar;
. regul ated investment companies and REITS;
. trusts and estates;
. persons subject to the atemative minimumtax provisions of the Code; and
. persons holding our Units through a partnership or similar pass-through entity.
This discussion is based on current provisions of the Code, final, temporary and proposed U.S.
Treasury Regulations, judicial opinions, and published positions of the IRS, all as in effect on the
date hereof and all of which are subject to differing intarpretations or change, possibly with
refroactive effect. The Manager has not sought, and will not seek, any ruling fromthe IRS or any
opinion of counsel with respect to the tax consequences discussed herein, and there can be no

assurance thet the IRS will not take a position contrary to the tax consequences discussed herein
or that any position taken by the IRS would not be sustained.
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As used inthis discussion, theterm "U.S. holder" means a person that is, for U.S. federal income
tax purposes, (i) an individual citizen or resident of the U.S., (ii) a corporation (or other entity
treated as a corporation for U.S. federa income tax purposes) created or organized inthe U.S. or
under the laws of the U.S., any state thereof, or the District of Columbia, (iii) an estate theincome
of which is subject to U.S. federa income taxation regardless of its source, or (iv) atrustif (a) a
court within the U.S. is able to exercise primary supervision over the administration of the trust
and one or more U.S. holders have the authority to control all substantial decisions of the trust, or
(b) it has in effect a valid eection to be treated as a U.S. holder. As used in this discussion, the
term "non-U.S. holder™ means a beneficial owner of Units (other than a partnership or other entity
treated as a partnership or as a disregarded entity for U.S. federal income tax purposes) that is not
aU.S. holder.

Thetax treatment of a partnership and each partner thereof will generally depend upon the
status and activities of the parthership and such partner. A Meamber that is treated as a
partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes should consult its own tax advisor
regarding the U.S. federal income tax considerations applicable to it and its partners.

This discussion is only a summary of material U.S. federal income tax consexquences of the
Offering. Potential investors are urged to consult their own tax advisors with respect tothe
particular tax conserquences to them of the Offering induding the effect of any federal tax
laws other than income tax laws, any state, local, or non-U.S. tax laws and any applicabletax
treaty.

This summary of certain income tax considerations applicable to the Company and its
Membersis considered to bea correct interpretation of existing laws and regulationsin force
on the date of this Foom C. No assurance can be given that changes in existing laws or
regulations or their interpretation will not occur after the date of this Form C or that such
guidance or interpretation will not be applied retroactively.

Classification as a Partnership

Under the Code and the Treasury Regulations promulgated thereunder (the "Regulations”), as in
effect on the date of this Form C, including the "check the box" entity classification Regulations,
aU.S. entity with more than one member that is not autormati cally dassified as a corporation under
the Regulations is treated as a partnership for tax purposes, subject to the possible application of
the publicly traded partnership rules discussed below. Accordingly, the Company should be
treated as a partnership for tax purposes, unless it files a "check the box" dection to be tregted as
a corporation for tax purposes. The Company does not intend to filea "check the box" dectionto
treat the Company as a corporation for tax purposes. Thus, so long as the Company conplies with
the Operati ng Agresment, the Company should be treated as a partnership for tax purposes, subject
to the specia rules for certain publicly traded partnerships described beow. If it were determined
that the Company should be dassified as an association taxable as a corporation (as a result of
changed interpretations or administrative positions by the IRS or otherwise), the taxable income
of the Company would be subject to corporate income taxation when recognized by the Company,
and distributions from the Company to the Members would be treated as dividend income when
received by the Members to the extent of the current or accumulated eamings and profits of the

Company.

Even with the "check the box" Regulations, certain limited liability companies may be taxable as
corporations for U.S. federal income tax purposes under the publicly traded partnership ("PTP")
rules set forth in the Code and the Regul ations.
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Code section 7704 treats publicly traded partherships that engage in active business activities as
corporations for federal income tax purposes. Publidy traded partnerships ind ude those whose
interests (a) aretraded on an established securities market (ind uding the over-the-counter market),
or (b) are readily tradable on a secondary mearket or the substantial equivalent thereof. The
Manager believes that interests in the Company will not be traded on an established securities
merket. The Manager aso bdieves that i nterests in the Company probably should not be deemed
to be readily tradable on a secondary mearket or the substantial equivalent thereof. However, there
can be no assurancethat the Intema Revenue Service (the"IRS") would not successfully challenge
these positions.

Code section 7704(c) provides an exception from treatment as a publicly traded partnership for
partnerships 90% or more of the income of which is certain passive-type income, including
interest, dividend and capital gain income from the disposition of property held to produce
dividend or interest income. While the Company expects to meet this test, no assurance can be
given that the Company will satisfy this requirement in each year.

Even if the Company has 10% or more of its income in a year from income that does not qualify
a5 passive-type income, the Company may not be treated as a publicy traded partnership under
Code section 7704 by virtue of cetain safe habors from such treatment provided in the
Regulations. The failure to meet the safe-harbor requirements does not necessarily result in a
parthership being classified as a publicly traded partnership. One safe-harbor rule provides that
interests in a partnership will not be considered readily tradable on a secondary market or the
substantial equivalent thereof if (a) all interests in the partnership were issued in a transaction (or
transactions) that was not registered under the Securities Act and (b) the partnership does not have
more than 100 partners at any time during the taxable year of the partnership. The Offering of the
Units will not be regi stered under the Securities Act. Generally, an entity that owns Unitsiis treated
as only 1 partner in determining whether there are 100 or more partners. However, all of the
owners of an entity that is a pass-through vehicle for tax purposes and that invests in a partnership
are counted as partners if substantially all of such entity’s value is attributable to its interest in the
partnership, and a principal purpose of the tiered structure is to avoid the 100 partner limitation.
The Company nmay not comply with this safe-harbor if the Company admits more than 100
Members.

Even if the Company exceeds 100 Members and thus does not qualify for this safe-harbor, the
Operating Agreement contains provisions restricting transfers and withdrawal s of Units that may
cause the Units to be treated as not being tradable on the substantial equivaent of a secondary
merket.

Taxation of Operations

Assuming the Company is dassified as a partnership and not as an association taxable as a
corporation, the Company is not itsaf subject to U.S. federal income tax but will file an annual
information return with the IRS. Each Member of the Company is required to report separately
on his income tax return his distributive share of the Company’s net long-term and short-term
capital gains or losses, ordinary income, deductions and credits. The Conpany may produce short-
term and long-term capital gains (or losses), as well as ordinary income (or loss). The Company
will send annually to each Member a form showing his distributive share of the Company’s items

of income, gains, |osses, deductions and credits.
Each Merber will be subject to tax, and liable for such tax, on his distributive share of the

Company’s taxable income and loss regardless of whether the Member has received or will receive
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any distribution of cash from the Company. Thus, in any particular year, a Member’s distributive
share of taxableincome fromthe Company (and, possibly, the taxes i mposed on that income) could
exceed the amount of cash, if any, such Mamber receives or is entitled to withdraw from the

Company.

Under Section 704 of the Code, a Member’s distributive share of any item of income, gain, loss,
deduction or credit is governed by the Operating A greement unless the all ocations provided by the
Operating Agreement do not have "substantial economic effect.” The Regulations promul gated
under Section 704(b) of the Code provide certain "safe harbors” with respect to allocations which,
under the Regulations, will be deemed to have substantia economic effect. The validity of an
alocation which does not satisfy any of the "safe harbors” of these Regulations is determined by
taking into account all facts and circumstances rd ating to the economic arrangements among the
Members. While no assurance can be given, the Manager bdieves that the alocations provided
by the Operating Agreament should have substantial economic effect. However, if it were
determined by the IRS or otherwise thet the allocations provided in the Operating Agreement with
respect to a particular item do not have substantial economic effect, each Member’s distributive
share of that item would be determined for tax purposes in accordance with that Member’s interest
in the Company, taking into account all facts and drcunstances.

Distributions of cash and/or marketable securities which effect a return of a Member’s Capital
Contribution or which are distributions of previously taxed income or gain, to the extent they do
not exceed a Member’s basis in his interest in the Company, should not result in taxable income
to that Member, but will reduce the Member’s tax basis in the Interests by the amount distributed
or withdrawn. Cash distributed to aMember in excess of the basisin his Unitsis generally taxable
either as capital gain, or ordinary income, depending on the drcunmstances. A distribution of
property other than cash generaly will not result in taxableincome or | oss to the M ember to whom
itis distributed.

Informati on will be provided to the Members of the Company so that they can report their income
fromthe Company.

Taxation of Membership Units - Limitations on L asses and Deductions

The Code provides several limitations on a Member’s ability to deduct his share of Company losses
and deductions. To the extent that the Company has interest expense, a non-corporate Member
will likely be subject to the "investment interest expense” limitations of Section 163(d) of the
Code. Investment interest expense is interest paid or accrued on indebtedness incurred or
continued to purchase or carry property held for investment. The deduction for i nvestment i nterest
expenseis limited to net investment income; i.e., the excess of investment income over investment
expenses, which is determined at the partner level. Excess investment interest expense thet is
disallowed under these rules is not lost permanently, but may be carried forward to succeading
years subject to the Section 163(d) limitations. Net long-term capital gains on property held for
investment and quaified dividend income are only included in investment income to the extent
the taxpayer eects to subject such income to taxation at ordinary rates.

Under Section 67 of the Code, for non-corporate Members certain miscelaneous itemized
deductions are alowable only to the extent they exceed a "floor" amount equal to 2% of adjusted
gross income. If or to the extent that the Company’s operations do not consti tute atrade or business
within the meaning of Section 162 and other provisions of the Code, a non-corporate Member’s
distributive share of the Company’s investment expenses, other than investment interest expense,
would be deductible only as miscdlaneous itemized deductions, subject to such 2% floor. In
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addition, there may be other limitations under the Code affecting the ability of an individual
taxpayer to deduct miscellaneous itemized deductions.

Capital losses generally may be deducted only to the extent of capital gains, except for non-
corporate taxpayers who are allowed to deduct $3,000 of excess capital 10sses per year against
ordinary income. Corporate taxpayers may carry back unused capital losses for three years and
ey carry forward such | osses for five years, non-corporate taxpayers may not carry back unused
capita losses but may carry forward unused capital losses indefinitaly.

Tax shelter reporting Regulations may require the Company and/or the Members to file certain
disclosures with the IRS with respect to certain transactions the Company engaged in  that result
in losses or with respect to certain withdrawals of | nterests in the Company. The Company does
not consider itself a tax shelter, but if the Company were to have substantial losses on certain
transactions, such losses may be subject to the tax shelter reporting requirements even if such
transactions were not considered tax shelters. Under the tax shelter reporting Regulations, if the
Company engages in a "reportable transaction,” the Company and, under certain circumstances, a
Member would be required to (i) retain all records material to such "reportable transaction”; (ii)
complete and file "Reportable Transaction Disclosure Statement” on IRS Form 8886 as part of its
federa income tax retumn for each year it participates in the "reportable transaction”; and (iii) send
a copy of such formto the IRS Office of Tax Shdter Analysis at the time the first such tax return
is filed. The scope of the tax shelter reporting Regulations may be affected by further IRS
guidance. Non-conpliance with the tax shelter reporting Regulations may involve significant
penalties and other consequences. Disclosure information, to the extent required, will be provided
with the annual tax information provided to the Members. Each Member should consult its own
tax advisers as to its obligations under the tax shelter reporting Regulations.

Medicare Contribution T axes

Members that are individuals, estates or trusts and whose income exceeds certain thresholds
generaly will be subject to a 3.8% Medicare contribution tax on uneamed income, including,
among other things, dividends on, and capital gains from the sale or other taxable disposition of,
our Securities, subject to cartain limitations and exceptions. Members should consult their own tax
advisors regarding the effect, if any, of such tax on their ownearship and disposition of our
Securities.

Taxation of Membership Units - Other Taxes

The Company and their Members may be subject to other taxes, such as the altemative minimum
tax, state and loca income taxes, and estate, inheritance or intangible property taxes that may be
imposed by various jurisdictions (see "State and Loca Taxation" beow). Each prospective
investor should consider the potential consequences of such taxes on an investment in the
Company. Itis the responsibility of each prospectiveinvestor: (i) to become satisfied as to, among
other things, the legal and tax consequences of an investment in the Company under state law,
including the laws of the state(s) of his domicile and residence, by obtaining advice from one’s

own tax advisers, and to (ii) file all gppropriate tax returns that may be required.
Tax Returns; Tax Audits

Company iterms will be reported on the tax returms for the Company, and all Members are required
under the Code to treat the itens consistently on their own retums, unless they filea statement
with the RS disclosing theinconsistency. 1nthe event the income tax retums of the Company are
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audited by the IRS, the tax treatment of income and deductions generdly is determined at the
Company levd in a single proceeding rather than by individual audits of the Members. The
Company will designate a Tax Matters Member, which will have considerable authority to meke
decisions affecting the tax trestment and procedura rights of al Members. In addition, the Tax
Matters Member will have the authority to bind certain M embers to setl ement agreements and the
right on behalf of all Members to extend the statute of limitations relating to the Members’ tax
liabilities with respect to Company itenes.

Stateand Local Taxation

In ackition to the federal income tax consequences described above, prospective investors
should consider potential state and local tax consaguences of an investiment in the Company.
No attempt is made herein to provide an in-depth discussion of such state or local tax
conseqjuences. State and local laws may differ from federal income tax laws with respect to
the treatment of specific items of income, gain, loss, deduction and credit. A Member’s
distributive share of the tax@bleincome or loss of the Company generally will berequired to
beindudex in determining his income for state and local tax purposss in thejurisdictionsin
which heisaresident

Each prospective Member must consult his own tax advisers regarding the state and local
tax consequences to him resulting from an investment in the Company.

Disdosureto " Opt-out”’ of a Rdiance Opinion

Pursuant to IRS Circular No. 230, investors should be advised that this Form C was not
intended or written to be used, and it cannot be used by an investor or any taxpayer, for the purpose
of avoiding penalties that may be imposed on the taxpayers. This Form C was written to support
the private offering of the | nterests as described herein. The taxpayer should seek advice based on

the taxpayer’s particular circumstances from an independent tax adviser.
Tax-Exempt Members

Members which are tax-exempt entities, including, but not limited to, Individual Retirement
Accounts (IRAs), should generally not be subject to Federa income tax on their income
altributable to the Company under the unrelated business taxable income ("UBTI") provisions of
the Code so long as their investment in the Company is not itsdf leveraged. UBTI includes
"unrelated debt-financed income" which generaly consists of (i) income derived by an exempt
organization (directly or through a partnership) from income-producing property with respect to
which thereis "acquisition i ndebtedness" at any time during the taxable year, and (ii) gains derived
by an exempt organization (directly or through a partnership) fromthe disposition of property with
respect to which there is "acquisition indebtedness" at any time during the twel ve-month period
ending with the date of such disposition. An exempt organization’s share of the income or gains
of the Company which is tregted as UBTI, if any, may not be offset by losses of the exempt
organization either from the Company or otherwise, unless such |osses are treated as attributable
to an unreated trade or business (eg., losses from securities for which there is acquisition
indebtedness).

To the extent that the Company generates UBTI, the applicable Federal tax ratefor such a Member
generally would be either the corporate or trust tax rate depending upon the nature of the particular
exempt organization. An exempt organization may be requi red to support, to the satisfaction of
the IRS, the method used to calculate its UBTI. The Company will be required to report to a
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Member which is an exempt organization informetion as to the portion, if any, of its income and
gains from the Conpany for each year which will be treated as UBTI. The caculaton of such
amount with respect to transactions entered into by the Company is highly complex, and thereis
no assurance that the Company’s calculation of UBTI will be accepted by the IRS. No attempt is
mede herein to deal with al of the UBTI consequences or any other tax consequences of an
investment in the Company by any tax-exempt Member. Each prospective tax-exempt Member
nust consult with, and rely exclusively upon, its own tax and professional advisers.

Future Tax L egislation, Necessity of Obtaining Professional Advice

Future amendments to the Code, other legislation, new or amended Treasury Regulations,
administrative rulings or decisions by the IRS, or judiciad decisions may adversdy affect the
federa income tax aspects of an investment in the Company, with or without advance notice,
refroactively or prospectively. The foregoing analysis is not intended as a substitute for careful
tax planning. The tax meatters rdating to the Company are complex and are subject to varying
interpretations. Moreover, the effect of existing income tax laws and of proposed changes in
income tax laws on Members will vary with the particular circunmstances of each investor and, in
reviewing this Form C and any exhibits hereto, these matters should be considered.

Accordingly, each prospective Member must consult with and rely solely upon his own
professional tax advisers with respect to the tax results of an investment in the Company based on
that Member’s particular facts and circumstances. In no event will the Manage or its managing
nmembers, principals, affiliates, members, officers, counsal or other professional advisers beliable
to any Member for any federd, state, local or foreign tax consequences of an investment in the
Company, whether or not such consequences are as described above.

Disclosure | ssues
A Purchaser (and each employee, representative, or other agent of the investor) may disclose to
any and dal persons, without limitation of any kind, the tax treatment and tax structure of an

investment in the Company and al materials of any kind (i ncluding opinions or other tax analysis)
that are provided to the investor relating to such tax treatment and tax structure.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PERSONS AND CONFLICTS OF INTEREST
Redated Person Transactions

Fromtime to time the Company may engage in transactions with related persons. Rdated persons
are defined as any director or officer of the Company; any person who is the beneficial owner of
10 percent or more of the Company’s outstanding voting equity securities, calculated on the basis
of voting power; any promoter of the Company; any immediate family member of any of the
foregoing persons or an entity controlled by any such person or persons.

The Company has the following transactions with related persons:

Loans
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Relatex] Person/E ntity

Wilson Group LLC

Rdationship to the Company

Wilson Group is owned by Floyd E.
Wilson, the beneficia owner of the
Company and its CEO

Total amount of money invalved $31,574
Benefits or compensation received by None
relabed person
Benefits or compensation received by None
Company
Description of thetransaction The money was used to help with the cost

of equi pment and renovations for the

Myth and Legend cafe. Theloan holds

0% interest and can be paid off a the
discretion of the Company.

Conflicts of I nberest

To the best of our knowl edge the Company has not engaged in any transactions or relationships,
which may giveriseto a conflict of interest with the Company, its operations or its security holders.

OTHER INFORMATION

Bad Actor Disdosure

The Company is not subject to any Bad A ctor Disqualifications under any relevant U.S. securities

laws.




SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of Sections 4(a)(6) and 4A of the Securities Act of 1933 and
Regulation Crowdfunding (§ 227.100 et seq.), the issuer certifies that it has reasonabl e grounds to
beievethat it meets al of the requirements for filing on Form C and has duly caused this Formto
be signed on its behalf by the duly authorized undersigned.

/s/ Floyd E. Wilson
(Signature)

Floyd E. Wilson

(Name)

CEO
(Tide)

Pursuant to the requirements of Sections 4(a)(6) and 4A of the Securities Act of 1933 and
Regulation Crowdfunding (§ 227.100 et seq.), this Form C has been signed by the following
persons in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

/s/Floyd E. Wilson
(Signature)

Floyd E. Wilson

(Name)

CEO
(Tide)

12/13/23
(Date)

Instructions.

L The form shall be signed by the issuer, its principal executive officer or officars, its
principal financia officer, its controller or principal accounting officer and at |east a mgjority of
the board of directors or persons performing similar functions.

2. The name of each person signing the form shall be typed or printed beneath the signature.

Intentional misstaterments or omissions of facts constitute federal criminal violations. See 18
U.S.C. 1001.
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BECAUSE
COFFEE

Because Coffee Ten LLC (the “Company™) a Delaware Limited Liability Company

Financial Statements (unaudited) and
Independent Accountant’s Review Report

As of Inception — June 16, 2023
&

Years ended December 31,2022 & 2021 (Predecessors)



Mongio &
\ Associates CPAS1LLc

Tax - Accounting - Advisory

Saving Time, Money, & 5tress

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REVIEW REPORT
To Management
Because Coffee Ten LLC

We have reviewed the accompanying financial statements of the Company which comprise the balance
sheets as of Inception on June 16, 2023, as well as December 31, 2022 & 2021 for its predecessors, and the
related statements of operations, statements of changes in members' equity, and statements of cash flows
for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. A review includes primarily
applying analytical procedures to management’s financial data and making inquiries of Company
management. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit, the objective of which is the expression
of an opinion regarding the financial statements as a whole. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

Management®’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error.

Accountant’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to conduct the review engagement in accordance with Statements on Standards for
Accounting and Review Services promulgated by the Accounting and Review Services Committee of the
AICPA. Those standards require us to perform procedures to obtain limited assurance as a basis for
reporting whether we are aware of any material modifications that should be made to the financial
statements for them to be in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America. We believe that the results of our procedures provide a reasonable basis for our conclusion.

Accountant’s Conclusion

Based on our review, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the
accompanying financial statements in order for them to be in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter Regarding Going Concern

As discussed in Note 8, certain conditions indicate substantial doubt that the Company will be able to
continue as a going concern. The accompanying financial statements do not include any adjustments that
might be necessary should the Company be unable to continue as a going concern. Management has
evaluated these conditions and plans to generate revenues and raise capital as needed to satisfy its capital
needs.

On behalf of Mongio and Associates CPAs, ILL.C
Vince Mongio, CPA, EA, CIA, CFE, MACC

Miami, FL
December 11, 2023

Vm?& %;sz



BECAUSE COFFEE TEN LLC
BALANCE SHEET (UNAUDITED)

June 16, 2023 (Inception)

Assets

Total Assets -

Liabilities and Members' Equity
(Deficit)

Total Liabilities -

Total Members' Equity (Deficit) -

Total Liabilities and Members'
Equity (Deficit) -




BECAUSE COFFEE TEN LLC (PREDECESSORS)
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (UNAUDITED)

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Assets
Current Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents 43,574 11,845

Ivventory 4,593 506

Prepaid Expenses 2,273 1,085

Other Current Assets 502 -
Total Current Assets 50,942 14,336
Non Current Assets:

Equipment, Net of Accumulated

Depreciation 29,343 4,644

Leaschold Improvements, Net of

Accumulated Amortization 28,309 -

Right Of Use Asset - Operating

Lease, Net of Accunmlated

Amortization 28.900 43203
Total Non Current Assets 86,552 47,847
Total Assets 137,494 62,183
Liabilities and Members' Equity
(Deficit)

Liabilities
Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable 30,434 1,312

Payroll Liabilities 4,576 4,576

Due to Related Party 31,574 17.000

Sales Tax Payable 1,656 1,681

Short-term Lease Liability -

Operating Lease 14,505 13.829
Total Current Liabilities 82,745 38,398
Non Current Liabilities:

EIDL 18,366 18,062

Long-term Lease Liability -

Operating Lease 12,581 27,086
Total Non Current Liabilities 30,947 45,148
Total Liabilities 113,692 83,546
Members' Equity (Deficit)

Members' Capital 30,478 (25.862)

Net Income (Loss) (6,676) 4,499
Total Members' Equity (Deficit) 23,802 (21,363)

Total Liabilities and Members'
Equity (Deficit) 137,494 62,183




BECAUSE COFFEE TEN LLC (PREDECESSORS)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
(UNAUDITED)

For the Years Ended

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Revenues:
412,384 305,178
Total Revenues 412,384 305,178
Cost of Sales
147,525 95,489

Total Cost of Sales 147,525 95,489
Gross Profit 264,859 209,689
Operating Expenses:

Advertising and Marketing 6,808 2,762

Legal and Professional 11,147 1,300

Selling, General and

Administrative 231,911 182,679

Rent and Lease 21,000 16,610

Depreciation 2,926 1,212
Total Operating Expenses 273,792 204,563
Other (Income) Expense:

Other Income (2,898) (14)

Interest Expense 641 641
Total Other (Income) Expense (2,257) 627
Loss from Continuing Operations
Before Income Taxes (6,676) 4,499

Provision for Income Taxes

Net Income (Loss) (6.676) 4,499



BECAUSE COFFEE TEN LLC (PREDECESSORS)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASHFLOWS (UNAUDITED)

For the Years Ended December 31,

2022 2021
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Income (Loss) (6.676) 4,499
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation 2,926 1,212
PPP Loan Forgiveness
Operating Lease Expense 474 (2,288)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts Payable 29,122 75
Inventory (4,087) 4,484
Payroll Liabilities - 4,576
Prepaid Expenses (288) (1,985)
Sales Tax Payable (25) 1,681
Other (503) 231
Net Cash Flows provided by (used in) Operating
Activities 20,943 12,485
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Equipment (27.625) (3,230)
Leaschold Improvements (28,309) -
Net Cash Flows provided by (used in) Investing
Activities (55,934) (3,230)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Capital Contributions 51,842 -
Capital Distributions - (4,873)
Due to Related Party 14,574 (10,000)
EIDL 304 641
Net Cash Flows provided by (used in) Financing
Activities 66,720 (14,232)
Net change in cash 31,729 (4,977)
Cash and Equivalents at the beginning of the year 11,845 16,822

Cash and Equivalents at the end of the year 43,574 11,845




BECAUSE COFFEE TEN LLC (PREDECESSORS)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN MEMBERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

Members' Capital Total Members'

Units Amount Deficit
Balance on January 1, 2021 - S (20,989) S (20,989)
Capital Contributions - $ - $ -
Capital Distributions - $ (4.873) § (4,873)
Net Income - 3 4,499 3 4,499
Balance on December 31, 2021 - s (21,363) s (21,363)
Capital Contributions - $ 51,842 $ 51,842
Capital Distributions - 5 - 3 -
Net Loss - $ (6.676) $ (6,676)
Balance on December 31, 2022 - s 23,802 s 23,802




Because Coffee Ten LL.C
Notes to the Unaundited Consolidated Financial Statements
June 16th, 2023 (Inception)
&

December 31st, 2022
$USD

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF ACTIVITIES

Because Coffee Ten LLC ("the Company") was formed in Delaware on June 16%, 2023, The Company plans to earn
revenue by selling Specialty Grade coffee through various retail stores, e-<commerce, and wholesale (please see “Basis
of Presentation” note). The Company's headquarters is in Dawsonville, Georgia. The Company's customers will be
located in the United States.

The Company will conduct a crowdfunding campaign under regulation CF in 2023 and 2024 to raise operating capital
NOTE 2 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation

Our fmancial statements are prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”).
Our fiscal year ends on December 31. The Company has no interest in variable interest entities; however, it has two
(2) predecessor entities that dissolved as of its inception date in June 2023, The Company will assume their assets and
liabilities and continue their operating activities under the “Because Coffee” brand.

Basis of Consolidation

The financials of the Company as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 include its two (2) predecessors: Myth and Legend
LLC, a Georgia Limited Liability Company formed on August 16%, 2022 (“the ML LLC"), and Because Coffeec LLC,
a Georgia Limited Liability Company formed on May 10%, 2019 (*the BC LLC”). The BC LLC was the origmal entity
that sold specialty grade coffee through various retail stores, e-commerce, and wholesale, and the ML LLC operated
a brick-and-mortar coffee shop. All significant intercompany transactions are eliminated.

Use of Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include all eash balances, and highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or
less when purchased.

Fawr Value of Financial Instruments

ASC 820 “Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures™ establishes a three-tier fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes
the inputs in measuring fair value. The hierarchy prioritizes the mputs into three levels based on the extent to which
inputs used in measwuring fair value are observable in the market.

These tiers include:

Level 1: defined as observable inputs such as quoted prices in active markets;



Level 2: defined as inputs other than quoted prices m active markets that are either directly or indirectly observable;
and

Level 3: defined as unobservable inputs in which little or no market data exists, therefore requiring an entity to develop
its own assumptions.

Concentrations of Credit Risks

The Company’s financial instruments that are exposed to concentrations of credit risk primarily consist of its cash and
cash equivalents. The Company places its cash and cash equivalents with financial institutions of high credit
worthiness. The Company’s management plans to assess the financial strength and credit worthiness of any parties to
which it extends funds, and as such, it believes that any associated credit risk exposures are limited.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue from the sale of products and services in accordance with ASC 606, “Revenue
Recognition” following the five steps procedure:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with customers

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to performance obligations

Step 5: Recognize revenue when or as performance obligations are satisfied

The Company’s primary performance obligation is the sale and delivery of coffee products. Revenue is recognized at
the point of sale through local cafés, or at the time of shipment via its online store, net of estimated returns. Coincident
with revenue recognition, the Company establishes a liability for expected returns and records an asset (and

comresponding adjustment to cost of sales) for its right to recover products from customers on settling the refind
liability.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Expenditures for renewals and improvements that significantly add to
the productive capacity or extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs
are charged to expense. When equipment is retired or sold, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are
eliminated from the accounts and the resultant gain or loss is reflected in income. Depreciation is provided using the
double-declining balance method, based on useful lives of the assets.

The Company reviews the carrying value of property and equipment for immpaimment whenever events and
circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable from the estimated future cash flows
expected to result from its use and eventual disposition. In cases where undiscounted expected future cash flows are
less than the carrying value, an impairment loss is recognized equal to an amount by which the carrymg value exceeds
the fair value of assets. The factors considered by management in performing this assessment melude cuirent operating
results, trends and prospects, the manner in which the property is used, and the effects of obsolescence, demand,
competition, and other economic factors. Based on this assessment there was no inpaimment for December 31, 2022.

A summary of the Company’s property and equipment is provided below:

: Useful Life in Accummlated . Book Value as
Preperty Type Years Cloat Depreciation Disposals 0f12/31/22

Equipment 7 34,355 (5,012) - 29,343

Grand Total - 34,355 (5,012) - 29,343




Inventory

The Company's inventory consists of finished goods and is valued at cost on the “first-in, first-out” (FIFO) basis. A
summary of the Company's inventory is provided below:

Inventory Type 2022 2021
Finished Goods 4,593 506
Grand Total 4,593 506

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs associated with marketing the Company’s products and services are generally expensed as costs are
incurred.

General and Administrative
General and administrative expenses consist of payroll and related expenses for employees and independent
contractors involved in general cotporate functions, including accounting, finance, tax, legal, business development,

and other miscellaneous expenses.

Equity Based Compensation

The Company has no equity-based compensation plan,

Income Taxes
The Company is a pass-through entity therefore any income tax expense or benefit is the responsibility of the
company’s owners. As such, no provision for income tax is recognized on the Consolidated Statements of Operations

and Comprehensive Income (Losg).

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

The FASB issues ASUs to amend the authoritative literature in ASC. There have been a number of ASUs to date that
amend the original text of ASC. Management believes that those issued to date either (1) provide supplemental
guidance, (i1) are technical corrections, (iii) are not applicable to us or (iv) are not expected to have a significant impact
on our financial statements.

NOTE 3 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company follows ASC 850, “Related Party Disclosures,” for the identification of related parties and disclosure
of related party transactions.

In June 2022 and 2020, the Company’s majority owner advanced funds in the respective amounts of $10,000 and
$17,000 for the purposes of funding operations. Furthermore, certain expenses in the amount of $4,686 were paid on
the Company’s behalf. These payables bear no interest rate, no security interest, and are due upon demand. They had
a total ending balance of $31,574 and $17,000 as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

NOTE 4 - COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENCIES, COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS
We are currently not involved with or know of any pending or threatening litigation against the Company or any of

its officers. Further, the Company is currently complying with all relevant laws and regulations. The Company does
not have any long-term commitments or guarantees.



Leases

The Company accounts for its lease in accordance with ASC 842 (Leases). Under ASC 842, leases are identified on
the Balance Sheet as right-of-use assets with corresponding liabilities. The right-of-use asset is amortized over its
operating cycle using the effective interest rate at the time of lease inception. Below are the weighted average interest
rates and future minimum lease payments.

Operating Lease #]

In July 2018, the Company entered into a lease agreement for commercial retail space. In September 2021, the
Company entered into a third amendment exercising its right to extend the lease term for an additional period of 3
years commenting on November 1, 2021, and terminating on October 1, 2024. This extension calls for monthly lease
payments of $1,167 that shall escalate at a rate of 4% each year. Future nummum lease payments are provided below:

Year
Ending
Lease expense . 2022-12
Operating lease expense 16,995.44
Short-term lease expense *
Variable lease expense -
Sublease income *
Total 16,995.44
Other Information
(Gams) losses on sale-leaseback transactions, net *
Cash paid for amounts included in the measwement of lease liabilities
Operating cash flows from operating leases 15,260.03
ROU assets obtained in exchange for new operating lease liabilities 42,027.43
Weighted-average remaming lease term in years for operating leases 1.83
Weighted-average discount rate for operating leases 0.79%
Maturity Analysis Finance Operating
2023-12 - 14.657.04
2024-12 - 12,618.70
2025-12 - -
2026-12 - -
2027-12 - -
Thereafter - -
Total undiscounted cash flows - 27,275.74
Less: present value discount - (189.48)
Total lease liabilities - 27,086.26
Operaring Lease #2

In May 2022, the Company entered into a lease agreement for approximately 3,087 square feet of commercial retail
space. The agreement calls for monthly lease payments of $6.432 over a term of 5 years. Upon termination of the
original term, the Company has the option to renew this lease agreement for two additional consecutive five-year
periods that will be subject to lease payment escalations. The Company will pay a security deposit in the amownt of
$12,846 and is permitted to perform improvements to the leased premises. As of December 31, 2022, the Company
has incurred leaschold improvements in the amount of $28,309. No representation has been made regarding
management’s intent to exercise the Company’s lease renewal options; therefore, these improvements will be
amortized over the mitial 5-year term at the commencement of the lease which shall occur on the earlier of (1) 120



Debt Summary

days following the Landlord’s delivery of the premises, or (ii) the date on which the Company shall open the premises
for business. Because this lease commenced in 2023, no future minimum lease payments were required as of December
31,2022, A summary of the aforementioned leasehold mprovements is provided below:

Useful Life in Accummlated i Book Value as

Eraperty Type Years Cast Arortivation. | Pk of 12/31/22
Leaschold Improvements 5 28,309 - - 28.309
Grand Total = 28,309 = = 28,309

NOTE 5 - LIABILITIES AND DEBT

In June 2020, the Company entered into an Economic Injury and Disaster Loan (EIDL) for $17,100 with an interest
rate of 3.75% and maturity in June 2050. This loan is not secured and its total ending balance, including principal and
accrued interest, was $18,366 and $18,062 as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

For the Year Ended December 2022 For the Year Ended December 2021
In gebt o Principal  Imterest Maturity | Current C S ¢ Total Accrued | Current cNon— " Total Accrued
A Amount Rate Date Portion HERED Indebtedness Interest Portion ipres Indebtedness Interest
Name Portion Portion
EIDL 17,100 3.75% 2050 - 17,100 17,100 1,266 - 17.100 17.100 962
Due to Related On ey
Darty 31574 NA Dot 31574 . 31,574 - - 17,000 17.000 -
Total 31574 17,100 48,674 1,266 - 34,100 34100 962

Debt Principal Maturities 5
Years Subsequent to 2022

Year

Amount

2023

31,574

2024

2025

2026

2027

Thereafter

NOTE 6 -EQUITY

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Company’s predecessors were multi-member LLCs with a single class of
ownership interest. Profits and losses were allocated to members in accordance with the Company’s Operating

Agreement.

Since inception on June 16, 2023, the Company was a multi-member LLC with nmltiple classes of ownership interest
disclosed below. Profits and losses are allocated to members in accordance with the Company’s current Operating

Agreement.

The Company intends to issue Class A Membership Units that are entitled to one vote per unit and may receive
distributions upon the sole discretion of the Company’s Manager,

The Company intends to issue Class B Membership Units that are not entitled to vote and may receive distributions
upon the sole discretion of the Company’'s Manager.




The Company intends to issue Class C Membership Units that do not require any capital contributions. These units
are intended to constitute “‘profits interests” within the meaning of Revenue Procedures 92-27 and 2001-43 and are
non-voting for all pwposes. Class C Unitholders may receive distributions; however, they may be limited by the
Company's Manager for the purposes of preserving the units’ characterization as *“‘profits interests”.

NOTE 7 -SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company has evaluated events subsequent to December 31, 2022 to assess the need for potential recognition or
disclosure in this report. Such events were evaluated through December 11, 2023, the date these financial statements
were available to be issued.

In June 2023, the Company filed for a 506(b) to sell 400,000 Class B Membership Units for total proceeds of
$5.000,000. As of Nov 1, 2023, a total of 204,906 units have been sold for total proceeds of $2,562,000.

NOTE 8 - GOING CONCERN

The accompanying balance sheet has been prepared on a going concern basis, which contemplates the realization of
assets and the satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of business. The entity and its predecessors have realized
losses in 2022, and may continue to generate losses, and has experienced negative cash flows from operating activities
during both years under review. The Company’s ability to continue as a going concern in the next twelve months
following the date the financial statements were available to be issued is dependent upon its ability to produce revermes
and/or obtain financing sufficient to meet cuwrent and future obligations and deploy such to produce profitable
operating results. Management has evaluated these conditions and plans to generate revenues and raise capital as
needed to satisfy its capital needs. No assurance can be given that the Company will be successful in these efforts.
These factors, among others, raise substantial doubt about the ability of the Company to continue as a going concern
for a reasonable period of time. The financial statements do not include any adjustments relating to the recoverability
and classification of recorded asset amounts or the amounts and classification of liabilities.
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BECAUSE
(B ez

Invest in Because Coffee

Specialty coffee experts, obsessed with sourcing, roasting, and
serving high quality product to meet rapidly growing demand. With a
growing base of loyal customers, Because Coffee is brewing a plan

to expand across the Southeast U.S.A.

Unit Price: $12.50 Minimum Investment: $1,000

VIEW FORM C ALL SEC FILINGS

¢ Opportunity

Because Ccffee was started in North Georgia by six friends. Five who love coffee and one whe pretty much
hates coffee (we forgive him though...kinda). We are focused on leveraging our skills and interests to make
a difference in causes that are bigger than we are. Coffee is always a part of how we get stuff done, so we
had this great idea to roast our own coffee and create a new avenue to help others

Acting as CEQ, Eddie Wilson, also known as the "King of Exits®, will be directing this effort to supply the
Southeast portion of the US with a premium Grade A coffee that many have come to describe as "the best
coffee they have ever had”.

Through expanding our retail footprint, exploring subscription revenues, and expanding mobile service
capability, Because Coffee has projected revenues to reach $5,000,000 by 2026 (this is an estimate by the
management team, and is subject to the risk factors cutlined in the Form C that should be reviewed by all
investaors).

Terms: Privacy Investor Lagin

BECALISE COFFEE
BRAZIL

Invest in Because Coffee Ten LLC

Total Invested: Awaiting Data

fleg CF | Class B Units

Uinit Prica

Minimum Investmeant
Irvest Lintil

Targot Man, Offering

Max. Offaring Size

View Form C

T NOW

Opportunity

Markat

Traction

Founders

Revenue Mode|
Financial Highlights
Updates

Discussion

$12.50
$1,000
06/01/2024
$25,000
$1,200,000



Why Invest?

+ The quality and flavor of our beans combined with our roasting technology produces what many
consider to be quite possibly the best cup of coffee they have ever had.

» The founding team has successfully completed a 3-year product development phase in which it
brought to market a variety of products, such as its proprietary roasted coffee brand with over 25
offerings, and a line of merchandise and cafe menu with specialized drinks and syrup blends.

+ On top of the two existing retail locations we operate today, we plan to have 10 stores in operation by
2026 (this is an estimate by the management team, subject to risk factors outlined in the Form C).

® Market

The burgeoning specialty coffee market is growing exponentially, worldwide, due to growth in urban
communities, increased Gen Z income and a growing level of coffee consumption in green coffee producing
countries.

"The global coffee market is anticipated to reach
US$144.68 billion in 2025, growing at a CAGR of
7.60% from 2021-2025."

Source: Businesswire 2021

Problem

People don't know what they don't know, and for many that is a delicious cup of premium Grade A coffee.
The big-name coffee chains lack the variety and unigue character that keep our customers coming back
once they've tried a cup of our high-guality product.

Solution

'We take our coffee seriously. We use digital scales for weight to get the perfect 161 ratio. Prepping our
filters by running warm water through first to get rid of any paper flavor is just a small part. Use of a Burr
grinder is important to get the freshest and most consistent grind, Having filtered water is critical as it is the
largest part of your cup of coffee. All small elements to what many call the world's best cup of coffes, With
the expertise we've developed, we are eguipped to rofl out a multi-location retail strategy to access a
broader base of petential customers.

Over 66% of Americans drink coffee every single
day, with today's consumption at a two-decade

high.

Source: NCAUSA 2022

& Traction & Background

Because Coffee Ten, LLC is a growing company whose core business is focused on roasting specialty-grade
coffee and operating its café. The history of the company started in 2019, when Eddie Wilsen and Doug
Cole along with some small investors opened their first store in the summer of 2018 in Dawsonville, Ga. In
the summer of 2022, Because Coffee LLC created Because Coffee Holdings Group LLC (BCHG) and
transferred 100% of the ownership of Because Coffee LLC to BCHG. The awnership team of BCHG
consisted of the same individuals of Because Coffee LLC with roughly the same ownership percentages. In
late summer 2022, the team added a new Café named Myth & Legend LLC with BCHG becoming 100%
owner.

Aftar 2 3 waar tact narind  tha cramnanu lainchad hanan nanaratinn revanie docdnn the firet vaore Af
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operations. Projected revenues for 2023 are $828,000. Through 2026, we project revenues of close to
$5,000,000 with gross profit of over 50% (this is an estimate by the management team, subject to risk
factors outlined in the Form C).

Because Coffee Ten, LLC is a growing company whose core business is focused on roasting specialty-grade
coffee and operating its café, The history of the company started in 2019, when Eddie Wilsen and Doug
Cole along with some small investars opaned their first store in the summer of 2019 in Dawscnville, GA. In
the summer of 2022, Because Coffee LLC created Because Coffee Holdings Group LLC (BCHG) and
transferred 100% of the ownership of Because Coffee LLC to BCHG, The ownership team of BCHG
consisted of the same individuals of Because Coffee LLC with roughly the same ownership percentages. In
late summer 2022, the team added a new Café named Myth & Legend LLC with BCHG becoming 100%
owner.

With the success of the two operating Cafes, the team decided to execute an expansion plan which
includes this RegCF capital raise and a simultaneous Reg D 506(h) with the same terms. In June 2023,
Because Coffee Ten, LLC was formed as a new entity. In November 2023, Because Coffes LLC and Myth
and Legend LLC were dissclved as LLC's and the current two stores and all upcoming stores now operate
under Because Coffee Ten LLC and BCHG will manage roasting the coffee, handle online sales and e-
commerce for the Because Coffee brand.

Our current locations are:

Because Coffee (240 Dawson Village Way N #100, Dawsonville, GA 30534) - Because Coffee location in
Dawsonville, GA opened (n 2012 and is the flagship store for the Because Coffee brand.

Myth & Legend (431 Vision Dr Suite F1074, Cumming, GA 30040} - Myth & Leaend is an offshoot of the
Because Coffee brand. It opened its first store in Cumnminas, GA in the summer of 2023, It targets a
younger, sophisticated, and "hippar” consumer that cares about the soclal aspect of drinking quality coffea
with friends and acquaintances.

The Company expansion plan is to open more cales in select target markets in the Southeast portion of the
ULS. Because Coffee offers a unique experience with the top 4-10% of the world's best coffee as the focus
(source: Sprudge, 2021). Quality and a personalized experience have been the hallmark of this brand since
its incepticn. The business model for this company was inspired by both the mission and success of both
Starbucks, as well as Chick-Fil-A. We think its important to give back to the communities we serve and
allocate a portion of the profits for each location to support a variety of community-based and nonprofit
causes.

With the success of the two operating Cafes, the team decided to execute an expansion plan which
includes this RegCF capital raise and a simultanecus Reg D 506(b) with the same terms. In June 2023,
Because Coffee Ten, LLC was formed as a new entity. In Movember 2023, Because Coffee LLC and Myth
and Legend LLC were dissolved as LLC's and the current two stores and all upcoming stores now operate
under Because Coffee Ten LLC and BCHG will manage roasting the coffee, handle online sales and e-
commerce for the Because Coffee brand.

Our current locations are:

Because Coffee (240 Dawson Village Way N #100, Dawsonville, GA 30634) - Because Coffee location in
Dawsonville, GA opened in 2012 and is the flagship store for the Because Coffee brand.

Myth & Legend (431 Vision Dr Suite F107A, Cumming, GA 30040} - Myth & Legend is an offshoot of the
Because Coffee brand. It opened its first store in Cummings, GA in the summer of 2023, |t targets a
younger, sophisticated, and “hipper® consumer that cares about the social aspect of drinking quality coffee
with friends and acquaintances,

The Company expansion plan is to open more cafes in select target markets in the Southeast portion of the
U.5. Because Coffee offers a unique experience with the top 4-10% of the world's best coffee as the focus
(source: Sprudae, 2021). Quality and a personalized experience have been the halimark of this brand since
its inception. The business model for this company was inspired by both the mission and success of both
Starbucks, as well as Chick-Fil-A. We think its important to give back to the communities wa serve and
allocate a portion of the profits for each location to support a variety of community-based and nonprofit
causes.

2 4 274
Cafes In Gperation Cafes to be Opened in 2024 Google & Star Reviews

& Founding Team

Our phencmenal product and excellent management team make us uniquely equipped for success in our
target market.



Eddie Wilson : “:l,

Chief Executive Officer

Biography x
Eddie turns ideas into reality, He's got an unusual balance of big vision & compassion for people. He
anjoys making coffee origin trips & uses a smart mug in his office (he's so fancy). Also, Eddie wears
lots of hats. You can find out more online, Eddie graduated from The Ohio State University School of
Broadcasting with a degree in Broadcast Sales and Marketing. He studied marketing at Georgia Tech
and business management at Emary University, He is now the President of Affinity Worldwide and
speaks at business conferences across the country.

Doug Cole

President/Roastmaster

Biography b4
Doug has been a Lead Roaster for & years. He has spant 15 years in nenprofit education and
administration. He holds a B.A, degree in theclogy. Doug first discovered specialty coffee at a street
fair & he's been a coffee geek ever since, He gets super exciled aboul all the random stuff he finds
and likes, and enjoys jamming on the guitar for his kids at bedtime each night,

® Revenue Model

Products & Services

Our stores offer 12 different cold coffee drinks, 9 hot coffes drinks, 6 teas variations and 3 non coffeeftea
drinks, as well as pastries and merchandise. Each store typically sells around 3,000 drinks per month,

+ Coffee beverages & coffee beans - The superior level coffee we craft is achieved through sourcing
Specialty Grade green coffee, our unigue roasting technigues & utilizing reasting technolegy that
produces consistent roast profiles.

+ Non-coffee beverages - We offer various other non-coffee beverages at our retail locations,
including teas.

+ Pastries & merchandise - We offer pastries and merchandise at our retail locations, though these
product categories only make up a small percentage of overall revenue,

Operations
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efficient workflow possible. We have identified and created a dashboard to measure all of our important
KPl's {Key Performance Indicators) and can quickly rectify any underparforming or unproductive
behaviors/activities.

‘We have measured our Cash Conversion Cycle and can accurately predict from the second we spend
maney on any product or service until we expect to see that money return to the business.

Financials, Risks, & Securities

Financials

In the summer of 2023 Because Coffee launched an aggressive growth plan to open 8 cafes and 1 mobile
shop by 2026, With plans to expand into Florida along side current prime retail locations, future total
ravenues are estimated by management to approach $5 million by 2026 (this is an astimate by the
management team, subject to risk factors outlined in the Form C).

For a full plcture of company financials, please refer to the Form C offering document filed with the SEC. All
investors should review the Form C before making an investment,

Risk Disclosures

View Risk Disclosures

Securities

Concurrently with this Offering, the Company is conducting a private placement offering under Rule 506(b)
of Requlation D to raise up to $5,000,000 on the same terms as this Offering (the "Reg D Offering”). The
Class B Units above do not reflect the total number of Class B Units being offered in the Reg D Offering.

The price of the Securities has been determined by the Company and does not necessarily bear any
relationship to the assets, book value, or potential earmings of the Company or any other recognized criteria
or value.

Use of Proceeds
% of Minimum Amount if % of Maximum Amount if
Use of Proceeds Procecds Minimum Proceeds Maximum
Raised Raised Raised Raised
Intprmedincy 6.00% §1,500 6.00% $72,000
Fees
Capital
Build-outs T79.9% £19,975 79.9% 958,800
Marketing 4.7% $1,175 4.7% £56,400
Working Capital 9.4% 34,418 9.4% $112,800
Total 100.00% $25,000 100.00% $1,200,000

The Use of Proceeds chart is not inclusive of fees paid for use of the Form C generation system, payments
to financial and legal service providers, and escrow related fees, all of which were Incurred in preparation of
the campaign and are due in advance of the closing of the campaign. The Company does have discretion to
alter the use of proceeds as set forth above. The Company may alter the use of proceeds in the event the
Company needs to use funds for marketing, buying equipment or needing working capital, The above Use
of Proceeds does not Include proceeds to be received from the Reg D Offering. We may allocate such
proceeds towards different categories of operating costs.

Updates

Recent press coverage, company announcements, and offering-related updates can be found below.
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Subscription Agreement

THE SECURITIES ARE BEING OFFERED PURSUANT TO SECTION 4(A)(6) OF THE
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933 (THE "SECURITIES ACT") AND HAVE NOT BEEN
REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OR THE SECURITIES LAWS OF ANY
STATE OR ANY OTHER JURISDICTION. THERE ARE FURTHER RESTRICTIONS ON
THE TRANSFERABILITY OF THE SECURITIES DESCRIBED HEREIN.

THE PURCHASE OF THE SECURITIES INVOLVES A HIGH DEGREE OF RISK AND
SHOULD BE CONSIDERED ONLY BY PERSONS WHO CAN BEAR THE RISK OF THE
LOSS OF THEIR ENTIRE INVESTMENT.

Because Coffee Ten LLC
240 Dawson Village Way, Suite 100
Dawsonville, GA 30534

Ladies and Gentlemen:

The undersigned understands that Because Coffee Ten, LLC , a limited liability company
organized under the laws of Delaware (the “Company™), is offering up to $1,200,600.00 of Class
B Units (the “Securities”) in a Regulation CF Offering. This Offering is made pursuant to the Form
C, dated December 13, 2023 (the “Form C”). The undersigned further understands that the
Offering is being made pursuant to Section 4(a)(6) of the Securities Act and Regulation CF under
the JOBS Act of 2012 and without registration of the Securities under the Securities Act of 1933,
as amended (the “Securities Act™).

1. Subscription. Subject to the terms and conditions hereof and the provisions of the Form C, the
undersigned hereby irrevocably subscribes for the Securities set forth on the signature page hereto
for the aggregate purchase price set forth on the signature page hereto, which is payable as
described in Section 4 hereof. The undersigned acknowledges that the Securities will be subject to
restrictions on transfer as set forth in this subscription agreement (the “Subscription Agreement”).

2. Acceptance of Subscription and Issuance of Securities. It is understood and agreed that the
Company shall have the sole right, at its complete discretion, to accept or reject this subscription,
in whole or in part, for any reason and that the same shall be deemed to be accepted by the
Company only when it is signed by a duly authorized officer of the Company and delivered to the
undersigned at the Closing referred to in Section 3 hereof. Subscriptions need not be accepted in
the order received, and the Securities may be allocated among subscribers.

3. The Closing. The closing of the purchase and sale of the Securities (the “Closing™) shall take
place at 11:59 p.m. New York time on June I, 2024, or at such other time and place as the
Company may designate by notice to the undersigned.

4. Payment for Securities. Payment for the Securities shall be received by North Capital Private
Securities Corporation (the “Escrow Facilitator”) from the undersigned by wire transfer of
immediately available funds or other means approved by the Company at least two (2) days prior
to the Closing, in the amount as set forth on the signature page hereto. Upon the Closing, the
Escrow Facilitator shall release such funds to the Company. The undersigned shall receive notice
and evidence of the entry of the number of the Securities owned by undersigned reflected on the

1



books and records of the Company and verified and by (the “Transfer Agent™), which shall bear a
notation that the Securities were sold in reliance upon an exemption from registration under the
Securities Act.

5. Company Operating Agreement. The undersigned acknowledges that the Securities will be
subject to restrictions on transfer as set forth in this Subscription Agreement and the Company’s
Operating Agreement, effective as of June 16, 2023 (the “Operating Agreement™), which the
undersigned has had the opportunity to review. By executing this Subscription Agreement, the
undersigned will become a party to the Operating Agreement as a “Class B Member” holding
Class B Units in the Company.

6. Representations and Warranties of the Company. As of the Closing, the Company represents
and warrants that:

a) The Company is duly formed and validly existing under the laws of Delaware, with full power
and authority to conduct its business as it is currently being conducted and to own its assets; and
has secured any other authorizations, approvals, permits and orders required by law for the conduct
by the Company of its business as it is currently being conducted.

b) The Securities have been duly authorized and, when issued, delivered and paid for in the manner
set forth in this Subscription Agreement, will be validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable, and
will conform in all material respects to the description thereof set forth in the Form C and the
Operating Agreement.

¢) The execution and delivery by the Company of this Subscription Agreement and the
consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby (including the issuance, sale and delivery
of the Securities) are within the Company’s powers and have been duly authorized by all necessary
corporate action on the part of the Company. Upon full execution hereof, this Subscription
Agreement shall constitute a valid and binding agreement of the Company, enforceable against the
Company in accordance with its terms, except (1) as limited by applicable bankruptcy, insolvency,
reorganization, moratorium, and other laws of general application affecting enforcement of
creditors” rights generally, (ii) as limited by laws relating to the availability of specific
performance, injunctive relief, or other equitable remedies and (iii) with respect to provisions
relating to indemnification and contribution, as limited by considerations of public policy and by
federal or securities, “blue sky™ or other similar laws of such jurisdiction (collectively referred to
as the “State Securities Laws”).

d) Assuming the accuracy of the undersigned’s representations and warranties set forth in Section
6 hereof, no order, license, consent, authorization or approval of, or exemption by, or action by or
in respect of, or notice to, or filing or registration with, any governmental body, agency or official
is required by or with respect to the Company in connection with the execution, delivery and
performance by the Company of this Subscription Agreement except (i) for such filings as may be
required under Regulation CF promulgated under the Securities Act, or under any applicable State
Securities Laws, (ii) for such other filings and approvals as have been made or obtained, or (iii)
where the failure to obtain any such order, license, consent, authorization, approval or exemption
or give any such notice or make any filing or registration would not have a material adverse effect
on the ability of the Company to perform its obligations hereunder.

7. Representations and Warranties of the Undersigned. The undersigned hereby represents and
warrants to and covenants with the Company that:



a) General.

1. The undersigned has all requisite authority (and in the case of an individual, the capacity) to
purchase the Securities, enter into this Subscription Agreement and to perform all the obligations
required to be performed by the undersigned hereunder, and such purchase will not contravene any
law, rule or regulation binding on the undersigned or any investment guideline or restriction
applicable to the undersigned.

ii. The undersigned is a resident of the state set forth on the signature page hereto and is not
acquiring the Securities as a nominee or agent or otherwise for any other person.

iii. The undersigned will comply with all applicable laws and regulations in effect in any
jurisdiction in which the undersigned purchases or sells Securities and obtain any consent,
approval or permission required for such purchases or sales under the laws and regulations of any
Jurisdiction to which the undersigned is subject or in which the undersigned makes such purchases
or sales, and the Company shall have no responsibility therefor.

iv. Including the amount set forth on the signature page hereto, in the past twelve (12) month
period, the undersigned has not exceeded the investment limit as set forth in Rule 100(a)(2) of
Regulation CF.

b) Information Concerning the Company.

1. The undersigned has received a copy of the Form C. With respect to information provided by
the Company, the undersigned has relied solely on the information contained in the Form C to
make the decision to purchase the Securities.

il. The undersigned understands and accepts that the purchase of the Securities involves various
risks, including the risks outlined in the Form C and in this Subscription Agreement. The
undersigned represents that it is able to bear any and all loss associated with an investment in the
Securities.

iii. The undersigned confirms that it is not relying and will not rely on any communication (written
or oral) of the Company, Jumpstart Micro, Inc. d/b/a Issuance Express (the “Intermediary”), or
any of their respective affiliates, as investment advice or as a recommendation to purchase the
Securities. It is understood that information and explanations related to the terms and conditions
of the Securities provided in the Form C or otherwise by the Company, the Intermediary or any of
their respective affiliates shall not be considered investment advice or a recommendation to
purchase the Securities, and that neither the Company, the Intermediary nor any of their respective
affiliates is acting or has acted as an advisor to the undersigned in deciding to invest in the
Securities. The undersigned acknowledges that neither the Company, the Intermediary nor any of
their respective affiliates have made any representation regarding the proper characterization of
the Securities for purposes of determining the undersigned’s authority or suitability to invest in the
Securities.

iv. The undersigned is familiar with the business and financial condition and operations of the
Company, all as generally described in the Form C. The undersigned has had access to such
information concerning the Company and the Securities as it deems necessary to enable it to make
an informed investment decision concerning the purchase of the Securities.

v. The undersigned understands that, unless the undersigned notifies the Company in writing to
the contrary at or before the Closing, each of the undersigned’s representations and warranties



contained in this Subscription Agreement will be deemed to have been reaffirmed and confirmed
as of the Closing, taking into account all information received by the undersigned.

vi. The undersigned acknowledges that the Company has the right in its sole and absolute
discretion to abandon this Offering at any time prior to the completion of the Offering. This
Subscription Agreement shall thereafter have no force or effect and the Company shall retum any
previously paid subscription price of the Securities, without interest thereon, to the undersigned.

vii. The undersigned understands that no federal or state agency has passed upon the merits or risks
of an investment in the Securities or made any finding or determination concerning the fairness or
advisability of this investment.

c) No Guaraniy.

1. The undersigned confirms that the Company has not (A) given any guarantee or representation
as to the potential success, return, effect or benefit (either legal, regulatory, tax, financial,
accounting or otherwise) an of investment in the Securities or (B) made any representation to the
undersigned regarding the legality of an investment in the Securities under applicable legal
investment or similar laws or regulations. In deciding to purchase the Securities, the undersigned
1s not relying on the advice or recommendations of the Company and the undersigned has made
its own independent decision that the investment in the Securities is suitable and appropriate for
the undersigned.

d) Status of Undersigned.

1. The undersigned has such knowledge, skill and experience in business, financial and investment
matters that the undersigned is capable of evaluating the merits and risks of an investment in the
Securities. With the assistance of the undersigned’s own professional advisors, to the extent that
the undersigned has deemed appropriate, the undersigned has made its own legal, tax, accounting
and financial evaluation of the merits and risks of an investment in the Securities and the
consequences of this Subscription Agreement. The undersigned has considered the suitability of
the Securifies as an investment in light of its own circumstances and financial condition and the
undersigned is able to bear the risks associated with an investment in the Securities and its authority
to invest in the Securities.

e) Restrictions on Transfer or Sale of Securifies.

1. The undersigned is acquiring the Securities solely for the undersigned’s own beneficial account,
for investment purposes, and not with a view to, or for resale in connection with, any distribution
of the Securities. The undersigned understands that the Securities have not been registered under
the Securities Act or any State Securities Laws by reason of specific exemptions under the
provisions thereof which depend in part upon the investment intent of the undersigned and of the
other representations made by the undersigned in this Subscription Agreement. The undersigned
understands that the Company is relying upon the representations and agreements contained in this
Subscription Agreement (and any supplemental information) for the purpose of determining
whether this transaction meets the requirements for such exemptions.

ii. The undersigned understands that the Securities are restricted from transfer for a period of time
under applicable federal securities laws and that the Securities Act and the rules of the U.S.
Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Commission™) provide in substance that the
undersigned may dispose of the Securities only pursuant to an effective registration statement
under the Securities Act, an exemption therefrom or as further described in Rule 501 of Regulation
CF, after which certain state restrictions may apply. The undersigned understands that the
Company has no obligation or intention to register any of the Securities, or to take action so as to
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permit sales pursuant to the Securities Act. Even when the Securities become freely transferrable,
a secondary market in the Securities may not develop. Consequently, the undersigned understands
that the undersigned must bear the economic risks of the investment in the Securities for an
indefinite period of time.

ili. The undersigned agrees that the undersigned will not sell, assign, pledge, give, transfer or
otherwise dispose of the Securities or any interest therein, or make any offer or attempt to do any
of the foregoing, except pursuant to Rule 501 of Regulation CF.

8. Conditions to Obligations of the Undersigned and the Company. The obligations of the
undersigned to purchase and pay for the Securities specified on the signature page hereto and of
the Company to sell the Securities are subject to the satisfaction at or prior to the Closing of the
following conditions precedent: the representations and warranties of the Company contained in
Section 6 hereof and of the undersigned contained in Section 7 hereof shall be true and correct as
of the Closing in all respects with the same effect as though such representations and warranties
had been made as of the Closing.

9. Obligations Irrevocable. Following the Closing, the obligations of the undersigned shall be
irrevocable.

10. Legend. The certificates, book entry or other form of notation representing the Securities sold
pursuant to this Subscription Agreement will be notated with a legend or designation, which
communicates in some manner that the Securities were issued pursuant to Section 4(a)(6) of the
Securities Act and may only be resold pursuant to Rule 501 of Regulation CF.

11. Waiver, Amendment. Neither this Subscription Agreement nor any provisions hereof shall
be modified, changed, discharged or terminated except by an instrument in writing, signed by the
party against whom any waiver, change, discharge or termination is sought.

12. Assignability. Neither this Subscription Agreement nor any right, remedy, obligation or
liability arising hereunder or by reason hereof shall be assignable by either the Company or the
undersigned without the prior written consent of the other party.

13. Waiver of Jury Trial. THE UNDERSIGNED IRREVOCABLY WAIVES ANY AND ALL
RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY WITH RESPECT TO ANY LEGAL PROCEEDING ARISING
OUT OF THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED BY THIS SUBSCRIPTION
AGREEMENT.

14. Submission to Jurisdiction. With respect to any suit, action or proceeding relating to any
offers, purchases or sales of the Securities by the undersigned (“Proceedings"), the undersigned
irrevocably submits to the jurisdiction of the federal or state courts located in the Delaware, which
submission shall be exclusive unless none of such courts has lawful jurisdiction over such
Proceedings.

15. Governing Law. This Subscription Agreement shall be governed by and construed in
accordance with the laws of the State of Delaware, without regard to conflict of law principles
thereof.

16. Section and Other Headings. The section and other headings contained in this Subscription
Agreement are for reference purposes only and shall not affect the meaning or interpretation of
this Subscription Agreement.



17. Counterparts. This Subscription Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts,
each of which when so executed and delivered shall be deemed to be an original and all of which
together shall be deemed to be one and the same agreement.

18. Notices. All notices and other communications provided for herein shall be in writing and
shall be deemed to have been duly given if delivered personally or sent by registered or certified
mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid or email to the following addresses (or such other
address as either party shall have specified by notice in writing to the other):

240 Dawson Village Way, Suite 100
Dawsonville, GA 30534
If to the Company: E-mail: [E-MAIL ADDRESS]
Attention: [TITLE OF OFFICER TO
RECEIVE NOTICES]

[PURCHASER ADDRESS]
E-mail: [E-MAIL ADDRESS]
Attention: [TITLE OF OFFICER TO
RECEIVE NOTICES]

If to the Purchaser:

19. Binding Effect. The provisions of this Subscription Agreement shall be binding upon and
accrue to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective heirs, legal representatives,
successors and assigns.

20. Survival. All representations, warranties and covenants contained in this Subscription
Agreement shall survive (1) the acceptance of the subscription by the Company, (ii) changes in
the transactions, documents and instruments described in the Form C which are not material or
which are to the benefit of the undersigned and (iii) the death or disability of the undersigned.

21. Notification of Changes. The undersigned hereby covenants and agrees to notify the
Company upon the occurrence of any event prior to the closing of the purchase of the Securities
pursuant to this Subscription Agreement, which would cause any representation, warranty, or
covenant of the undersigned contained in this Subscription Agreement to be false or incorrect.

22. Severability. If any term or provision of this Subscription Agreement is invalid, illegal or
unenforceable in any jurisdiction, such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability shall not affect
any other term or provision of this Subscription Agreement or invalidate or render unenforceable
such term or provision in any other jurisdiction.



Joinder to Operating Agreement

By executing this Subscription Agreement and the Company’s acceptance hereof, the
undersigned hereby agrees to become a party to, and shall accept and be subject to, and comply
with the terms, conditions and provisions of, the Company’s Operating Agreement, effective as of
June 16, 2023, as amended from time to time (the “Operating Agreement”), as a “Class B Member”
and a holder of “Class B Units” (as such terms are defined in the Operating Agreement) held by
the undersigned as of the date hereof, thereunder and shall be entitled to the rights and benefits
and subject to the duties and obligations of a Member and a holder of such Units as of the date
hereof, thereunder in the same manner as if the undersigned was an original signatory to the
Operating Agreement. The undersigned agrees upon request to execute any further documents or
instruments necessary or reasonably desirable in the view of the Company to carry out the purposes
or intent of the Operating Agreement.

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Subscription Agreement this
[DAY] OF [MONTH], [YEAR].

PURCHASER (if an individual):

By
Name:

PURCHASER (if an entity):

Legal Name of Entity

By
Name:
Title:

State/Country of Domicile or Formation:

The offer to purchase Securities as set forth above is confirmed and accepted by the Company as
to [amount of Securities to be acquired by Purchaser] for [total amount to be paid by Purchaser].

Because Coffee Ten, LL.C

By
Name;
Title:




EXHIBITD

Conpany Operating Agreament
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THE MEMBERSHIP UNITS CREATED UNDER THIS OPERATING AGREEMENT HAVE
NOT BEEN REGISTERED OR QUALIFIED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933 OR
THE SECURITIES LAWS OF DELAWARE OR ANY OTHER STATE. SUCH MEMBERSHIP
UNITS MAY BE OFFERED AND SOLD ONLY IF REGISTERED AND QUALIFIED UNDER
THE RELEVANT PROVISIONS OF THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933 AND APPLICABLE
STATE SECURITIES LAWS OR IF AN EXEMPTION FROM SUCH REGISTRATION OR
QUALIFICATION IS APPLICABLE.

OPERATING AGREEMENT
FOR
BECAUSE COFFEE TEN, LLC

This Operating Agreement (this “Agreement”), which is made to be effective as of June
16, 2023 (the “Effective Date™), is entered into by Because Coffee Ten, LLC, a Delaware limited
liability company (the “Company”), between the undersigned members (each a “Member” and
collectively, the “Members™). The Company and Members agree as follows:

ARTICLE1
FORMATION AND ORGANIZATION

1.1. Formation and Related Matters. The Company was formed on June 16, 2023, in
the State of Delaware by the filing of the Certificate of Formation (the “Certificate”) with the
Delaware Secretary of State. The Company will operate in accordance with this Agreement and
the Delaware Limited Liability Company Act, as amended from time to time, and any successor
thereto (the “Act”). The Company intends to issue three (3) classes of Membership Units,
including Class A Units, Class B Units and Class C Units, which are further described below, on
terms and conditions, and in such quantities, determined by the Manager. A Member holding
Class A Units is a “Class A Member,” a Member holding Class B Units is a “Class B Member,”
and a Member holding Class C Units is a “Class C Member.” Class B Units and Class C Units
are non-voting Membership Units. To the extent that the rights or obligations of any Member are
different by reasons of any provisions of this Agreement then they would be in absence of such
provision, this Agreement will, to the extent permitted by the Act, control.

1.2. Term and Purpose. The purpose of the Company is to own and operate, whether
directly or indirectly, up to ten (10) retail locations, under the name Because Coffee, Myth &
Legend, Moto Coffee or any other name acceptable to the Manager, in the Florida and Georgia
region using the BC IP (as defined in Section 3.6 below) (the “Business”), to the extent desirable
to the Manager, and all activities ancillary thereto, and may engage in any other lawful business
activity in which a Delaware limited liability company may engage. The term of the Company’s
existence (the “Term™) will continue until terminated in accordance with the provisions of this
Agreement. For the avoidance of doubt, the existing Because Coffee shops and others that may
be developed outside of the Company (collectively, the “Other Locations”), shall not be owned
by or operated for the benefit of the Company.

1.3.  Principal Office. The Company will maintain a principal place of business and an
agent for service of process in Delaware. The principal place of business of the Company will be
determined by the Manager from time to time. In addition, the Company may maintain such other
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offices at any other places as the Manager deems advisable. The Manager may also appoint agents
for service of process in any other state, district, or jurisdiction in which the Company does
business and make such filings, including filings for qualification to do business, as may be
required or desirable under the laws of such other state, district, or jurisdiction.

1.4.  Fictitious Business Name Statements. The Company may, upon election of the
Manager, do business from time to time under a name other than Because Coffee, Myth & Legend,
or Moto Coffee. To facilitate the use of such fictitious name, the Manager (or their authorized
designee) will sign, file and publish (as required) such Fictitious Business Name Statements as
may be required or desirable under the laws of such places in which the Company holds assets or
conducts business activities on behalf of the Company in the manner and within the time required
by applicable law.

1.5. Establishment of Bank Accounts. The Manager will establish with a federally
insured financial institution (or institutions) one or more accounts for the funds of the Company
and designate one or more individuals authorized to draw against such accounts.

1.6. Title. Title to any assets acquired by the Company will be held in the name of the
Company. The Manager and, to the extent necessary, any Member, will execute all documents
which may be necessary to reflect the Company’s ownership of its assets.

1.7.  Certificates of Membership Units. Certificates of membership will not be required.
To the extent the Manager determines to issue certificates of membership, each Member’s
Membership Units will be represented by a certificate of membership in a form acceptable to the
Manager.

ARTICLE 2
CAPITALIZATION

2.1.  Capital Contributions. The purchase price paid for the Membership Units or any
other contribution to the capital of the Company (whether in cash or other assets) permitted or
required under this Agreement are referred to as the “Capital Contributions.”

2.1.1. The Class A Members and Class B Members have made and may make
Capital Contributions in exchange for Class A Units or Class B Units (as applicable) as reflected
in the books and records of the Company.

2.1.2. The Class C Members shall be issued Class C Units on terms and conditions
determined by the Manager in its sole and absolute discretion. Class C Units are “profits interests™
as such term is further described in Sections 2.5 and 10.2 below. The Class C Members shall not
be required to make any initial Capital Contribution and will not receive any initial Capital
Account (as defined below).

2.2.  Capital Accounts. The Company will establish, calculate and maintain a capital
account (“Capital Account) for each Member in accordance with Section 704 of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”) and the regulations promulgated thereunder by
the United States Department of Treasury (“Treasury Regulations”), including without limitation
Section 704(c). The initial Capital Accounts of the Members will be their initial Capital
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Contributions. Throughout the Term, the Manager will maintain an updated list of Members at its
principal office reflecting the identity of all of the Members and number of Membership Units
owned by each Member. No Member will receive any interest on such Member’s Capital
Contributions.

2.3. Limitations on Withdrawals of Capital Contribution. No Member may withdraw
such Member’s Capital Contributions or demand and receive property of the Company or any
distribution in return for such Member’s Capital Contributions, except as may be specifically
provided in this Agreement, approved by the Manager, or as required by law.

2.4. Capital Contributions; Capital Calls. Other than as may be permitted by this
Agreement, no Member may make any voluntary additional contributions of capital to the
Company, without the consent of the Manager which may be granted or withheld in their sole and
absolute discretion. No Member will be required to make any additional Capital Contributions to
the Company.

2.5.  Class C Units (Profits Interests). The Company may issue Class C Units on terms
and conditions determined at the sole and absolute discretion of the Manager. Class C Units are
intended to be treated as “profits interests” under Revenue Procedure 93-27, LR.B. 1993-24 (June
9, 1993), Revenue Procedure 2001-43, 2001-2 C.B. 191, and any successor provisions of the Code,
Treasury Regulations or other administrative notices or announcements, for federal income tax
purposes, and the provisions of this Agreement will be interpreted and applied consistently
therewith. Neither the Company nor any Member will perform any act or take any position
inconsistent with the treatment of the Class C Units as “profits interests™ for income tax purposes
unless otherwise required by applicable law. Class C Units are non-voting units for all purposes.
A Class C Member will not be required to make any Capital Contribution to the Company and will
not receive an initial Capital Account in connection with the receipt of such Class C Unit. Upon
the issuance of any Class C Units, the Class C Member shall, upon the Company’s request, execute
the Company’s Operating Agreement (or a Joinder Agreement thereto), and the Company's Class
C Unit Grant Agreement (in a form acceptable by the Manager), pursuant to which, among other
things, the Manager may specify a “Distribution Threshold” applicable to such granted Class C
Units, which shall be equal to the minimum amount determined by the Manager to ensure that the
liquidation value of such Class C Units at the time of grant and issuance is zero. In furtherance of
the foregoing, the Manager will, if necessary (as determined by the Manager in good faith) will be
entitled to limit distributions in respect of any Class C Units under Article 7 below to preserve the
characterization of the Class C Units as “profits interests.” If any distributions are so limited, such
amount will instead be apportioned to the Class A Members and Class B Members (and/or the
Class C Members to whom distributions can be made without issue) and the Manager will make
appropriate adjustments (as determined by the Manager in good faith) to the future distributions,
if any, so that the amount of this adjustment is subsequently made to such affected Class C
Member(s) when such distributions will constitute “profits interests™ under applicable law.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, no Class C Member will sell, transfer, or assign any
Class C Units without the written consent of the Manager, which may be granted, denied or
conditioned at the Manager’s sole and absolute discretion.
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ARTICLE 3
MEMBERS

3.1. Limited Liability. No Member will be personally liable for any debt, obligation, or
liability of the Company, whether that debt, obligation, or liability arises in contract, tort, or
otherwise.

3.2.  Affiliate Transactions. Notwithstanding that it may constitute a conflict of interest,
the Members or their respective Affiliates (as defined below) may engage in any transaction with
the Company so long as the Manager consents to such transaction.

3.3. Business Opportunities and Other Activities; Waiver of Fiduciary Duty. The
Company was formed for the purpose described in Section 1.2 above and the parties acknowledge
that the Manager and one or more of the Class A Members, or their Affiliates or other affiliated
entities, may have interests in other coffee businesses including those operating under the same or
similar trade names and in the same or nearby geographic areas. Notwithstanding anything to the
confrary, to the maximum extent allowed by law, (1) neither the Company nor any Member will
have any right in or to any other venture or activity of any other Member or any Manager, or to
the income or proceeds derived from such ventures or activities, and (ii) no Class A Member, Class
B Member or the Manager is obligated to present any business opportunity, investment opportunity
or prospective economic advantage to the Company, even if the opportunity is of the character
that, if presented to the Company, could be taken by the Company. To the maximum extent
permitted by law, the Members waive any application of any legal doctrine, or any fiduciary or
similar duty, that would otherwise require a Class A Member, Class B Member or Manager to
present such an opportunity to the Company or the other Members, and further, to the maximum
extent permitted by law, waive the right to any claim against any Class A Member, Manager or
Manager’s Affiliate relating to or arising from their respective investment in, participation in, or
other affiliation with any business or investment that is similar to, competitive with, related to or
in the same field as the Company, or any project, investment, venture, or business of the Company.
As used in this Agreement “Affiliate” means as to a person or entity, another person or entity
confrolling, controlled by or under common control with such person or entity.

3.4. Confidential Information. For purposes of this Agreement, the term “Confidential
Information™ means and refers to all information concerning the Company, including without
limitation any know-how, recipes, techniques, ingredients, methods, research, plans, products
and/or services existing or in development, lease terms, locations in development or potential
locations, customer lists, personal information and preferences, vendor/supplier lists, contact
information and terms, marketing materials, developments, inventions, processes, designs,
drawings, financial information, trade secrets or other information of the Company relating to its
business activities, or that of any supplier, customer or prospective customer, whether or not such
information, technical data or know-how is marked as “confidential” or otherwise. Confidential
Information does not include information, technical data or know-how which (i) prior or after the
time of disclosure becomes part of the public knowledge or literature, not as a result of any inaction
or action of a Member or (ii) is approved by the Company, in writing, for disclosure. No Member
shall use any Confidential Information for such Member’s own benefit (directly or indirectly) or
for the benefit of any third party (other than Company), (b) no Member shall disclose any
Confidential Information of the Company to third parties except as is essential or advisable to carry
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out its duties for the Company, and (¢) each Member will keep the Confidential Information in
strict confidence and will take all reasonable measures to protect the secrecy of and avoid
disclosure or use of Confidential Information in order to prevent it from falling into the public
domain or the possession of persons other than those persons authorized hereunder to have any
such information, which measures will include the highest degree of care that such Member utilizes
to protect its own Confidential Information of a similar nature and no less than a reasonable degree
of care. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the parties acknowledge that Because Coffee Holdings
Group, Inc., a Georgia corporation (“Because Coffee Holdings Group”) and its Affiliates,
licensees and other parties authorized by Because Coffee Holdings Group may be permitted to use
Confidential Information without any duty or obligation to the Company. In addition to all the
Company’s other rights and remedies under applicable law or this Agreement, all proceeds from a
misuse or disclosure of the Company’s Confidential Information will be recoverable from such
Member to the extent it is responsible for such misuse or disclosure. Each Member acknowledges
(1) the unique nature of the Confidential Information, (2) that the Company will suffer irreparable
harm if such Member breaches any of such provisions, and (3) that monetary damages will be
inadequate to compensate the Company for such breach. If a Member breaches or threatens to
breach any provisions of this Section 3.4, then Company will be entitled to injunctive relief without
bond or any other form of security (in addition to any other remedies at law or equity) to enforce
such provisions.

3.,5. Members Are Not Agents. No Member, acting solely in the capacity as a Member,
is an agent of the Company nor can any Member in such capacity bind the Company nor execute
any instrument on behalf of the Company. Nothing in the preceding sentence, however, in any way
limits the rights or authority of the Manager under this Agreement.

3.6. Intellectual Property.

3.6.1. License. The Company and Members agree that all intellectual property
rights relating to the Business, including without limitation all Confidential Information, menus,
recipes, ingredient lists, packaging, look and feel, trade secrets, know-hows, vendor information,
and all derivative, modifications, alterations, goodwill and other proprietary rights related thereto
used in connection with the Business, all business plans, social media handles and accounts,
marketing materials, the names Because Coffee, Myth & Legend, Moto Coffee, and other related
logos, copyrights, trademarks or other commercial identifiers, and all derivatives and goodwill
related thereto, which are now existing or which may be created in the future (collectively, the
“BC IP”) are and shall be solely owned by Because Coffee Holdings Group. Because Coffee
Holdings Group has granted to the Company a non-exclusive, non-transferable and royalty-free
license (the “Licemse”) to use the BC IP in connection with the ownership, promotion and
operation of the Business for as long as Because Coffee Holdings Group beneficially remains a
Member of the Company; provided however that Company’s use of the BC IP shall be in
accordance with the terms of that certain License Agreement between the Company and BH
Holdings entered on or around the Effective Date (the “License Agreement™). The Company and
Members acknowledge that Because Coffee Holdings Group’s grant of the License shall not, in
any way, limit or restrict Because Coffee Holdings Group's right to use the BC IP in other retail
locations, including the Other Locations, which Because Coffee Holdings Group or its Affiliates
have opened or may desire to open at their sole and absolute discretion (the “Other BC
Ventures”). The Company and Members acknowledge they will have no ownership, equity, profit
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interest or right to any revenue in or to the Other BC Ventures. The Company and the Members
further acknowledge that nothing in this Agreement nor the Company’s use of the BC IP shall be
construed as to afford the Company or the Members (other than Because Coffee Holdings Group)
any ownership rights whatsoever in the BC IP, and Member will not at any time do, or cause to be
done, any act or thing contesting or in any way impairing or intending to impair Because Coffee
Holdings Group’s exclusive rights, title, and interest in and to the BC IP.

3.6.2. Ownership. Each Class C Member (for purposes of this Section 3.6., each
an “Assignor”) irrevocably assigns to the Company all worldwide right, title, interest and
ownership in and to any and all work product, works of authorship, trademarks, methods, ideas,
programs, sound recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, graphic representations,
improvements, innovations, discoveries, code, designs, inventions and improvements, rights to
derivatives, whether patentable or unpatentable, whether copyrightable or uncopyrightable, and all
goodwill relating thereto, relating to the Company’s existing or future business including without
limitation the products or service offered by the Company, to the extent made, developed,
conceived, acquired, devised, discovered, created or reduced to practice by an Assignor while a
Class C Member of the Company or while providing services to the Company, whether alone or
jointly with others, whether by using Company’s equipment, supplies, facilities, or any
Confidential Information, and which relate to or pertain in any way at the time of conception or
reduction to practice of the invention or of creation of the work product or work of authorship to
the business of Company, or the actual or demonstrably anticipated research or development of
Company, or which result from any services performed by Assignor for Company (collectively,
the “Work Product”). All Work Product shall belong exclusively to Company, and the Company
may in accordance with the terms of the License Agreement, assign in whole or in part all Work
Product relating to the BC IP, to Because Coffee Holdings Group. Assignor hereby assigns to
Company, and will promptly disclose to Company in writing, all Work Product made while
rendering services to or for the Company. Assignor acknowledges that any violation of this
Section 3.6 would cause irreparable injury to Company. Assignor agrees that in the event of any
violation of this Section 3.6.2, Company shall be authorized and entitled to obtain from any court
of competent jurisdiction, preliminary and permanent injunctive relief, without bond, as well as an
equitable accounting of all profits or benefits arising out of such violation and any damages for
breach of this Agreement which may be applicable. These rights and remedies shall be
independent, severable, cumulative, binding on Assignor’s assigns, officers, agents, employees
and subcontractors and administrators, and shall be in addition to any other rights or remedies to
which Company may be entitled. This Section 3.6.2 does not apply to any inventions or other work
product unrelated to the Business or to other work product to the extent prohibited by California
Labor Code Section 2870-2872, as applicable.

3.7. Members Are Not Agents. No Member, acting solely in the capacity as a Member,
is an agent of the Company nor can any Member in such capacity bind the Company nor execute
any instrument on behalf of the Company. Nothing in the preceding sentence, however, in any way
limits the rights or authority of the Manager under this Agreement.
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ARTICLE 4
MANAGEMENT AND CONTROL OF THE COMPANY

4.1.  Exclusive Management by the Manager: Initial Manager. The Company will be a
“Manager-managed” limited liability company. The Class A Members shall be entitled to appoint
the Manager upon the vote or written consent the holder(s) of the majority of the issued and
outstanding Class A Units (the “Class A Majority”). The Class A Members hereby appoint
Because Coffee Holdings Group as the initial Manager of the Company, to serve until its
resignation or removal and replacement by the Class A Majority. The Manager will make all
decisions and perform any and all acts or activities necessary or appropriate to the management of
the Company’s assets, business and affairs unless expressly limited by the terms of this Agreement
or the Act. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, and subject to the limitations set forth
in this Agreement and, for the avoidance of doubt, the Members grant the Manager all powers
which may be necessary or desirable to manage the assets, business, and affairs of the Company,
including the power to exercise on behalf and in the name of the Company all of the powers
described in the Act, and including without limitation the rights and authority to do the following:

4.1.1. Enter into, execute, and carry out confracts of all kinds;
4.1.2. Bring and defend legal and administrative actions;

4.1.3. Buy, own, manage, sell, lease, mortgage, pledge, or otherwise acquire or
dispose of property, both real and personal, as deemed in the best interest of the Company;

4.1.4. Borrow money from, or lend money to, third parties, one or more
Member(s), or Affiliate(s) of one or more Member(s), on such terms as the Manager deems
appropriate, and to hypothecate, encumber and grant security interests in the assets of the Company
as collateral;

4.1.5. Purchase liability, casualty, and other insurance to protect the property,
business, agents, employees, Manager, and Members of the Company;

4.1.6. Execute on behalf of the Company all instruments and documents necessary
or desirable, in the opinion of the Manager, to further the business of the Company, including
checks, drafts, notes, negotiable instruments, deeds, mortgages, deeds of trust, security
agreements, financing statements, guaranties, indemnity agreements, assignments, bills of sale,
leases, partnership agreements, operating agreements, and any other instrument or document;

4.1.7. Employ, retain, compensate and terminate officers, advisors, employees,
agents, and consultants, accountants, legal counsel, and other professionals to perform services for
the Company and to define their respective duties;

4.1.8. Act as a promoter, general partner, limited partner, stockholder, member,
manager or agent of any partnership, limited liability company, corporation, or other entity;

4.1.9. Pay for all expenses of the Company and reimburse the Manager for all
proper expenses paid by the Manager on behalf of the Company;

P01649174.4:86F 14.001



DocuSign Envelope ID: 5CECT187-F379-4075-A836-0D429D0E2BBA

4.1.10. Do and perform all other acts as may be necessary or appropriate to the
conduct or furtherance of the business of the Company, as determined by the Manager in its sole
and absolute discretion;

4.1.11. Sell, assign, transfer, exchange, or otherwise dispose of all, or substantially
all, of the Company’s assets;

4.1.12. Merge or consolidate the Company with any corporation, limited liability
company, partnership, or other entity (other than for the purpose of changing the state of
formation/organization or entity type): and

4.1.13. Dissolve the Company.

4.2. No Member Participation. The Members will have no power to participate in the
management of the Company except as expressly authorized by this Agreement or the Certificate
and except as expressly required by the Act in a provision that is not or cannot be altered by this
Agreement.

4.3.  Performance of Duties: Liability of the Manager. Notwithstanding anything to the
contrary set forth in this Agreement, the Manager will not be liable for monetary damages to any
Member or the Company for losses sustained or liabilities incurred as a result of errors in judgment
or of any act or omission if the Manager acted in good faith. The Manager will not be in breach
of any duty that the Manager may owe to the Members or the Company or any other persons under
this Agreement or of any duty stated or implied by law or equity if the Manager, acting in good
faith, abide by the terms of this Agreement. The Members expressly acknowledge that the
Manager is acting on behalf of the Company, and the Members collectively, and that the Manager
is under no obligation to consider the separate interests of the Members (including, without
limitation, the tax consequences to Members or the tax consequence to some, but not all, of the
Members) in deciding whether to cause the Company to take (or decline to take) any actions.
Subject to their obligations and duties set forth in this Agreement, the Manager may exercise any
of the powers granted to them under this Agreement and perform any of the duties imposed on
them under this Agreement either directly or by or through their agents. The Manager will not be
responsible for any misconduct or negligence on the part of any agent appointed by the Manager
in good faith. The Manager may rely on information, opinions, reports, or statements of one or
more officers, employees, or other agents of the Company whom the Manager believe to be reliable
and competent, including any attorney, accountant or other advisor.

4.4. Expensesand Payvments to the Manager. The Company will reimburse the Manager
and the Manager’s Affiliates for the actual costs and expenses reasonably incurred on behalf of the
Company. No management fee shall be payable to the Manager under this Agreement.

4.5. Limited Liability. No person who is a Manager or officer of the Company will be
personally liable under any judgment of a court, or in any other manner, for any debt, obligation,
or liability of the Company, whether that liability or obligation arises in contract, tort, or otherwise,
by virtue of being a Manager or one of the officers of the Company.

4.6. Resignation and Removal of the Manager.
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4.6.1. Resignation. A Manager may resign at any time by giving written notice to
the Members without prejudice to the rights, if any, of the Company under any contract to which
the resigning Manager is a party. The resignation takes effect on the date specified in the notice
of resignation. Unless otherwise specified in the notice of resignation, the acceptance of the
resignation is not necessary to make it effective. The resignation of a Manager will not affect any
rights of the Manager as a Member and will not constitute his, her or its withdrawal as a Member.
The death or non-temporary disability of a Manager will be deemed a resignation. A successor
Manager will be appointed by the Class A Majority.

4.6.2. Removal. A Manager may not be removed without the consent of the Class
A Members holding a majority of the Class A Units. A successor Manager will be appointed by
the Class A Majority. Any removal will be without prejudice to the rights, if any, of the removed
Manager under any contract with the Company and will not affect the Manager’s rights as a
Member or constitute a withdrawal of the Manager as a Member, if applicable.

4.7. Reliance. In performing its duties, the Manager will be entitled to rely on
information, opinions, reports, or statements, including financial statements and other financial
data, of the following persons or groups unless the Manager has knowledge concerning the matter
in question that would cause such reliance to be unwarranted and provided that the Manager act in
good faith and after reasonable inquiry when the need therefor is indicated by the circumstances:

4.7.1 one or more officers, employees or other agents of the Company whom the
Manager reasonably believe to be reliable and competent in the matters presented; and

4.7.2 any attorney, independent accountant, or other person as to matters which
the Manager reasonably believe to be within such person’s professional or expert
competence.

4.8. Acts of Manager as Conclusive Evidence of Authority. Any note, mortgage,
evidence of indebtedness, contract, certificate, statement, conveyance, or other instrument in
writing, and any assignment or endorsement thereof, executed or entered into between the
Company and any other person, when signed by the Manager, or a duly appointed signatory, is not
invalidated as to the Company by any lack of authority of the Manager or such signatory in the
absence of actual knowledge on the part of the other person that the Manager had no authority to
execute the same.

49. Officers.

49.1. Appointment. The Manager may appoint officers of the Company. The
officers will exercise such powers and will perform such duties as are specified in this Agreement,
any employment or service agreement with the Company and/or as may be determined by the
Manager. The officers of the Company may include a President, one or more Vice Presidents, a
Secretary, a Chief Financial Officer, and such other officers deemed desirable by the Manager.
The officers will serve at the pleasure of, and may be removed by, the Manager, subject to any
rights such officers may have under any employment or service agreement. Each officer will be
considered an at will employee or independent contractor, as applicable, unless the officer has a
written employment or service agreement providing otherwise. Any individual may hold any
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number of offices and no officer need be a Delaware resident or a United States citizen. An officer
need not be a Member of the Company.

4.9.2. Resignation. Subject to any employment or service agreement with the
Company, an officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Manager. Any
resignation will take effect at the date of the receipt of that notice or at any later time specified in
that notice; and, unless otherwise specified in that notice, the acceptance of the resignation will
not be necessary to make it effective. Any resignation is without prejudice to any rights of the
Company under any agreement to which the officer is a party.

4.9.3. Vacancy. A vacancy in any office because of death, resignation, removal,
disqualification or any other cause will be filled by the Manager in its sole and absolute discretion.

4.9.4. Acts of Officer as Conclusive Evidence of Authority. Any note, mortgage,
evidence of indebtedness, contract, certificate, statement, conveyance, or other instrument in
writing, and any assignment or endorsement thereof, executed or entered into between the
Company and any other person, when signed by the President or any Vice President and any of
the Secretary or the Chief Financial Officer, is not invalidated as to the Company by any lack of
authority of the signing officers in the absence of actual knowledge on the part of the other person
that the signing officers had no authority to execute the same.

ARTICLE 5
VOTING RIGHTS AND MEETINGS OF MEMBERS

5.1. Voting Rights. Except if and to the extent mandated by applicable law, neither the
Class B Members nor the Class C Members will have any voting, approval or consent rights.
Unless a higher approval threshold is expressly required by this Agreement, or by applicable law,
a vote, consent or approval of the Class A Majority will be required to authorize or approve all
matters in which a vote, approval or consent of the Members is required.

5.2. Meetings. The Manager may, but need not, call meetings of the Members for any
purpose the Manager deems appropriate in connection with the operation or business of the
Company. If the Manager elects to call a meeting of the Members, the Manager will cause a
written notice of the meeting to be delivered to each Member not less than ten (10) nor more than
sixty (60) calendar days before the date of the meeting. The notice must specify the place, date,
and time of the meeting and the general nature of the business to be transacted at the meeting. No
business which is not referenced in the notice of the meeting may be transacted at the meeting
unless consented to at the meeting by the majority of the Members in attendance. At any Members’
meeting, the Manager may appoint a person to preside as chairman at the meeting and a person to
act as secretary of the meeting. At the direction of the Manager, the secretary of the meeting will
prepare minutes of the meeting which must be maintained with the Company’s books and records.
Any meeting of the Members may be adjourned from time to time by the Manager. When any
meeting of Members is adjourned to another time or place, notice need not be given of the
adjourned meeting if the time and place are announced at the meeting at which the adjournment
takes place and the new date set for the recommencement of the adjourned meeting is less than
forty-five (45) calendar days from the date set for the original meeting. Any actions taken at a
meeting of Members, however called and noticed, and wherever held, have the same validity as if
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taken at a meeting duly held after regular call and notice, if either before or after the meeting each
of the Members entitled to vote, who was not present in person or by proxy, signs a written waiver
of notice or consents to the holding of the meeting, or approves the minutes of the meeting.
Attendance by a person at a meeting constitutes a waiver of notice as to that meeting. Neither the
business to be transacted nor the purpose of any meeting of Members need be specified in any
written waiver of notice. Members may participate in any meeting of the Members through the use
of conference telephones or similar communications equipment as long as all Members
participating in the meeting in person and by telephone or other communication equipment can
hear one another. A Member participating in a meeting by telephone or similar communication
equipment is deemed to be present in person at the meeting.

5.3. Action by Written Consent. Any vote or other action that may be taken or
resolution that may be adopted by Members may be taken or adopted withouta meeting if a consent
in writing setting forth the action so taken or resolution so adopted, is signed and delivered to the
Company by the Class A Majority. All such written consents will be filed and maintained in the
Company’s books and records. Any Class A Member giving a written consent may revoke its
written consent by a writing received by the Manager before written consents of the number of
votes required to authorize the proposed action or resolution have been filed.

5.4. Record Date. In order that the Company may determine the Members of record
entitled to notices of any meeting or to vote or to exercise any rights with respect to any other
lawful action, the Manager may fix, in advance, a record date that is not more than sixty (60)
calendar days nor less than ten (10) calendar days before the date of the meeting or other action.
If the Manager fails to so establish a record date, the record date for any meeting or action is the
business day immediately preceding the date the Manager give notice of the meeting or otherwise
seek such action.

5.5. Appointment of Proxy. Each Member hereby makes, constitutes and appoints
Because Coffee Holdings Group, with full power of substitution and resubstitution, its true and
lawful attorney, for it and in its name, place and stead and for its use and benefit, to act as its proxy
in respect of any vote or approval of Members required to give effect to this Section 5.5, including
any vote or approval required under Section 18-209 or Section 18-216 of the Act. The proxy
granted pursuant to this Section 5.5 is a special proxy coupled with an interest and is irrevocable.

5.6.  Other Procedures. Except as specifically altered by this Agreement, the procedures
relating to meetings, Members’ action without meeting and the use of proxies will be as determined
by the Manager.

ARTICLE 6
ALLOCATIONS OF BOOK INCOME AND BOOK LOSS

6.1. Compliance with Treasury Regulations. The provisions of this Agreement relating
to the maintenance of Capital Accounts are intended to comply with Treasury Regulations Section
1.704-1(b), and shall be interpreted and applied in a manner consistent with such Treasury
Regulations. If the Partnership Representative (as defined below) shall determine that it is prudent
to modify the manner in which the Capital Accounts, or any debits or credits thereto, are computed
in order to comply with such Treasury Regulations, or otherwise reasonably believes a
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modification is prudent and appropriate, the Partnership Representative may make such
modification with the approval of the Manager; provided, however, that it shall not have a material
adverse effect on the amounts distributable to any Member.

6.2.  Allocation of Book Income and Book Loss. Subject to the requirements of (i) the
minimum gain chargeback set forth in Treasury Regulations Section 1.704-2(f), (ii) the partner
minimum gain chargeback as set forth in Treasury Regulations Section 1.704-2(i), and (iii) the
qualified income offset set forth in Treasury Regulations Section 1.704-1(b)(2)(i1)(d), each of
which is incorporated herein by reference, as if fully set forth in this Agreement, the Company
shall allocate all of its items of "book" income and "book" loss in such a manner that (after these
allocations have been made) each Member's Capital Account shall be equal to (to the extent
possible) the hypothetical amount that the Company would distribute to such Member on a
Hypothetical Sale and Liquidation (as defined below). For this purpose:

6.2.1. "Hypothetical Sale and Liquidation" means a hypothetical transaction in
which the Company (i) sells all of its assets for their "book" values (or, for the amount of
nonrecourse liabilities or partner nonrecourse liabilities secured by such assets, if nonrecourse
liabilities or partner nonrecourse liabilities exceed "book" values), (ii) first applies the proceeds to
discharge Company liabilities at face amount (including repayment of interest that has accrued and
has been deducted under the Company's method of accounting), and then (ii1) distributes the
remaining net proceeds of this sale in accordance with Section 11.4.

6.2.2. "Book value" with respect to any asset means the asset's "book" value for
purposes of Treasury Regulations Section 1.704-1(b)(2)(iv).

6.2.3. Items of "book" income mean all items (other than Capital Contributions
and liabilities) that increase Capital Accounts under Treasury Regulations Section 1.704-
1(b)(2)(iv).

6.2.4. Items of "book" loss mean all items (other than distributions and liabilities)
that decrease Capital Accounts under Treasury Regulations Section 1.704-1(b)(2)(iv).

6.2.5. Items of "book" income and "book" loss shall be computed by excluding
items allocated under the minimum gain chargeback, or under the partner minimum gain
chargeback, and also by excluding items allocated as nonrecourse deductions, partner nonrecourse
deductions, or exculpatory deductions.

6.2.6. Each Member's share of items of "book" income and "book" loss shall be
comprised of a ratable share of the items that are components of "book" income and "book" loss
to the extent consistent with the other terms of this Section 6.2 and except to the extent that the
Internal Revenue Code requires otherwise.

6.2.7. Capital Accounts shall be determined for this purpose (i) after adjustments
for any specially allocated items, contributions, or distributions; (ii) as if any net "book" income
or net "book" loss that the Company would have recognized on this hypothetical sale (such as
under the minimum gain chargeback or partner minimum gain chargeback) has been recognized
and (other than items allocated under this Section 6.2) credited to or debited from (as the case may
be) the Members' Capital Accounts, and (iii) by increasing the Capital Account of each Member
on account of the amount that the Member would be required to pay or to contribute on account
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of the Members' obligations to make payments or confributions to the Company that would fall
due on account of the liquidation of the Company.

6.2.8. Nonrecourse liabilities and partner nonrecourse liabilities shall be
determined under Treasury Regulations Section 1.1001-2(a)(4)(i) and 1.704-2(b)(4).

6.3. Allocation of Partner Nonrecourse Deductions, Nonrecourse Deduction. and
Exculpatory Deductions. All partner nonrecourse deductions shall be allocated to the Member
who bears the economic risk of loss for the liability in accordance with Treasury Regulations
Section 1.704-2(i)(1). All nonrecourse deductions and exculpatory deductions shall be allocated
to the Members in accordance with Section 6.2.

6.4. Code Section 704(c) Allocations. Notwithstanding any other provision in this
Section 5, in accordance with Code Section 704(c) and the Treasury Regulations promulgated
thereunder, income, gain, loss, and deduction with respect to any property contributed to the capital
of the Company by one or more Members must be allocated among the Members (solely for tax
purposes) so as to take account of any variation between the adjusted basis of the property to the
Company for federal income tax purposes and its fair market value on the date of contribution.
Allocations under this Section are solely for purposes of federal, state, and local taxes.

6.5. Transferred Membership Units. If during any fiscal year of the Company any
Membership Unit is transferred (as permitted by this Agreement), or the percentage interest in the
Company represented by a Member's Membership Units is increased or decreased by reason of the
admission of a new Member or otherwise, each item of income, gain, loss, deduction, or credit of
the Company for such fiscal year must be assigned pro rata to each day in the particular period of
such fiscal year to which such item is attributable (i.e., the day on or during which it is accrued or
otherwise incurred) and the amount of each such item so assigned to any such day must be
allocated to the Members based on the ownership of their respective Membership Units at the close
of such day. However, for purpose of accounting convenience and simplicity, the Company may
treat such transfer, increase, or decrease affecting the Membership Units of a Member that occurs
at any time during a calendar month as having been consummated on the last day of the month,
regardless of when during the month the transfer, increase, or decrease actually occurs.

6.6.  Allocations Resulting From Dispositions. Notwithstanding any provision in the
preceding Section to the confrary, gain or loss of the Company realized in connection with a sale
or other disposition of any of the Company's assets must be allocated solely to the parties owning
Membership Units as of the date the sale or other disposition occurs.

ARTICLE 7
DISTRIBUTIONS

7.1. Distribution of Assets by the Company. For purposes of this Agreement,
“Distributable Cash™ means the amount of cash or other property the Manager deems available
for distribution to the Members, taking into account all current, future, and reasonably anticipated
Company debts, liabilities, and obligations and amounts that the Manager deems necessary to place
into reserves for future claims, debts, liabilities and obligations with respect to the Company’s
business. Subject to applicable law and any limitations contained elsewhere in this Agreement,
the Manager will distribute Distributable Cash to the Members pursuant to Section 7.2. All
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distributions will be made only to the persons who, according to the books and records of the
Company, are the holders of record of the Membership Units in respect of which such distributions
are made on the actual date of distribution. Neither the Company nor the Manager will incur any
liability for making distributions in accordance with this Article 7.

7.2.  Distributions of Distributable Cash. Distributable Cash will be distributed as
follows:

7.2.1. Annual Tax Distributions. On or before April 1 of each year, the Manager
may cause the Company will make a “Tax Distribution” (as defined below) in accordance with the
terms of this Section 7.2.1 prior to the other distributions described below. As used herein, a “Tax
Distribution™ means a distribution to each Member, in proportion to the amount of Book Income
allocated to a Member, an amount the Manager deems necessary in its sole and absolute discretion
to minimize the tax impact of such allocated Book Income. Each Tax Distribution will be of an
amount not to exceed the product of (i) the Book Income allocated to such Members for the
preceding fiscal year multiplied by (ii) the tax rate that the Manager approximates to be applicable
generally to such Members; provided, however, that, if the Manager deems it in the Company’s
best interests to do so, the Manager is not required to precisely calculate the tax rate or tax liability
of any Member, and may make a Tax Distribution of a lesser amount as long as it is distributed
proportionately (relative to allocated Book Income) among all of such Members.

7.2.2. Distributions. After making the Tax Distribution described in Section 7.2.1,
and subject to Section 11.4 in connection with a liquidating distribution, Distributable Cash will
be distributed pro-rata based on a Member’s respective percentage ownership of Units.

7.3. Distribution Adjustments. For the avoidance of doubt, Members holding Class C
Units shall not participate in any such distribution on account of any Class C Units held by such
Member until the aggregate distributions equal the benchmark value or Distribution Threshold or
hurdle and/or grant/strike price, as applicable, established with respect to such Class C Units as of
the date on which such Class C Units were originally issued by the Company (whether or not the
holder is the Member who originally acquired such Class C Units from the Company), and any
distribution not made to a Member by reason of the foregoing proviso shall instead be divided
among, and distributed to, the other Members holding Membership Units whose right to participate
in such distribution is not limited by the foregoing proviso, in proportion to each Member’s
respective Membership Units.

7.4.  Form of Distribution. A Member, regardless of the nature of the Member’s Capital
Contribution, may not demand or receive distributions from the Company in any form other than
money. No Member may be compelled to accept from the Company a distribution of any asset in
kind in lieu of a distribution of money being made to other Members. Except as provided in Section
11.5 below entitled “Compliance with Treasury Regulations,” on dissolution and the winding up
of the Company, no Member may be compelled to accept a distribution of any asset in kind.

7.5.  Restriction on Distributions. No distribution may be made if, after giving effect to
the distribution, the Company would not be able to pay its debts as they become due in the usual
course of business.
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7.6. Return of Distributions. Except for distributions made in violation of the Act or
this Agreement, no Member is obligated to return any distribution received from the Company or
pay the amount of any distribution received from the Company for the account of the Company or
to any creditor of the Company. The amount of any distribution returned to the Company by a
Member or paid by a Member for the account of the Company or to a creditor of the Company
must be added to the Capital Account or Capital Accounts from which it was subtracted when it
was distributed to the Member.

ARTICLE 8
ACCOUNTING, RECORDS, REPORTING BY MEMBERS

8.1.  Accounting Decisions. All decisions as to accounting matters, except as otherwise
specifically set forth herein, will be made by the Manager who may rely on the advice of
accountants as to whether such decisions are in accordance with accounting methods followed for
federal income fax purposes.

8.2.  Annual Tax Information for Members. The Company will cause to be delivered to
each Member, promptly after becoming available, all information necessary for the preparation of
the Member’s federal and state income tax or information return together with a copy of the
Company’s federal, state, and local income tax or information returns for the year.

8.3. Books and Records. The Company will maintain books and records in accordance
with the Act, and the Members will have the inspection and access rights described in the Act.

8.4. Partnership Representative. Floyd Eddie Wilson, III, or such other person
subsequently appointed by the Manager, will be the “Partnership Representative” as defined in
Section 6223(a) of the Code, to oversee or handle matters relating to the taxation of the Company,
with the right and obligation to take all actions authorized and required by the Code for the
Partnership Representative. The Partnership Representative shall be entitled to reimbursement for
reasonable out-of-pocket costs and expenses incurred by the Partnership Representative on behalf
of the Company.

8.5. Obligations of Members to Report Allocations. Each of the Members is aware of
the income tax consequences of the allocations made under this Agreement and agrees to be bound
by the provisions of this Agreement in reporting its share of the Company’s income, loss, and other
tax attributes for income tax purposes.

ARTICLE 9
TRANSFER AND ASSIGNMENT OF INTERESTS

9.1.  Transfer and Assignment of Membership Units. No Member may transfer, assign,
exchange, convey, sell or in any way alienate (each of the foregoing constituting a “Transfer™)
any Units, other than to a Permitted Transferee, without the written consent of the Manager, which
may be granted, conditioned or denied in the Manager’s sole and absolute discretion. Each
Member acknowledges that the foregoing restriction is reasonable under the circumstances in
which the Units are being granted. As used herein, “Permitted Transferee” means (i) a revocable
living trust established by such Member either alone or with its, his or her spouse, provided that:
(a) such Member, Member's spouse or immediate issue is the primary lifetime beneficiary of the
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trust at date of formation and until such Member's death; (b) such Member is the sole trustee or a
co-trustee of the trust so long as the Member is living and not incapacitated; and (c) the Member
agrees, in is, his or her capacity as trustee, to be bound by all of the provisions and conditions of
this Agreement; (ii) an entity receiving a Transfer of all or any portion of a Member’s Membership
Units, where such entity is and remains entirely owned and controlled by the transferring Member,
provided that such transferring Member: (w) has and at all times retains the exclusive authority to
make decisions on behalf of the entity with regard to the Company: (x) has and at all times retains
the power and authority to individually enter into and bind the entity with respect to any
arrangement, contract, agreement concerning the entity's interest in the Company; (y) agrees, on
behalf of the enfity, to be bound by all of the provisions and conditions of this Agreement; and (z)
acknowledges and agrees, on behalf of the entity, that if the entity: (A) ceases to be controlled by
such transferring Member, or (B) violates any of the other requirements of this provision, then
such Membership Units will automatically be transferred back to the transferring Member; (iii) an
owner of an entity that is a Member receiving a transfer from such Member entity, where such
owner agrees to be bound by all the provisions and conditions of this Agreement, or (iv) a Member
to another Member.

9.2. Major Capital Event Cooperation. If at any time the Manager desires to
consummate a Major Capital Event (as defined below), then the Manager shall have the right to
require that each other Member participate and vote in favor of such Major Capital Event. Each
Member hereby appoints the Manager as its, his or her agent and attorney-in-fact for the purpose
of executing and delivering any and all documents necessary to convey its, his or her approval
pursuant to the provisions of this Section 9.2. The power of attorney herein granted is coupled
with an interest and is irrevocable. If the Manager provides written notice to all other Members of
its desire to consummate a Major Capital Event, then all other Members shall, to the extent
required, vote for, execute documents in connection with, consent to, and raise no objections to,
the Major Capital Event, nor shall they bring a claim against the Company, the Manager, any other
Member or their affiliates or any of their respective officers, directors, managers, stockholders,
partners or members, or contest or seek to enjoin the Major Capital Event or seek appraisal,
dissenters’ rights or other similar such rights with respect to the Major Capital Event. Except as
otherwise unanimously agreed by the Members, the consideration payable to the Company or the
Members in exchange for or on account of their Membership Units under a Major Capital Event
will be allocated and payable to the Members in the same manner as assets are to be distributed
under Section 7.2 above. The term “Major Capital Event” shall mean (i) the sale, transfer or
other disposition of all or substantially all of the Company’s material assets to any non-Member
or to any enfity which is not owned or controlled by persons who comprise a majority ownership
of the Company immediately prior to such transaction, (ii) a sale, transfer or other disposition of
all of the issued and outstanding Membership Units of the Company to any non-Member or to any
entity which is not owned or controlled by persons who comprise a majority ownership of the
Company immediately prior to such transaction, or (iii) a merger, consolidation, reorganization or
conversion of the Company with or into another entity which is not owned or controlled, directly
or indirectly, by persons who comprise a majority ownership of the Company immediately prior
to such transaction.
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ARTICLE 10
ADMISSIONS AND WITHDRAWALS

10.1. Admission of Additional Members or Issuance of Additional Units. The Manager
may determine that additional members be admitted to the Company or that additional
Membership Units be issued in order to raise additional capital for the Company. The Membership
Units to be sold to raise such capital are referred to herein as the “Capital Raising Units.” The
Manager may raise such additional capital from existing Members or from third parties on terms
and conditions it deems to be in the Company’s best interest. If the Manager desires to raise capital,
then the Manager will advise all Class A Members and Class B Members in writing (the “Proposed
Admission Notice™) of (1) the approximate amount of capital desired to be raised, and (ii) the
general terms and conditions attendant to such Capital Raising Units. Each of such Members will
have ten (10) calendar days from receipt of the Proposed Admission Notice within which to elect,
by written notice to the Manager, to acquire a pro rata portion of the Capital Raising Units in
exchange for the amount of capital (or pro rata share thereof) designated in the Proposed
Admission Notice. Despite the preceding, the Manager in its discretion may restrict the issuance
of Capital Raising Units to accredited investors (as that term is defined by Section 501(a) of the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended (“Securities Act”) and otherwise restrict the issuance of
Capital Raising Units in order to comply with exemptions from registration and qualification under
the Securities Act and similar federal and state securities laws. Any such Member who meets the
suitability standards established by the Manager and timely elects to acquire such Capital Raising
Units may do so in accordance with the Proposed Admission Notice; provided, however, if the
existing Members do not elect to acquire all of the Capital Raising Units and the Manager
determines that it is unable to raise the required capital on desirable terms unless the Capital
Raising Units are offered to a party in their entirety, then the right of the other Members to
participate in such acquisitions will terminate, and the Manager may sell the entire Capital Raising
Units to such party. If more than one of the Members exercises the right to acquire Capital Raising
Units pursuant to this Section, then each may exercise such rights pro rata in accordance with such
Member’s relative Membership Unit holdings (or as otherwise agreed to by them). Any Member
may assign the right to purchase Capital Raising Units to any other Class A Members or Class B
Member upon receiving the Manager’s approval, which will not be unreasonably withheld.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Membership Units will not be considered to be Capital Raising
Units (and the Manager will not be required to first offer such Membership Units to the Members)
if (1) such Units are being issued pursuant to an incentive plan or similar agreement on terms
approved by the Manager, (ii) the Units are being issued to, or pursuant to a transaction with, a
third party that the Manager deems to be a strategic or institutional investor, or an investor with
other relationships or attributes believed by the Manager to be beneficial to the Company, (iii)
such Units are being issued in connection with a merger, combination, acquisition, split, reverse
split or similar transaction, (iv) such Units are being issued to a financing or leasing company with
which the Company is engaging in a transaction, (v) the Manager believes that the person or entity
providing capital will only proceed with the transaction if such person or entity is able to acquire
all of the units, or (vi) the Manager otherwise believes there is another compelling reason to
proceed without offering such units to any or all of the Members.

10.2. Issuance of Class C Units. The Manager may issue Class C Units to service
providers or other eligible third parties at such times, in such amounts, at such values, and on such
terms and conditions as the Manager may determine in their sole and absolute discretion, without
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notifying the Members or offering the Members the right to acquire additional Units in connection
with such issuance. Such Class C Units are intended to be treated as “profits interests™ for federal
income tax purposes, as that term (or any term of similar import) is used in Revenue Procedure
93-27, 1993-2 C.B. 343, and Revenue Procedure 2001-43, 2001-2 C.B. 191, and any successor
provisions of the Code, Treasury Regulations or other administrative notices or announcements.
Each recipient of a “profits interests” will execute a Joinder Agreement in a form acceptable to the
Company, to become party to this Agreement.

10.3. Withdrawals or Resignations. No Member may withdraw or resign as a Member
or withdraw capital from the Company without the consent of the Manager.

ARTICLE 11
DISSOLUTION AND WINDING UP

11.1. Dissolution Events. The Company will be dissolved, its assets disposed of, and its
affairs wound up upon the first to occur of the following:

11.1.1. Upon the entry of a decree of judicial dissolution pursuant to the Act;
11.1.2. The sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company; or
11.1.3. Upon the election of the Manager and the Class A Majority.

The occurrence of a Dissolution Event of a Member does not give rise to the dissolution of
the Company.

11.2. Winding Up. Upon the occurrence of any event specified in Section 11.1, the
Company will continue in existence solely for the purpose of disposing of its assets and winding
up its affairs in an orderly manner, liquidating its assets, and satisfying the claims of its creditors.
The Manager, provided they have not wrongfully dissolved the Company or, if no remaining
person acting as a Manager exists, the Members (either the Manager or the Members acting
pursuant to this Section are referred to as the “Liquidator™), are responsible for overseeing the
winding up of the Company’s business. The Liquidator must give notice of the commencement of
winding up activities by mail to all known creditors and claimants whose addresses appear on the
records of the Company. The Liquidator is entitled to reasonable compensation for its services.

11.3. Distributions in Kind. Any non-cash asset distributed to one or more Members
must first be valued at its fair market value to determine the Book Income or Book Loss that would
have resulted if the asset were sold for such value, the Book Income or Book Loss must then be
allocated pursuant to Article 6, and the Members® Capital Accounts must be adjusted to reflect the
allocations. The amount distributed and charged to the Capital Account of each Member receiving
an interest in the distributed asset is the fair market value of such interest (net of any liability
secured by the asset that such Member assumes or takes subject to). The fair market value of the
asset must be determined by the Liquidator or, if any Member objects to such valuation, then by
an independent appraiser (any such appraiser must be recognized as an expert in valuing the type
of asset involved) selected by the Liquidator and approved by the Manager.

11.4. Order of Payment of Liabilities and Other Distributions Upon Dissolution.
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11.4.1. After determining that all known liabilities of the Company, including debts
and liabilities to Members who are creditors of the Company, have been paid or adequately
provided for, the remaining assets will be distributed to the Members, (i) first, to the Members
who have provided Capital Contributions to the Company, pro rata in accordance with their
respective Unrecovered Capital amounts until all Members have no remaining Unrecovered
Capital, and (ii) second, to all Members, pro-rata based on a Member’s respective percentage
ownership of Units (subject to any Distribution Thresholds with respect to any Class C Member).
As used in this Agreement, the term “Unrecovered Capital” shall mean, with respect to each
Member, the aggregate amount of the Capital Contributions made by such Member reduced (but
not below zero) by the cumulative amount of Distributable Cash distributed to such Member.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, a Class C Member shall not participate in any
liquidation distributions under this Article 11 on account of any Class C Units held by such
Member until the distributions to the Class A Members and Class B Members on account of their
Units equal the Distribution Threshold established with respect to such Class C Units as of the date
on which such Class C Units were originally issued by the Company (if any), and any distribution
not made to a Member by reason of the foregoing proviso shall instead be divided among, and
distributed to, the other Members whose right to participate in such liquidation distribution is not
limited by the foregoing proviso. The liquidating distributions must be made by the end of the
Company’s taxable year in which the Company is liquidated or, if later, within ninety (90) calendar
days after the date of the liquidation.

11.4.2. The payment of a debt or liability, whether the whereabouts of the creditor
is known or unknown, will be deemed to have been adequately provided for if the Company has
complied with either of the following:

114.2.1 The payment of the debt or liability has been assumed or
guaranteed in good faith by financially responsible person(s) or entities, and the provisions,
including financial responsibility, was determined in good faith and with reasonable care by the
Liquidator to be adequate at the time of any distribution of the assets hereunder.

114.2.2 The amount of the debt or liability has been deposited by the
Company into an account for that purpose in accordance with the Act or applicable law.

This Section 11.4.2 is not intended to prescribe the exclusive means of making adequate
provision for the payment of debts and liabilities as required by the Act. The Liquidator may make
other arrangements reasonably calculated to provide for the payment of debts and liabilities.

11.5. Compliance with Treasury Regulations. All payments to the Members upon the
winding-up and dissolution of the Company will be made in accordance with the positive capital
account balance limitation and other requirements of Treasury Regulations Section 1.704-1

(b)(2)(11)(d).

11.6. Limitations on Payments Made in Dissolution. Each Member is entitled to look
solely at the assets of the Company for the return of the Member’s positive Capital Account
balance and will have no recourse for the return of the Member’s Capital Contribution or the
receipt of the Member’s share of Book Income (upon dissolution or otherwise) against the
Manager or any other Member.
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11.7. Certificate of Cancellation. The Manager will cause the Certificate of Cancellation
to be filed in the office of, and on a form prescribed by, the Delaware Secretary of State, in
accordance with the Act.

11.8. No Action for Dissolution. Except as expressly permitted in this Agreement, no
Member may take any voluntary action that directly causes the dissolution of the Company. The
Members acknowledge that irreparable damage would be done to the goodwill and reputation of
the Company if any Member should bring an action in court to dissolve the Company under
circumstances where dissolution is not required by Section 11.1. This Agreement has been drafted
to provide fair treatment of all parties and equitable payment in liquidation of the Membership
Units. Accordingly, except where the Liquidator has failed to liquidate the Company as required
by this Certificate, each Member waives and renounces such Member’s right to initiate a legal
action to seek the appointment of a receiver or trustee to liquidate the Company or to seek a decree
of judicial dissolution of the Company on the grounds that (i) it is not reasonably practicable to
carry on the business of the Company in conformity with the Certificate or this Agreement, or (ii)
dissolution is reasonably necessary for the protection of the rights or interests of the complaining
Member.

ARTICLE 12
INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE

12.1. Indemnification and Insurance of Agents. Subject to Section 12.3 below, the
Company will indemnify, defend and hold harmless any person who was or is a party or is
threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending, or completed action, suit, or proceeding
by reason of the fact that such person is or was a Member, Manager, officer, employee, or other
agent of the Company, or such person is a Member of the Company (“Agent”) or that, being or
having been such an Agent of the Company, it is or was serving at the request of the Company as
an Agent of another person or enterprise, to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law in effect
on the date of this Agreement and to such greater extent as applicable law may hereafter from time
to time permit. The Manager is authorized, on behalf of the Company, to enter into indemnity
agreements on such terms and conditions as it deems appropriate in their business judgment. The
Company is authorized to purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any Agent described in
this Section (a “Section 12.1 Agent™) against any liability asserted against the Agent and incurred
by the Agent in such capacity, or arising out of the Agent’s status as a Section 12.1 Agent, whether
or not the Company would have the power to indemnify the Agent against such liability under this
Section or under applicable law.

12.2. Advancement of Expenses. An Agent entitled to indemnification or defense under
this Article may receive from the Company advance payment of the Agent's reasonable and
appropriate expenses incurred in connection with the action giving rise to the indemnification, as
reasonably determined by the Manager. On demand by a Member for indemnification, defense or
advancement of expenses, as the case may be, the Company will expeditiously determine whether
the Member is entitled thereto in accordance with this Article. The indemnification, defense and
advancement of expenses provided for under this Article applies to any proceeding arising from
acts or omissions occurring before or after the adoption of this Article.
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12.3. Standards of Conduct for Indemnification. Indemmification, defense and
advancement of expenses is permissible under this Article only if the Section 12.1 Agent: (i)
conducted itself in good faith; (ii) reasonably believed that its conduct was in or at least not
opposed to the Company’s best interest; (iii) in the case of any criminal proceeding, had no
reasonable cause to believe its conduct was unlawful; and (iv) is not adjudged in any proceeding
to have engaged in intentional misconduct giving rise to the underlying claim or damage for which
indemnification is sought. The termination of a proceeding by judgment, order, settlement,
conviction, or on a plea of nolo contendere or its equivalent is not, of itself, determinative that the
individual did not meet the standard of conduct described in this Section. A determination as to
whether indemnification, defense or advancement of expenses is permissible may be made by (a)
the Manager, (b) the Class A Majority, or (c) special legal counsel selected by the Class A
Majority.

12.4. Court Order of Indemnification. A Member who is a party to a proceeding may
apply for indemnification or defense from the Company to the court, if any, conducting the
proceeding or to another court of competent jurisdiction. On receipt of an application, the court,
after giving such notice as the court considers necessary, may order indemnification if it
determines:

(1) In a proceeding in which the Member is wholly successful, on the
merits or otherwise, the Member is entitled to indemnification under this Section, in which case
the court will also order the Company to pay the Member its reasonable expenses incurred to obtain
the court ordered indemnification; or

(ii) The Member is fairly and reasonably entitled to indemnification in
view of all of the relevant circumstances, whether or not the Member met the standard of conduct
set forth in Section 12.3.

12.5. Described Indemnification Rights Non-Exhaustive. Nothing contained in this
Article will limit or preclude the exercise, or be deemed exclusive, of any right under the law, by
contract or otherwise, relating to indemnification or defense of or advancement of expenses to any
individual who is or was a Member of the Company or is or was serving as a Section 12.1 Agent.
Nothing contained in this Article may limit the ability of the Company to otherwise indemnify or
advance expenses to any individual. It is the intent of this Article to provide indemnification and
defense to Members who are Section 12.1 Agents to the fullest extent now or hereafter permitted
by law consistent with the terms and conditions of this Article. Indemnification must be provided
in accordance with this Article irrespective of the nature of the legal or equitable theory upon
which a claim is made including negligence, breach of duty, mismanagement, waste, breach of
confract, breach of warranty, strict liability, or violation of any state or federal law.

ARTICLE 13
MISCELLANEOUS

13.1. Not for Benefit of Creditors. The provisions of this Agreement are intended only
for the regulation of relations among the Manager, the Members and the Company. This
Agreement is not intended for the benefit of Member creditors and does not grant any rights to or
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confer any benefits on Member creditors or any other person who is not a Member, a Manager or
an officer.

13.2. Power of Attorney. Each Member acknowledges that, by executing this
Agreement, the Manager (or his, her or its authorized designee) has been constituted and
appointed, with full power and authority to act in his, her or its name and on his, her or its behalf
in the execution, acknowledgment and filing of documents relating to the Company and its
business, as follows: (1) any instrument that may be required to be filed by the Company under
appropriate state law or by any governmental agency; or (ii) any documents that may be required
to be filed by the Company in connection with the admission or substitution of additional
Members, or the dissolution and termination of the Company, provided the admission or
substitution of additional Members or dissolution and termination of the Company are in
accordance with this Agreement. Each Member further acknowledges that, by executing this
Agreement, the power of attorney granted to the Manager (or their authorized designee) under this
Section: (a) is a special power of attorney, coupled with an interest, and (b) may be exercised by
either Manager (or their authorized designee) either by signing separately as attorney-in-fact for
each Member or, after listing all of the Members, executing any instrument by the signature of a
Manager acting as attorney-in-fact for any or all of them, and will survive the death or disability
of any Member.

13.3. No Interest in Company Property: Waiver of Action for Partition. No Member or
Transferee has any interest in specific property of the Company. Without limiting the foregoing,
each Member and Transferee irrevocably waives during the Term any right he, she or it may have
to maintain an action for partition with respect to property of the Company.

13.4. Amendments. Notwithstanding any other provision hereof to the contrary, any
amendment to this Agreement required by law or necessary to reflect immaterial changes, provided
such amendment does not adversely affect the substantive rights of the Members, including
without limitation, amendments to (i) correct any typographical, clerical or other minor errors or
omissions, or to clarify any unintended ambiguities of this Agreement; or (ii) in order to facilitate
the admission of a new Member in accordance with Article 10 (which may include, for the
avoidance of doubt, rights and benefits that are superior to those held by the existing Members,
such as preferred distribution rights, and voting or consent rights, and may result in dilution to
some or all of the existing Members), may be made solely by the Manager and the Class A
Majority. All other amendments will require the affirmative vote or written consent of the
Members holding no less than two-thirds of the outstanding Membership Units. Each Member
covenants, on behalf of such Member and such Member’s successors, assigns, heirs and personal
representatives, to promptly execute and deliver with acknowledgment or affidavit, if required, all
documents and writings that may be necessary or appropriate to effectuate amendments pursuant
to this Section.

13.5. Governing Law. This Agreement is governed by and construed in accordance with
the laws of the State of Delaware, irrespective of Delaware’s choice-of-law principles.

13.6. Further Assurances. Each party to this Agreement will execute and deliver all
instruments and documents and take all actions as may be reasonably required or appropriate to
carry out the purposes of this Agreement.
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13.7. Dispute Resolution: Venue and Jurisdiction. If any Member believes the Company
or the Manager have breached this Agreement, such Member will provide the Company and the
Manager written notice of such alleged breach with reasonable specificity and the Company and/or
the Manager, as applicable, will have thirty (30) calendar days to cure such breach before the
Member may resort to any legal action (other than a filing which is reasonably determined to be
necessary to avoid the expiration of a statute of limitation). All actions and proceedings arising in
connection with this Agreement must be resolved exclusively in binding arbitration administered
at Atlanta, Georgia by an arbitrator selected by the Company, utilizing the JAMS
(www.JAMSADR . .com) Streamlined Arbitration Rules; provided, however, that if the dispute does
not qualify for the Streamlined Arbitration Rules then the Comprehensive Arbitration Rules will
apply. Each party authorizes and accepts service of process sufficient for personal jurisdiction in
any action against it as contemplated by this Section by registered or certified mail, return receipt
requested, postage prepaid, to its address for the giving of notices set forth in this Agreement.

13.8. Counterparts and Exhibits. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts
utilizing one or more separate signature pages and signatures may be submitted by copy, facsimile,
PDF or other electronic transmission, each of which is deemed an original and all of which together
constitute one document. All exhibits attached to and referenced in this Agreement are
incorporated by reference into this Agreement.

13.9. Time of Essence. Time and strict and punctual performance are of the essence with
respect to each provision of this Agreement.

13.10. Prior Understandings. This Agreement and all documents specifically referred to
and executed in connection with this Agreement: (i) contain the entire and final agreement of the
parties to this Agreement with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement, and (ii) supersede
all negotiations, stipulations, understandings, agreements, representations and warranties, if any,
with respect to such subject matter, which precede or accompany the execution of this Agreement.

13.11. Interpretation. Whenever the context so requires in this Agreement, all words used
in the singular may include the plural (and vice versa) and the word “person™ includes a natural
person, a corporation, a firm, a partnership, a joint venture, a trust, an estate or any other entity.
The terms “includes” and “including” do not imply any limitation. No remedy or election under
this Agreement is exclusive, but rather, to the extent permitted by applicable law, each such remedy
and election is cumulative with all other remedies at law or in equity. The Section headings in this
Agreement: (1) are included only for convenience, (ii) do not in any manner modify or limit any
of the provisions of this Agreement, and (iii) may not be used in the interpretation of this
Agreement. Each provision of this Agreement is valid and enforceable to the fullest extent
permitted by law. If any provision of this Agreement (or the application of such provision to any
person or circumstance) is or becomes invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement,
and the application of such provision to persons or circumstances other than those as to which it is
held invalid or unenforceable, are not affected by such invalidity or unenforceability.

13.12. Successors-in-Interest and Assigns. Subject to the restrictions on Transfers
contained in this Agreement, this Agreement is binding upon and inures to the benefit of the
successors-in-interest and assigns of each party to this Agreement.

P:01649174.4:86F14.001 10



DocuSign Envelope ID: 5CECT187-F379-4075-A836-0D429D0E2BBA

13.13. Notices. Each notice and other communication required or permitted to be given
under this Agreement (“Notice”) must be in writing. Notice is duly given to another party upon:
(1) hand delivery to the other party, (ii) receipt by the other party when sent by facsimile to the
address and number for such party set forth below (provided, however, that the Notice is not
effective unless a duplicate copy of the facsimile Notice is promptly also given by one of the other
methods permitted under this Section), (iii) three (3) business days after the Notice has been
deposited with the United States postal service as first class certified mail, return receipt requested,
postage prepaid, and addressed to the party as set forth in the Company’s book of records, or (iv)
the next business day after the Notice has been deposited with a reputable overnight delivery
service, postage prepaid, addressed to the party as set forth below with next-business-day delivery
guaranteed, provided that the sending party receives a confirmation of delivery from the delivery-
service-provider. Each party will make a reasonable, good faith effort to ensure that it will accept
or receive Notices to it that are given in accordance with this Section. A party may change its
address for purposes of this Section by giving the other party(ies) written notice of a new address
in the manner set forth above.

13.14. Waiver. Any waiver of a default or provision under this Agreement must be in
writing. No such waiver constitutes a waiver of any other default or provision concerning the same
or any other provision of this Agreement. No delay or omission by a party in the exercise of any
of its rights or remedies constitutes a waiver of (or otherwise impairs) such right or remedy. A
consent to or approval of an act does not waive or render unnecessary the consent to or approval
of any other or subsequent act.

13.15. Drafting Ambiguities. Each party to this Agreement and its legal counsel have
reviewed and revised this Agreement. The rule of construction that ambiguities are to be resolved
against the drafting party or in favor of the party receiving a particular benefit under an agreement
may not be employed in the interpretation of this A greement or any amendment to this Agreement.

13.16. Legends. In addition to any other legends required by the Securities Act, Delaware
Securities Act, as amended, or other applicable state blue sky laws, each Member hereby agrees
to cause to be placed on each certificate of membership representing the Membership Units owned
by him, her or it, if any, the following legends in a prominent and conspicuous manner:

"THE MEMBERSHIP UNITS REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE ARE
SUBJECT TO CERTAIN RESTRICTIONS AGAINST TRANSFER UNDER
THE TERMS OF AN OPERATING AGREEMENT ENTERED INTO
BETWEEN THE COMPANY AND ITS MEMBERS, A COPY OF WHICH IS
ON FILE AT THE COMPANY'S PRINCIPAL OFFICE.

THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE HAVE NOT
BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS
AMENDED (THE "ACT") AND ARE "RESTRICTED SECURITIES" AS
DEFINED IN RULE 144 PROMULGATED UNDER THE ACT. THE
SECURITIES MAY NOT BE SOLD OR OFFERED FOR SALE OR
OTHERWISE DISTRIBUTED EXCEPT (i) IN CONJUNCTION WITH AN
EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT FOR THE MEMBERSHIP UNITS
UNDER THE ACT, (ii) IN COMPLIANCE WITH RULE 144, OR (iii)
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PURSUANT TO AN OPINION OF COUNSEL, SATISFACTORY TO THE
COMPANY, THAT SUCH REGISTRATION OR COMPLIANCE IS NOT
REQUIRED AS TO THE SALE, OFFER OR DISTRIBUTION."

13.17. Representation. Each Member and the Company have been advised and had the
opportunity to consult with independent legal counsel regarding this Agreement. The Company
and each Member acknowledge (i) Solomon Ward Seidenwurm & Smith, LLP (“SWSS”)
represents only Floyd Eddie Wilson, III (*“Wilson™), who is affiliated with the Class A Members:
(11) SWSS has prepared this Agreement at Wilson's direction and may perform additional services
for the Company at Wilson’s direction; (iii) the interests of the parties with respect to this
Agreement may be in conflict, and if SWSS were representing any other party in relation to this
Agreement, it might advise such party that certain clauses be added, deleted or drafted differently:
(iv) SWSS may continue to represent Wilson or his affiliates in the future in matters related or
unrelated to this Agreement and/or the Company: and (v) SWSS may represent the Company at
Wilson’s direction.

13.19. Spousal Consent. Each Member who is or becomes married will, at the Manager’s
request, deliver an executed Spousal Consent in the form attached to this Agreement concurrently

with the execution of this Agreement.

SIGNATURE PAGES FOLLOW
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COMPANY SIGNATURE PAGE TO
OPERATING AGREEMENT

COMPANY:

BECAUSE COFFEE TEN, LLC,
a Delaware limited liability company

By: Because Coffee Holdings Group, Inc.,
a Georgia corporation

e A

Floyd Eddie Wilson, III, CEO

Address:

90 Fort Wade Rd,
Ponte Vedra Beach,
FL 32081
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CLASS A SIGNATURE PAGE TO
OPERATING AGREEMENT

CLASS A MEMBERS:

BECAUSE COFFEE HOLDINGS GROUP, INC.,
a Georgia corporation

By: 2’%” M]”é”’

Floyd Eddie Wilson, ITI, CEO

Address for notices: 90 Fort Wade Rd, Ponte Vedra Beach, FL 32081
E-mail Address: Eddie@collectiveinfluence.com

COLLECTIVE EQUITY, INC.,
a Florida corporation

Bys Z/@ Wbé'*‘f

Its:  Flovd Eddie Wilson, ITII, CEO

Address for notices: 90 Fort Wade Rd, Ponte Vedra Beach, FL 32081
E-mail Address: Eddie@collectiveinfluence.com
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CLASS B SIGNATURE PAGE TO
OPERATING AGREEMENT

CLASS B MEMBERS:

AM COFFEE INVESTMEMNT

Name of Member

DocuSigned by:

(Gt by

BOSID0AREF ARAEH

Signature of Member or authorized representative

Managing Member

(If appropriate, indicate corporate office, “Partner” or “Trustee™)

Texas
(If Member is a corporation, partnership, trust or estate, indicate state of organization.)
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Spousal Consent

I acknowledge that I have read the foregoing Operating Agreement for BECAUSE COFFEE TEN,
LLC (the “Agreement”) which has been executed by my spouse, and I know its contents including
without limitation those provisions relating to the purchase, sale, or other disposition of the interest
of a deceased, retiring, withdrawing, or terminating Member.

I agree to be bound by and accept those provisions of the Agreement in place of all other interests
that I may have in the Company, whether the interest may be community property or otherwise.

My spouse has the full and exclusive power of management of his or her interest in the Company,
including any portion of those interests that are our community property, and has the full right,
without my further approval, to exercise all rights as a Member of the Company, to execute any
amendments to the Agreement, and to sell, transfer, encumber, and deal in any manner with those
Membership Units, including any portion of those interests that are our community property.

This Spousal Consent may be attached to and made a part of the Agreement, and may be relied
upon by the Company and its other Members as an inducement to enter into the Agreement.

If I predecease my spouse while my spouse owns any Membership Units in the Company, I agree
not to devise or bequeath whatever community property interest or quasi-community property
interest I may have in the Company in contravention of the Agreement.

IUNDERSTAND THAT THE CONSENT AFFECTS MY LEGAL RIGHTS REGARDING THE
MEMBERSHIP UNITS AND THAT IT WOULD BE PRUDENT FOR ME TO CONSULT AN
ATTORNEY WITH RESPECT TO SUCH MATTER.

[ ALSO ACKNOWLEDGE THAT I HAVE BEEN ADVISED TO OBTAIN INDEPENDENT
COUNSEL TO REPRESENT MY INTERESTS WITH RESPECT TO THE AGREEMENT BUT
THAT I HAVE DECLINED TO DO SO AND I HEREBY EXPRESSLY WAIVE MY RIGHT
TO SUCH INDEPENDENT COUNSEL.

Dated:

Signed:

Name;
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